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Leveraging talents to full play Win-win in harmony
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Financial data
(expressed in HK$'000)

Including continuing operations and
discontinued operation

Turnover

Gross profit

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

Eamings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation

Total borrowings

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Average capital employed (note 6)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Staff costs

Net asset attributable to owners of the

FEEMEEL) (AiF1)  Company per share (HK$) (note /)

B # bk & Financial ratios

JEREREI® (H:t2) Return on capital employed (note 2)

MENLL 3 (H7E3) Current ratio (note 3)

RENL K (HfiF4) Quick ratio (note 4)

BELLE (HFS) Gearing ratio (note 5)

iz Note:

[ YN = AREEEA + FRDET [ Net asset attnbutable to
HAANER EihED Bh&A owners of the Company
BRFEER per share

)L EREAEE = MBHNE B + THERER 2. Retum on capital employed

RERBHMRA (Hiite)

3 RELE = RPEE i =L 3. Curent ratio

4 BIPLX - (RBEE-ER) < RPER 4. Quickratio

5 BERE - RERR + RREHEEA 5. Gearing ratio

el
6. THERER = [(BRLE+ERDES)+ 6. Average capital employed

(LFERER+ LFERBER)] 2

HEMKREREN (£8) SR 2018 £ K

2016 2017 2018
2,436,821 299,670 87,824
291,426 38,754 5,424
76,024 (237,098) (1,320,525)
223467 (115,748) (1,182,380)
1,601,885 1,749,884 1,766,720
2,124,905 2,034,129 650,053
2,849,457 2,772,396 2,466,652
15,100 18,598 12,101
92,076 91,494 89,328
0486 0.466 0.149
7.8% (4.2%) (47.9%)
124 [.10 1.33

[.17 1.05 1.29

75% 86% 272%

= Equity attrbutable to + Number of issued shares

owners of the Company at year end

= Eamings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation

= Average capital employed
(note 6)
= Current assets + Current liabilties

(Current assets - Inventories) = Current liabilties

= Total borrowings + Equity attributable to

owners of the Company

= [(Total equity + non-current borrowing) +
(last year total equity + last year non-current borrowing)] = 2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RESULTS SUMMARY

The Group has been operating in an extremely challenging market
environment, despite its efforts, the results of the operations for the current
year have not improved. The turnover for the year 2018 comprised sales of
wind energy related products of approximately HK$34 million, operation of
wind power field of approximately HK$25 million and sales of energy storage
and related products of approximately HK$17 million whereas that of 2017
comprised sales of wind energy related products of approximately HK$234
million, operation of wind power field of approximately HK$26 million and

sales of energy storage and related products of approximately HK$4 million.

For the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group’s turover of continuing
operations amounted to approximately HK$76 million as compared to that
of 2017 of approximately HK$263 million, representing HK$ 187 million
or 71% decrease in turnover; the loss for the year attributable to owners
amounted to approximately HK$ 1,308 million as compared to that of 2017
of approximately HK$225 million, representing HK$ 1,083 million or 480%

increase in loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

Annual Report 2018 e China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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The significant increase in loss attributable to the equity holders of the

Company is mainly due to the recognition of impairment losses (some of

which are specific to the wind energy industry in which certain parts of the

Group operates), the principal reasons for the impairment include:

Following the issue of Document No.52 announced by the National
Energy Administration in 2017 and the Notice of the National Energy
Administration on Requirements relating to Wind Power Construction
and Management in 2018 (Guo Neng Fa Xin Neng [2018] No. 47) (the
“New Regulation and Policy”), the wind energy business encountered
intense price competition and the sales orders from customers dropped
substantially. This led to the revenue of the segment decreasing from
approximately HK$234 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to approximately HK$34 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The New Regulation and Policy is expected to have a negative
impact on the wind energy business, thus the management of the
Company estimated that the future economic inflow from the wind
energy segment will be lowered, which resulted in an impairment loss
recognized of approximately HK$ 171 million in relation to the property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, and approximately HK$62

million in relation to inventories related to the wind energy segment.

a. The Group has engaged an independence third party valuer to
assess the value-in-use of the wind energy segment. Based on
the impairment assessment, the impairment of property, plant
and equipment and intangibles assets of approximately HK$ 171
million is recognized. Details of the valuation is disclosed in

note |8 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

b.  For the impairment assessment of the inventories, the
management assessed the realizable value of the inventories
according to each product type individually, primarily taking into
account whether the inventories are obsolete, outdated due to
the technology advancement in the market and turnover days.
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Also, the New Regulation and Policy caused i) less-than-expected
delivery and settlement orders from customers, and ii) an associate of
the Company, Wuxi CASC Energine Xindali Co., Ltd. (which operates
in the wind energy business) faced financial difficulty, and were filed for
bankruptcy liquidation by creditors due to defaults of contract debt
during the year, and a bankruptcy administrator was appointed by a local
court in China on 2 January 2019. These resulted in the impairment
recognized on the expected credit loss of financial assets and contract
assets.

a.  For the impairment assessment of financial assets and contract
assets from customers, management assessed the expected
recoverable amount of each customers individually on a
continuous basis, impairment recognised the expected credit loss
of approximately HK$608 million primarily taking into account the
repayment history of each customer, aging of each receivables
and the financial ability of each customers. Further detail of the
assessment is disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

b.  For the impairment assessment of amount due from Wuxi CASC
Energine Xindali Co., Ltd in trade nature, the Group engaged
an independent third party valuer to assess the value of such
associate using asset approach. The asset approach is applied
due to the associate’s loss-making situation and may not be able
to continue its operation due to its financial difficulty and legal
issues. Under the asset approach, each asset item of the associate
is evaluated. The key assets of the associate are the trade
receivables, property, plant and equipment and the land use right.

. For the trade receivables, the recoverable amount is
assessed primarily based on the aging.

. For the property, plant and equipment, the recoverable
amount is assessed based on the depreciated replacement
cost method, which the recoverable amount is assessed
based on the replacement cost of acquiring the same assets
and taken into account the depreciation.

. For the land use right, the recoverable amount is assessed
based on the market approach, which is based on the
comparison of the market price of similar land use right.

Based on the impairment assessment, the impairment loss on
amount due from that associate in trade nature of approximately
HK$1 19 million is recognized.

Annual Report 2018 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Wind Power Generation Business

Followed by the Document No. 52 announced by the National Energy
Administration ("NEA") in 2017, the "Notice of the National Energy
Administration on Requirements relating to Wind Power Construction and
Management in 2018” (Guo Neng Fa Xin Neng [2018] No. 47) was published
during the year with the aim of eliminating non-technical costs. Meanwhile,
financial subsidies for the wind power industry is reducing gradually and the
wind power industry is transforming into an industry without government
subsidy. The price competition has been intense for the development of wind
power projects in China, presenting tremendous challenges for the Group's

wind turbine business segment.

In 2018, the Group continued its market development in Inner Mongolia and
other regions, as Phase Il of the Damao project commenced, vigorous efforts
have been made to facilitate the acquisition of wind resources in Tongliao,
Xilingol League, Baotou, Ulangab and Bayan Nur. The Group adjusted its
business model and participated in market tenders in a proactive manner
to address to the price competition, the Group'’s effort was rewarded
with a winning bid for a project in Chaha'er Youyi Zhongqi relating to the
development of 50,000+30,000 kw distributed wind power resources. In the
meantime, the Gaizhou Wind Farm Project was included in Liaoning Province's
2018 master plan for special wind power development and construction.

In addition to ongoing efforts to strengthen existing long-term partnerships, the
Group was also engaged in vigorous endeavours to drive strategic cooperation
with potential partners, with a view to joint development of wind power
projects and sharing of project information. During the year, we entered into
strategic cooperation agreements with 7 enterprises, proactively seeking an in-

depth cooperation in wind power and mutual beneficiary outcomes.

To address the changes of national policies, industry landscape and intense
market competition, the Group conducted meticulous studies on national
policies and industry trends. On top of the implementation of market orders
and related deliveries, we also endeavoured to increase the competitiveness
of our products. The Group has also been looking for transformation into a
supplier of integrated energy services, with the aim of developing new energy

power generation farms/stations.
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Research and Development of Technology

On top of importing and utilising foreign technologies, the Group has also
persisted in in-house research and development. In this connection, we have
completed the research and design for models such as 2MW excitation
magnetic direct-drive low-speed large-blade wind turbines and 2MW/3MW
permanent magnetic direct-drive wind turbines, to further improve the
performance of the units and enrich our product portfolio. During the year,
the product design was focused on lowering the consolidated cost per KWh at
source, as we produced validation and planning and completed initial designs
for a permanent magnetic wind power platform series comprising 2.5MW and
3MW models etc, devised to accommodate different types of wind farms.

The Group targeted the market for low wind speed products, making diligent
efforts on cost control, and jointly commenced the research and development
of applications for all-steel flexible tower technologies and completed the
research and manufacturing of a new model of the 2MW permanent magnetic
direct-drive wind turbine. The verification of sample models has commenced
and is ready for mass production. In response to the shifting of the Company’s
target market, we have commenced the research and development of new
wind turbine models, aiming to deliver refined wind turbine models with
superior competitiveness. To address changes in the industry and the market,
dedicated researches were conducted on multiple aspects in relation to the
wind turbine, such as research, production and after-sales services, with a view
to enhancing the compatibility and technical reliability of the units.

The Group completed the evaluation and certification of the designs for
Model |17 2MW excitation magnetic wind turbines and Model |10 2MW
permanent magnetic wind turbines, as well as low-voltage ride-through tests
for the four converters of Model | 17 2MW excitation magnetic wind turbines
and electrical energy tests and noise tests for the sample 3MW permanent
magnetic wind turbine.

In respect of the research and development of core technologies, the Group
commenced the research and development of the electronic wind turbine
control system with proprietary intellectual rights together with its in-house
developed core wind turbine technologies. The installation and operation of
sample models indicated that our in-house developed power control system
had fulfilled our project objectives in terms of stability, output power curve
matching and interface-friendliness. The marketing of our in-house developed
power control systems will contribute to the improvement of operating
efficiency and the utilisation rate of wind farms.

The technological research on the output power curve and transmission
chain of wind turbine units has been commenced, with the aim of increasing
power generation efficiency and operating stability, in a move to enhance
independently conducted and controllable research and development of
systems.

Annual Report 2018 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Certificates of accreditation for our management systems for version updates
have been obtained following successful completion of the accreditation
process, in a further reinforcement of the Company’s systems and regimes
for quality, environment and occupational health and safety management. We
have completed |3 technological assessments, including the “Report on the
Design Scheme for the New 2MW Permanent Magnetic Direct-drive Wind
Turbine Unit", as well as process assessment for the sample product of the
new 2MW permanent magnetic turbine in a bid to improve our process
documentation and refine the supplementary process parameters. Thirteen
patents have been obtained, including 2 invention patents. For the year under
review, we have submitted applications for 4 patents, including 3 invention
patents, and commenced the registration process for 3 software copyrights.

As at the end of 2018, the Company had obtained 163 valid patents, including
2| general invention patents, more than 140 utility model patents, 2 design
patents and | | software copyright registrations.

Wind Farm Operations

The wind farms operated by the Group include the CASC Long Yuan (Benxi)
Wind Farm in which the Group holds a controlling interest, which provides a
capacity of 24,650KW with 29 sets of 850KW wind turbines. The three wind
farms invested in and constructed by the Group include the Jilin Longyuan
Tongyu Wind Farm providing a capacity of 200,000KW with 236 sets of
850KW wind turbines; the Jiangsu Longyuan Rudong Wind Farm providing
a capacity of 150,000KW with 100 sets of [.5SMW wind turbines; and the
Inner Mongolia Datang Wanyuan Xinghe Wind Farm providing a capacity of
49,500KW with 55 sets of 900KWV direct-drive wind turbines.

Revenue contributions to the Group from the aforesaid wind farm operations
have been relatively stable.

Energy Storage Business

In view of intense market competition and the business environment highly
susceptible to policy changes, as well as limitations on the marketability of the
graphene preparation technology developed in the early stage, the Group
planned to slow down the operation and considering different path to develop
business. As emerging market of auxiliary electrical services, we are seeking the
development scenario of energy storage engineering.

The Group is identifying potential scattered new energy projects with
profitability.

Business of Automotive Engine Management Systems

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co., Ltd, a joint venture
of the Group, is a major supplier in the domestic automotive electronic fuel
injection market. It reported a substantial decline in operating results for 2018
owing to profound corrections in the domestic market for whole-set vehicles
and escalating competition.
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MATERIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

For the five major risk categories in 2018 as assessed by the Group, namely

policy risks, operational risks, financing risks, quality risks and technology

risks, the Company has devised corresponding risk management and control

measures, the details of which are as follows:

U]

(1

Policy Risks

As the new energy sector continued to develop, the magnitude
and frequency of policy regulation was also increasing. In 2018, the
government announced a number of industrial policies which had a
significant impact on the development of the industry. Relevant policies,
such as those in relation to grid price competition and grid parity, were
announced in succession and the adjustments had a very significant
impact on the Group’s principal business segments. The Group
continued to enhance its prospective study on national macro policies
and industry developments, making timely adjustments to its market

coverage and allocation of resources in accordance with its strategies.

Operational Risks

With the announcement of the “Notice of the National Energy
Administration on Requirements relating to Wind Power Construction
and Management in 2018" (Guo Neng Fa Xin Neng [2018] No. 47),
the wind turbine manufacturing industry has entered the era of grid
price competition. Meanwhile, the escalating “price war' among peers
in the industry has seriously undermined the profitability of wind turbine
products.

The Group is actively devising a strategy for product cost reduction
strategy based on considerations in various factors, such as research and
development, market, procurement and maintenance, among others, in

a bid to enhance the general competitiveness of its products.
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Financing Risks

The wind turbine manufacturing business typically commands a high level
of capital investment, and the shortfall in working capital is met mainly
through financing from financial institutions, resulting in a relatively high
gearing ratio and therefore more pressure on profitability and financing
ability. The Group will continue to strengthen its effort in the settlement

for sales and actively exploring other financing channels.

Quality Risks

Risks relating to quality arise from the fact that the quality of the
manufacturing process for externally sourced critical parts and
components is primarily dependent on the internal control and
management of the supplier. Protection against the above risks is
provided by the quality assurance system, on the one hand, while
such risks are also being identified and transferred through measures
such as supplier certification and assessment, quality assurance terms
under purchase contracts, dispatch of quality engineers to intervene
the manufacturing process of critical components, and establishment of
insurance mechanism.

Technology Risks

As the price war in the wind turbine manufacturing industry has
substantially dragged down the tender prices for wind turbines, cost
per KWh has become a core factor in determining whether a supplier
of main generators can maintain its general competitiveness, and a
higher benchmark has been set for the research and development of
new wind turbines and application of new technologies. The Group
will consolidate its advantageous strengths and allocate its research

resources in a reasonable manner to deliver refined wind turbine

models with superior competitiveness.
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PROSPECTS

As the " 3th Five-Year Planning (“FYP")"is closing to the end, the wind power
generation industry remains considerably underdeveloped in terms of installed
capacity by reference to the “13th FYP for the Development of Renewable
Energy”. At the 2019 National Energy Working Conference, the following
targets were set: reduction of the ratio of coal consumption to approximately
59% and reduction of the nationwide average wind power curtailment rate
to below 10% by 2019; all power generation facilities using renewable energy
reaching 680 million KW in installed capacity, 1,900 billion KWh in power
generation volume and 27% as a percentage of total power generation
volume, out of which the on-grid installed capacity of wind power should be
assured to exceed 210 million KW on the back of an annual average growth
of 20 million KW, by 2020. As such, the outlook of in the wind turbine

manufacturing industry in the foreseeable future is positive.

With the tightened regulation on the new energy sector, the market have
been improving with fewer haphazard competition. Grid parity will boost the
domestic market, while the price of generator sets is expected to stabilise
to the benefit of resurging business results, although the pressure of market

competition should never be underestimated.

The Group emphasis on the customer-oriented approach, we are able to
adjust the focus of our research and development and consolidating our
advantageous strengths to deliver models with superior competitiveness and
enhance the adaptability and reliability of our products. We will also foster
strengths in differentiation to meet the bespoke requirements of customers

and enhance user experience.

The Group will focus on the acquisition of resources, meanwhile, to
accommodate policy changes and escalating competition in the industry, the
Group will work on its technologies to further lower unit costs and increase
the competitiveness of its products, while vigorously engaging itself in market
competition to broaden the channels for securing sales orders, in order to
improve its business performance as soon as practicable.
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As the direction of developing the energy storage sector is identified, the
Group will continue to pursue in-depth research on engineering-based
applications for energy storage, develop scattered new energy business and
expand its business structure in accordance with eco-friendly principles, such
that the extensive experience and application of resources developed by the
energy storage business will be further enhanced to provide added energy and
impetus for future development. In the meantime, in response to the national
policy of integrating military and civil industries, the Group is seeking to
contribute to the wind power industry with the development of an “aerospace
+ smart wind power". Seeking for cooperation with strategic partners, with a
view to contributing our strengths and sharing resources in co-development in

a joint effort to facilitate the construction and operation of smart wind farms.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had I8 employees (31 December
2017: 24 employees) in the Hong Kong head office and 439 employees (3|
December 2017: 559 employees) in the offices of the PRC. The staff costs
incurred for the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$84
million (for the year ended 31 December 2017: approximately HK$86 million).
Remuneration of employee is determined according to individual employee's
performance and the prevailing trends in different areas and reviewed on an
annual basis. The Group also provides Mandatory Provident Fund and medical

insurance to its employees. In addition, discretionary performance bonus is

available at the discretion of the Directors.

HEGEEREMN (£8) SRAT 2018 £ 8



AR E &

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R4 35 Ol A
SEMR

0145 128 AEEZTKT —REERNDEK
BB 4B - EEEEMR0758T
EREREESN2IERT TBARZEEES
RREMERR  BRAERE BN
EYPFEREZES WEASEEAEHE -
0185 12A31 B FIEHEFECHA -

nHRERMBRE

R-FE-\F+-A=1+—R AKEZ#E
RERIT6672BB T (ZFT— L5 : 174988
BERL) HP 346788 (ZT—+F:
169578 TT) RIFBHEXER  ERREE
BERER - AREZEFPEMHNEETE °
AREYEZTENSBR T AR PR EMD
g

ARt

RZE-NF+ZA=+—0 BELEX(E
ERBERARARIES ARIEER) 5272% (=
T4 86%) ©

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Group Finance

In December 2014, the Group completed a placing of shares and subscription
for new shares of 400 million shares, with the placing price of HK$0.75 per
share, obtaining a net fund of approximately HK$291 million, which is mainly
used for general working capital and to finance projects on energy storage
including the development of wind and solar power storage integration and
project relating to electric vehicle, thereby improving the Group's capital

structure. As at 31 December 2018, the net proceed was utilised.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Total borrowings of the Group as at 3| December 2018 were approximately
HK$ 1,767 million (2017: approximately HK$ 1,750 million), of which
approximately HK$135 million (2017: approximately HK$170 million) was
floating-rate borrowings and the remaining was fixed-rate. All borrowings of
the Group were determined at market interest rate. The Group has not issued

any financial instruments for hedging or other purposes.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio (total borrowings over equity attributable to owners of the
Company) as at 31 December 2018 was 272% (2017: 86%).
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Financial Position

The capital structure of the Group at 31 December 2018 comprised
total equity of HK$703 million (2017: HK$2,101 million) and non-current
borrowings of HK$1,641 million (2017: HK$488 million) due within | to 5
years. This structure of net asset value of HK$703 million (2017: HK$2, 10
million) coupling with gearing ratio of 272% (2017: 86%), current ratio 1.33
(2017: 1.10), quick ratio 1.29 (2017: 1.05) as well as bank and cash balance
HK$89 million (2017: HK$ 108 million).

Distribution to Shareholders

There was no distribution to the Company’'s shareholders in the year 2018
(2017: nil).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2018, no material assets have been pledged to secure
bank facility (31 December 2017: nil).

Exchange Exposures

Most of the Group's business transactions were conducted in Renminbi. The
Group expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was not

significant and therefore has not engaged in any hedging activities.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: nil).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Xiaowei, aged 54, graduated from Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics with a bachelor degree in property management and obtained
an Executive Master degree of Business Administration from Chongging
University. Mr. Liu joined CALT in August 1987 and served successively as
Deputy Director and Director of Support Management Division; Director
of External Support Division under Material Department, Chief Assistant,
Deputy Chief, Chief of Material Department; and General Manager of Logistic
Center of CALT. He has served as the Chief of Department of Development
Planning cum the Deputy Commander of Information Construction of CALT.
In parallel, Mr. Liu has been a director of Astrotech Group Ltd. (“Astrotech”),
the Company's controlling shareholder since 10 May 2017. Astrotech is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT. Mr. Liu was appointed as a member of
the Commission for Integrated Military and Civilian Development of CALT
on 30 January 2019. Mr. Liu was appointed as Non-executive Director of
the Company on 30 March 2017, and he was re-designated as an Executive
Director of the Company and was appointed as Chairman of the Company
with effect from 29 March 2018. Also, Mr. Liu is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, the chairman of the Development and Investment
Committee, a chairman of the board of a subsidiary, a director of three

subsidiaries and a chairman of the board of a joint venture.

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, aged 51, graduated from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics with a Bachelor degree in Electronic Engineering
and obtained a MBA from the University of South Australia. During 1989
to 1998, Mr. Wang worked with Beijing Institute of Spacecraft System
Engineering under the China Academy of Space Technology (“CAST"), the
Comprehensive Planning Bureau of the Ministry of Aerospace Industry of
China and then the General Office of China Aerospace Corporation, as
Assistant Engineer, Engineer, Senior Engineer, and Secretary to the President
cum Deputy Director of the President’s Office. He possesses extensive
experience in research and management. He was appointed as Executive
Director cum Deputy General Manager of China Aerospace International
Holdings Limited in 1999. He has been appointed as Vice-Chairman, Executive
Director cum General Manager (later becoming Executive Director cum
General Manager) of the Company since May 1999 and became the Vice-
Chairman and Executive Director of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is
also a member of the Development and Investment Committee and a director

of a subsidiary of the Group.
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Mr. Li Guang, aged 56, senior engineer, graduated from Tianjin University
with a Master degree in Industrial Automation. He had been the Designer
with the [4th Institute of CALT between 1991 and 1996, Division Chief of
Development Division, and General Manager of Beijing Long March Hi-tech
Corporation from 1996 to 2005. He acted as Deputy General Manager, and
General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan Industry Corporation successively
from 1998. Mr. Li exhibits excellent experience in scientific research, product
development and business administration. He was appointed as an Executive
Director and a Deputy General Manager of the Company on |4 February
2006. On 31 March 2009, Mr. Li resigned from Deputy General Manager and
was re-designated as Non-executive Director on | April 2009 following his
appointment as the Chief of Business and Investment Department of CALT.
In parallel, he has been a Director of Astrotech since 8 August 2010. He was
re-designated as Executive Director and re-appointed as CEO on 6 March
2012. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Development and Investment Committee, a chairman of the board of a
subsidiary of the Group, a director of two subsidiaries and a vice chairman of

the board of two associates.

Mr. Xu Jun, aged 50, graduated from Zhengzhou Institute of Aeronautical
Industry Management with a Bachelor degree with major in Finance and
Accounting and BeiHang University with a Master degree in Business
Administration. He was qualified as a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Since November 2005, he had successively
been the Chief Accountant with subsidiaries of the Company's controlling
shareholder, CALT, namely, Long March Aerospace Control Engineering
Corporation, CALT Institute 18, and Aerospace Research Institute of Materials
& Processing Technology. He is currently an executive Director and a financial
controller of the Group as well as a member of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Development and Investment Committee. He is also a
director of two subsidiaries of the Group, a director of two associates and a

director of a joint venture.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, aged 64, is a fellow of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the CPA Australia and an
associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She
is also a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She has over 25
years of experience in corporate finance and is well experienced in both the
equity and debt markets. She held various senior positions in international
and local banks and financial institutions. Ms. Kan is a controlling shareholder
and the Managing Director of Asia Investment Management Ltd, a licensed
corporation under the SFO. She is a licensed investment adviser under the
SFO and is a registered officer of Asia Investment Management Ltd.. Ms.
Kan is also an independent non-executive director of each of Regal Hotels
International Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 78), Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 120), Shimao Property Holdings Ltd. (stock code:
813) and Mason Group Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 273), all of which are
companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and an independent
director of AVIC International Maritime Holdings Ltd., a company listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Ltd. Ms. Kan was an independent non-
executive Director of Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company
Ltd. (stock code: 697). She was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 23 January 2008 and reappointed on 23 January
2011, 23 January 2014 and 23 January 2017 for a tenure of 3 years each. She
is also the chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee.
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Mr. Gordon Ng, aged 54, obtained his Bachelor's degree in Microbiology
and Biochemistry and Master's degree in Intellectual Property from University
of London. He was qualified as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1993 and
Hong Kong in 1994. He has been the Head of Corporate Finance/Capital
Market, Asia of an international law firm since July 2013. Prior to that, he
had been a partner of Sidley Austin Brown & Wood, Hong Kong and CMS
Cameron Mckenna, Hong Kong, Hogan & Hartson, Hong Kong and O'Melveny
& Myers, Hong Kong. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of Mainland Headwear Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1 100) and ZTE Corporation
(stock code: 763), the companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
He was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
on 23 January 2008 and reappointed on 23 January 201 I, 23 January 2014 and
23 January 2017 for a tenure of 3 years each. He is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a member

of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Li Dapeng, aged 62, graduated from University of Science and
Technology Beijing (formerly Beijing Steel Institute) with a Bachelor degree
in Computing and a Master degree in Engineering and the University of
Cincinnati with a PhD degree in Computer Engineering. Possessing extensive
experience relating to system development in capital market, Mr. Li had been
the Chief Architect with New York Mercantile Exchange during the years 200
to 2003; Chief Information Officer, and Chairman of Technology Management
Committee with Shanghai Futures Exchange during the years from 2003 to
2010; CEO and founder of Shanghai Global Financial Technology during the
years 2010 to 2012; Senior Adviser to CEO with the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Ltd. during the period from March 2013 to May 2015. He has
been the Chief Information Officer of Haier Financial Group, offering the
perspective on technology and risk management to the group since June
2015. Mr. Liis currently an independent non-executive director of LUZHENG
FUTURES Company Limited (stock code: 1461). Mr. Li was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 10 November 2015
and re-appointed on 10 November 2018 for a tenure of 3 years each. He
is also a member of the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Nomination Committee and a member of the

Development and Investment Committee.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Zhang Jianhua, aged 58, registered consultant, graduated from Nankai
University with a Master degree in Business Administration. Ms. Zhang
has extensive experience in engineering consulting, market development,
project operation and operation management. From 2000 to 2003, she
was an officer of 710 Research Institute of China Aerospace Science and
Technology Corporation. From 2003 to 2004, she was an officer assistant
and an officer of engineering consultation business department of the China
Aerospace Engineering Consultation Centre. From 2005 to 2007, she was
a legal representative and a general manager of China Aerospace Science &
Technology Consulting Co., Ltd. From 2007 to 2009, she was a vice president
of Beijing Control Technology Co. Ltd. under the China Academy of Space
Technology (“CAST"). From 2009 to 2010, she was a chief engineer of the
Business Investment and Industry Development Department of CAST. From
2010 to 2015, she was a chief assistant (deputy chief level) and a deputy chief
of the Business and Investment Department of CALT. Ms. Zhang was a non-
executive director of the Company for the period from March 2012 to June
2015. Ms. Zhang has acted as an assistant to the Chairman of the Board since
June 2015. She is also a chairman of the board of a subsidiary of the Group

and a director of two subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zhang Hua, aged 47, graduated from the Nanjing University of
Technology and Engineering with a Bachelor's degree in Engineering on
welding processing and equipment technology, and graduated from the Harbin
Institute of Technology Management with a Master's degree in management
on management science and engineering. Since he joined CALT in August
1994, he had successively served as Deputy Director of the Secretarial
Division One of the CALT's Academy Office, Director of Make Management
Office under Make Management Department, Director of Technology Safety
and Environmental Protection Division under Quality Technology Department,
Chief Assistant and Deputy Chief of Quality Assurance Department. He was
appointed as a Vice President of the Company on | November 2016. He is
also a chairman of the board of two subsidiaries of the Group and a director

of two subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Hu Wei Lin, aged 54, researcher, graduated from the School of
Mechanical Engineering of Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a bachelor
degree and from China Academy of Space Technology with a Master degree
in Spacecraft Design. Since 1991, he successively served in Beijing Long March
Hi-Tech Corporation as Designer, Deputy Chief Engineer, Chief Engineer
and Deputy General Manager. In 2007, he was appointed as Deputy General
Manager cum Director of Wind Power Research and Development Centre of
Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd.. He has been appointed as General Manager
Project Assistant and the Director of Research on 900KW wind turbine of
the Company since February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President of
the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a chairman of the board of a
subsidiary of the Group and a director of three subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zhang Wei Min, aged 52, researcher, graduated from Department of
Precision Instruments and Mechanology, Tsinghua University with a Bachelor's
degree. He successively served as Designer, and Deputy Manager in Civilian
Product Design House, as Deputy Factory Manager of Packaging Machinery
Factory, as Chief Engineer in Civilian Product Group of Capital Aerospace
Machinery Company from July 1988 to October 2001. Mr. Zhang obtained
a Master's degree of engineering from the Research Centre for Intelligent
Machines, McGill University in Canada in July 2003. From July 2003, he
successively served as Deputy General Manager, and the Manager of Wind
Power Research and Development Department of Beijing Energine Industry
Co. Ltd.. He served as General Manager Project Assistant of the Company
from February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President of the Company
on 26 August 2010. He is also a chairman of the board of a subsidiary of the
Group, a chairman of the board of a joint venture, a vice chairman of the
board of a joint venture of the Group as well as a vice chairman and a director

of two associates of the Group.

Mr. Shen Jian, aged 55, a senior engineer, graduated from China Textile
University majoring in mechanical design. For the period from 1993 to 2011,
he has been an engineer of the technology department, deputy director and
director of the equipment factory of Beijing Long March Hi-tech Corporation,
general manager of Beijing Aerospace Sanjin Technology Development
Company, and deputy general manager and general manager of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Shen has over |2 years of extensive experience
in the wind power equipment manufacturing industry. He was appointed as an
assistant to president of the Company in February 201 | and was appointed as
a Vice President of the Company on 30 March 2017. He is also a director of a

subsidiary of the Group and a director of an associate of the Group.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the activities
of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in note 44

to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income on pages 88 to 89.

The Directors adopt a dividend policy on 24 December 2018. Detail terms of

the policy are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 3| December 2018. No dividend has been declared by the Company
for the year ended 3| December 2018 (2017: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business performance, business review, financial review as well as prospects
and strategies of the Group are set out in the section “Management Discussion
and Analysis™ in this annual report. Certain key financial indicators are provided
in the section “Group Financial Highlights" in this annual report. Since the end
of the financial year under review, save as disclosed in this annual report, there

are no significant events that have a material impact on the Group.
CHARITABLE DONATION

There was no donation made by the Group during the year (2017: Nil).
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during

the year are set out in note |8 to the consolidated financial statements of the

Group.
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SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during the

year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year 2018, the Company has no share option scheme adopted in

place.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2018, calculated
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$164,2 15,000
(2017: approximately HK$1,461,214,000)). The share premium account of the
Company is available for distribution or paying dividends to the Shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Articles and provided that immediately
following the distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to

pay its debts immediately as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date

of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xiaowei (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Li Guang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xu Jun (Financial Controller)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Gordon Ng
Mr. Li Dapeng

Each of executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company without a specific term. Each of independent non-executive

Directors was appointed or re-appointed with a fixed term of 3 years.

Pursuant to the article no. |16 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation and a retiring
Director shall retain office until the close of the meeting at which he retires,
and shall be eligible for re-election thereat. In this connection, Mr. Wang
Xiaodong, Mr. Li Guang and Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice shall retire from office at
the conclusion of the 2019 AGM and they, being eligible, will offer themselves

for re-election.

The independent non-executive Director, Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, has served
for the Board more than 9 years, her further appointment should be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders pursuant to CG
code A4.3 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of her or his independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors have been independent from throughout the year ended
to 31 December 2018 and remain independent as of the date of this annual

report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
2019 AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment

of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT

The emoluments of the Directors are proposed by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board, having regard to the Company's operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics, subject to the final

decision at the discretion of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow
subsidiaries was party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions in this annual report, no contract of significance had
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any

of its subsidiaries.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

No permitted indemnity provisions entered into by the Company or otherwise
for the benefit of the Directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its
holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements entered into by the Company subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates had any interest or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
SFO), or to be recorded in the register required to be maintained pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise to be notified to the Company or
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transaction by
Directors of Listed Companies in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTOR'’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or their associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of

shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates had interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete either directly or indirectly with the businesses of the Group as are

required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors, the persons/
entities who had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group and the
amount of each of such persons’interest in such securities or in any options in
respect of such capital were as follows:

BRESNBEI L
Approximately
= =gvi) BRH#AE Percentage of
Name Capacity Number of Shares shareholding
hAE BESIEHIRRER (H72) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
CASC Interest of a controlled corporation
(Note 2)
K& BESIEHIRRER (H72) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
CALT Interest of a controlled corporation
(Note 2)
Astrotech BERBEBAMZ2) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
Astrotech Beneficial owner (Note 2)
iz Note:

l. [LIERERBHZRE -

2. ZER D AT 2 B A 1 8] Astrotech
BE-AEATMBNEENBAR -2
REHLEBEEN - FMaRAEREE A
B Astrotech 35 A 2,649,244,000 & % {7 2 #

y
e

FEMXERAR () HRAT 2018 £§

l The letter """ denotes the shareholder's long position in the Shares.

2. These shares are held by Astrotech, a company wholly owned by CALT. CALT
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CASC. By virtue of the SFO, CASC and CALT
are deemed to be interested in the 2,649,244,000 Shares held by Astrotech.
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Save as disclosed herein, according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the
Directors, there is no other person/entity who, as at 3|1 December 2018,
had any interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member
of the Group or in any options in respect of such capital.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group has entered into the following connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions which are required to be
disclosed in accordance with Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules:

(I) Continuing Connected Transactions
(A) Leasing of Property

Inner Mongolia Energine New Energy Development Co. Ltd.
("IM New Energy"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a property leasing agreement with Inner Mongolia
CASC Energine Composite Material Co. Ltd. (“IM Composite
Material"), a connected person of the Company. Thus the leasing
agreement constituted continuing connected transaction under
Chapter [4A of Listing Rules.

The leasing agreement was early terminated on 30 September
2018 due to the production capacity of the wind turbine blades
was unable to achieve economies of scale. The wind turbine
blades industry in China has had a seriously excess production
capacity, and the Group intended to discontinue the production
of wind turbine blades but retained the necessary repair capacity

for wind turbine blades.

The total lease amount received by IM New Energy pursuant
thereto for the year 2018 only amounted to RMB3,886,060 in

total while the agreed annual amount of was RMB5,181,413.
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Transaction

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above Continuing Connected Transaction for the year ended 3|
December 2018 and confirmed that the Continuing Connected

Transaction has been entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from

independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.

The Auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740,
Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect
of the Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed above in
accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A56. A copy of the
auditor's letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock

Exchange.



(I mEXSH
BEEATZFENE L EFE#

kA BBBEN T4 ()@)() B Q)
#HASIRBEBTMNBZWBARMK
REFBERETAR ((MEARESE])
sk RBHR B % (B A ST ER) ER T

ERER AR ASRERRED BB
ARAZANEERRRFEREERRE -
MMmAR BRI AFRB MEAT
BEHRERDBBERS  RMBELET
RAIE4AZE  EREBERONET
BERERRIEEGRRRERTIRER
BEBAER BEXREHSETHE -
R R AR AL 2 ARE o

AFEF2HARERA B MRME
33

FREERES S DEERARAE LTR
B 4AZEZWBERTE -

HREALZEXZ S

EXBENRERERF T BB BN BRE
RABETHEREEALZRS - B EXBRER
MEXZRBERERSN RELTRRE
[4A G HEEMEREAL I RS RBELS

FRiT BANER HHERNAEBEA
BHERRI 4] -

_‘
op

EEEREE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(I1) Connected Transactions
Loans from Shareholder or Fellow Subsidiary

There were loans advances from CALT through CASC's subsidiary,
Aerospace Science and Technology Finance Co. Ltd. ("ASTF") or from
ASTF (with guarantee from CALT) to Beijing Energine as set out in
note 41(i)(2)(1) and (2) to the consolidated financial statements. Since
CALT and CASC are intermediate major shareholder and ultimate
major shareholder, of the Company respectively and ATSF is a CASC's
subsidiary, the loans were connected transactions yet they were
exempted from requirements of disclosure, reporting and shareholders'
approval by virtue of interests relating to the loans being of commercial
terms or better to Beijing Energine and no security made for the loans
under Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.

Details could be referred to the note 33 to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

The above continuing connected transactions are confirmed that they
have complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The continuing connected transactions disclosed above also constitute related
party transactions under the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. Save
as the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions disclosed
above, no other related party transactions are connected transactions under
rule [4A of the Listing Rules.

A summary of significant related party transactions made during the year was

disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the vear ended 31 December 2018, turnover attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 91% of the
Group's turnover and turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer
accounted for approximately 34% of the Group’s turnover. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers
of the Group accounted for approximately 86% of the Group’s purchases
and purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier accounted for
approximately 57% of the Group's purchases. None of the Directors, their
associates or, to the best knowledge of the Directors, any shareholder who
owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital had any interests in

the above five largest customers or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum public
float of 25% as required under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 3|
December 2018 and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate goverance
practices. A detailed Corporate Governance Report of the Company for the

year is set out on pages 34 to 52 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

A detailed Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company for

the year is set out on pages 53 to 80 of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group does not have any material subsequent events after 31 December

2018 and up to the date of this annual report.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2019 AGM s currently planned to be held on Friday, 31 May 2018. A
notice convening the 2019 AGM and all other relevant documents will be

published and dispatched to the Shareholders in due course.

AUDITOR

A resolution would be submitted at the 2019 AGM to propose for the re-
appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, if eligible, as auditor of the

Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Xiaowei

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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This report describes the Company's corporate governance practices and
explains the application of the principles in the CG Code set out in Appendix
[4 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year")
and includes any significant subsequent events for the period up to the date of

this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognises that corporate governance practices are
fundamental to the smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company
and its ability to attract investment, protect the rights of shareholders and

enhance shareholder value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
and, where appropriate, adopted the recommended best practices set out in
the CG Code throughout the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings
set out in the Model Code. The Company had made specific enquiries of
each Director, all Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the
required standard of dealings regarding securities transactions throughout the

Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer are separate and
exercised by different individuals in order to reinforce their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility, and to avoid power is not
concentrated in any one individual. The chairman of the Board is the executive
Director, Mr. Liu Xiaowei, who was appointed immediately following the
resignation of Mr. Han Shuwang with effect from 29 March 2018; and the chief

executive officer of the Group is another executive Director, Mr. Li Guang,
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The chairman of the Board is mainly responsible for ensuring that the
Board is functioning properly, with good corporate governance practices
and procedures; and appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and that their views are communicated to
the Board as a whole. The chief executive officer of the Group, supported
by the executive directors and senior management, is mainly responsible
for managing the Group’s businesses, including the implementation of major

strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Board
comprises four executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors namely as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xiaowei (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Li Guang (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Xu Jun (Financial Controller)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice

Mr. Gordon Ng

Mr. Li Dapeng

Each of the Directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 17 to 20
of this annual report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills, experience
and qualifications. Save as disclosed therein, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant

relationship among the members of the Board.
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Meetings of the Board (the “Board Meetings”) are held at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board Meetings of the year
are scheduled in advance and at least 14 days’ notice is given to Directors
so as to give them an opportunity to attend. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for the Board Meetings. The
Directors may attend a meeting in person or may participate by means of a
conference telephone or similar communication equipment by means of which

all persons participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each other.

Apart from the regular Board Meetings, the chairman of the Board also held a
meeting with all independent non-executive Directors, without the presence

of the other executive Directors.

During the Year, nine Board Meetings and the annual general meeting (2018
AGM") of the Company were held, at which the attendance of each Director

is set out as follows:

(HE/EB7)EBRY
Number of Meetings
(Attended/Held)
—E-N\&§
Exees BRREAFRE
Board Meetings 2018 AGM
HITES Executive Directors
AR K (K (1)) Mr. Liu Xiaowei (Note (1)) 6/6 /1
IBEREE Mr. Wang Xiaodong 99 1/
FTREE Mr. Li Guang 8/9 1/
FTUR A Mr. Xu Jun 9/9 /1
FHTES Non-Executive Directors
mBRE M) Mr. Liu Xiaowei (Note (1)) 3/3 TERANA
RIS (A (2)) Mr. Han Shuwang (Note (2)) 3/3 A N/A
BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
BEELLE Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 99 1/
RERTE Mr. Gordon Ng 8/9 1/l
FRIERE Mr. Li Dapeng 8/9 1/

HEMKREREN (£8) SR 2018 £ K
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Note:

(1) Following the resignation of Mr. Han, Mr. Liu Xiaowei was re-designated from
the non-executive Director to the executive Director; further appointed
as the chairman of each of the Board, the Nomination Committee and the
Development and Investment Committee; and ceased to be a member of the
Audit Committee with effect from 29 March 2018: and

(2)  Mr. Han Shuwang resigned as the non-executive Director, the chairman of each
of the Board, the Nomination Committee and the Development and Investment
Committee with effect from 29 March 2018.

The Board is responsible for determining those matters that are to be retained
for full Board including, but not limited to, overall strategy and long-term
objectives, new business activities, annual budgets, business plans and financial
statements, interim and final results announcements, material acquisitions and
disposals of assets, investments, capital projects and commitments, annual
internal control assessment, funding and risk management policies as well as
connected transactions.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility in respect of
management and administrative functions to management including, but not
limited to, implementing and achieving the strategies and objectives set by
the Board as well as overseeing the performance of different business units/
departments and monitoring and implementing proper risk management and
internal controls systems.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties. The
terms of reference of Corporate Governance Functions was adopted by the
Board on 30 March 2012. The main corporate govemance duties which are

being performed by the Board are as follows:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual, if any, applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

There are currently three independent non-executive Directors. Each of the
independent non-executive Director was appointed or re-appointed with a

fixed term of 3 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules in appointment of a sufficient number of
three independent non-executive Directors, at least one third of the Board,
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and
financial management expertise. All independent non-executive Directors
bring independent judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct through
their participating in the Board Meetings and the meetings of the Board
Committees.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors their annual confirmation of independence and considered that each
of the independent non-executive Directors is independent upon taking into

factors for assessing independence as set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy™).
In determining the composition of the Board, the Company considers whether
a candidate will bring potential complementary benefits to the Board and
contribute to the improvement of the overall competence, experience and

expertise of the Board.

The Company may consider the diversity of the composition of the Board in
various aspects, including professional experience and qualifications, gender,
age, ethnicity, and cultural and educational background, as well as any other

factors that the Board from time to time deems relevant and appropriate.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to experience and expertise, professional experience
and qualifications, gender, age, ethnicity and cultural and educational
background. The Board, through the Nomination Committee, will review this

policy as and when appropriate to ensure its effectiveness.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

The Directors acknowledge the need to continue to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills for making contributions to the Company.
The participation by individual Directors in the continuous professional
development program with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and

duties of a director of the Company in the Year is recorded as follows:

MESAERN SHEMHE
Reading Attending
monthly updates Seminars/

and reference development

materials programmes
HTES Executive Directors
BIRE L E Mr. Liu Xiaowei v v
FBREE Mr. Wang Xiaodong v -
FhELE Mr. Li Guang v v
i Mr. Xu Jun v v
BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
BEBRLL Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice v v
RERTE Mr. Gordon Ng v v
FREE A Mr. Li Dapeng v v
EERERTHABRE Insurance for Directors and Officers

ARACAEEZRRRTRABRRHEER
BRTBABEERR (EZRSRITHRAR
R - KRR BFREADTEZRBRT
BABREZRE - RERRRRZBERY
BEANRRERR  BRALARAEERS
BOBRABRERARELRE - RAFE -
MEHHEENRE -
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The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance (“D&O
Insurance”) for Directors and officers of the Company. The Company
undertakes an annual review of the Company's D&O Insurance policy in terms
of the amount of cover, the reputation and financial strength of the potential
insurer and the provisions of the insurance policy to ensure that sufficient
cover and protection are provided to the Directors and officers of the

Company. During the Year, no claim was made against the Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises four

members, one executive Director namely Mr. Li Guang; and three independent

non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Gordon Ng, Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice and

Mr. Li Dapeng. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Gordon

Ng.

The Board adopted terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee on

30 March 2012. The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are as

follows:

(i)  to recommend to the Board on the Company's policy and structure for
all Directors’ and senior management's remuneration;

(i) to review and approve the management's remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

(i) to recommend to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management;

(iv)  to recommend to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors;

(v)  to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment;

(vi)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

(vii)  to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding

his own remuneration.
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AEERABAT=ZREMEZEEEE TZ8E€  During the Year, three meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held,
KELEZSGRNLEHIIMT at which the attendance record of each committee member is set out as
follows:

(HE/87) 8RR
Number of
Meetings
(Attended/Held)

FHMZEEERE Remuneration Committee Members
RERKE(EE) Mr. Gordon Ng (Chairman) 3/3
FhELE Mr. Li Guang 3/3
BERLT Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 3/3
FARBEEE Mr. Li Dapeng 3/3

SMEBEeRAEEZTENEBRENEES The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the Year was
s EET BT pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee and is

summarised below:

() BI2EEENESREBEABHFHZER (i)  reviewed and recommended to the Board on the existing remuneration

EYBBRE (RELRER) TRESE policy (structure and procedure) for all Directors’ and senior
REEEES management's remuneration;

iy BECEFHMBEEZRAFELINAT (i) recommended to the Board on the amount of remuneration to be paid
BEATES RS REBAEZHEWE to each executive Director and senior management member for the
HonEEeREREERZS & Year with reference to corporate goals and objectives; and

(i) BAEANESSESR 2 GNEZR (i) recommended to the Board on remuneration proposals for the new
EECREHERES - appointed chairman of the Board.

HE-_Z-N\F+-A=+—BILEE &2Q The remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Company
FNEEREREEAEREHEER S 2 5B for the year ended 31 December 2018, by band is set out below:
LN

AE
Number of

individuals

Z % 1,000,000 7T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 9
1,000,000 7T = 1,500,0007% 7T HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 3

HEMKREREN (£8) SR 2018 £ K
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Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises of five
members, two executive Directors namely Mr. Liu Xiaowei and Mr. Xu Jun;
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Kan Lai Kuen,
Alice, Mr. Gordon Ng and Mr. Li Dapeng. The chairman of the Nomination
Committee is the chairman of the Board, Mr. Liu Xiaowei, who was appointed

following the resignation of Mr. Han Shuwang with effect from 29 March 2018.

The Board adopted terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on 30
March 2012. The Board revised the terms of reference to be aligned with the
new code provision A5.5 of the CG Code on 26 February 2019. The Board
also adopted a nomination policy providing the nomination procedures and
the process and criteria shall be adopted by the Nomination Committee to

select and recommend candidates for directorship on 24 December 2018.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:—

() to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed change to the Board to

complement the Company's corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship;

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in

particular the chairman and the chief executive of the Company;

(v)  to review the policy (as above) on Board diversity and the measurable
objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Board diversity
policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure

of its review results in the corporate governance report annually; and
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(vi)  where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
independent non-executive director at the general meeting, the
Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant

general meeting:

(@)  the process used for identifying the individual and why the Board
believes the individual should be elected and the reasons why it

considers the individual to be independent;

(b) if the proposed independent non-executive director will be
holding their seventh (or more) listed company directorship, why
the Board believes the individual would still be able to devote

sufficient time to the Board;

(c)  the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can bring
to the board; and

(d)  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.

During the Year, three meetings of the Nomination Committee were held, at

which the attendance record of each committee member is set out as follows:

(HfE/2B17)EERY
Number of
Meetings
(Attended/Held)

Nomination Committee Members
Mr. Liu Xiaowei (Chairman) (Note (1) above) 11
Mr. Han Shuwang (Note (2) above) 2/2
Mr. Xu Jun 3/3
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 3/3
Mr. Gordon Ng 3/3
Mr. Li Dapeng 3/3
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee for the Year was

pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee and is

summarised below:

reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board to implement the Company's
corporate strategy,

assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to the Listing Rules;

recommended to the Board on the change of each of the chairman
of the Board, the Nomination Committee, and Development and
Investment Committee;

recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of one independent
non-executive Director; and

recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors who have offered themselves for re-election at the 2018
AGM.

Any Director appointed (i) to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until

the first general meeting of shareholders subsequent to his appointment and

be subject to re-election at such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the existing

Board shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting of the

Shareholders and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting under
the Articles.
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Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises of three
members, namely Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, Mr. Gordon Ng and Mr. Li Dapeng,
and all of the committee members are independent non-executive Directors.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, with
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and financial management

expertise.

The Board adopted and revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
on 30 March 2012 and on 24 March 2015 respectively. The Board further
revised the terms of reference to be aligned with the revised code provision
C.32 of the CG Code on 26 February 2019. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

(i)  to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to answer any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(i) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards;

(i)~ to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, annual
report and accounts and half-year report and to review any significant

financial reporting judgments contained therein;

(iv)  to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and

internal control systems;

(v)  to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to

have effective intemal control systems;

(vi)  to consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and

management’s response to these findings;

(Vi) to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced, has
appropriate standing within the Company and to review and monitor its

effectiveness; and

(viii) to review the Group’s financial accounting policies and practices.
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During the Year, two meetings of the Audit Committee were held, at which

the attendance record of each committee member is set out as follows:

(HFEBIT) EERE
Number of
Meetings
(Attended/Held)

Audit Committee Members
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (Chairman) 212
Mr. Gordon Ng 2/2
Mr. Li Dapeng 212
Mr. Liu Xiaowei ((Note (1) above)) 11

The work performed by the Audit Committee for the Year was pursuant to
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and is summarised below:—

() reviewed and discussed with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”),
the external auditor of the Company, before submission to the Board
the Company's consolidated financial statements in the annual report,
interim report and significant financial reporting judgments contained

therein for monitoring the integrity of the reports;

(i) reviewed the reports from the internal audit department on assessment
of the effectiveness of risk management and the internal control system
of the Group covering material controls for financial, operational,

compliance and risk management;
(i) reviewed the continuing connected transactions; and

(iv)  reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on re-appointment

of external auditor.

Development and Investment Committee

As at the date of this report, the Development and Investment Committee
comprises five members, namely Mr. Liu Xiaowei, Mr. Wang Xiaodong, Mr. Li
Guang, Mr. Xu Jun and Mr. Li Dapeng. The chairman of the Development and

Investment Committee is Mr. Liu Xiaowel.

The main duty of the Development and Investment Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s development and investment
plan and strategies. No meeting of the Development and Investment
Committee was held during the Year. However, one meeting of the Board
was held with full Board members, for discussing and approving the business

plan and budget for the Year.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has engaged Deloitte as its external auditor subject to be re-
appointed by the Shareholders at the 2019 AGM.

The aggregate remuneration in respect of services provided by Deloitte for

the Year paid or payable to them is set out as follows:

FET
HK$'000
Hait R Audit services 3,200
Hh EZE B AR TS Interim review services 500
3,700
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ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

There were no changes in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of

the Company during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018
and of ensuring that the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Company is in accordance with the applicable standards and requirements.
The statement of the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's

Report on pages 81 to 87 of the Annual Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group's
assets. The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable assurance that material misstatements or losses can be

avoided, and to manage and minimise risks of failure in operational systems.

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, has reviewed
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The internal audit team of the Company performs regular reviews
of all material controls, including risk management, financial, operational
and compliance controls of the Group and evaluates their adequacy and
effectiveness on a continuing basis. The annual audit plan is discussed and
agreed every year with the Audit Committee. A report of audit findings is
submitted to the members of the Audit Committee, discussed at the meetings
of the Audit Committee and then report to the Board. The audit reports
are then followed up by the internal audit team to ensure recommended
actions have been taken on the findings previously identified such that they
are properly resolved. Internal audits are designed to provide the Board with
reasonable assurance that sound and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are implemented for protecting the assets of the

Group and identifying business risks.

The Board has overseen the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems covering risk management and all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance for the year under review and
in view of the above, it opined that the Group's risk management and internal
control systems are effective, adequate and in compliance with the code

provisions on risk management and internal control of the CG Code.

The Company has implemented its policy and procedures on inside
information, which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary shall provide assistance to the Board and ensure
efficient information circulation within the Board and, in compliance with the
policies and procedures of the Board, provide advises on governance matters
to the Board, facilitate induction of Directors and monitor their trainings and

continuous professional development.

Following the resignation of Ms. Luo Xiao Jing and Ms. Li Shan Mui on 14
January 2019 and 26 March 2019 respectively, Mr Yu Ngai has been appointed
as company secretary of the Company pursuant to rule 3.28 of the Listing
Rules with effect from 26 March 2019. The Company Secretary must take
no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training to update his skills
and knowledge. Each of Ms. Luo, Ms. Li and Mr. Yu has confirmed that they

undertook over |5 hours of professional training during the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

During the Year, the Board adopted a dividend policy with an aim to provide
the Shareholders with stable and sustainable retums, pursuant to which the
Board will take the following factors in proposing any dividend distribution and

determining dividend payout:
(i) the actual and expected performance and liquidity of the Company;

(i) the expected requirement for working capital and future investment of

the Group;

(iify  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and its

subsidiaries;

(iv)  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the
Group's lenders; and

(v)  any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

The Board shall review this policy against the financial performance and market

condition from time to time and to amend it as and when necessary.

The distribution of dividend by the Company is subject to applicable laws and
regulations including the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely and effective
communication with the Shareholders and potential investors. Information in
relation to the Group is disseminated to the Shareholders in a timely manner
through a number of formal channels including quarterly, interim and annual

reports, announcements and circulars.

The Group encourages its shareholders to attend annual general meeting
("*AGM") to ensure a high level of accountability and to be kept informed of
the Group's strategy and goals. The Chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each of the Board Committees, or in their absence, other members of
the respective committees, are available to answer any questions from the
shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed by the Board in respect of
each issue to be considered at the AGM, including the re-election of Directors
and if an independent non-executive director serves more than 9 years. An
AGM circular was distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business
days prior to the AGM (at least 10 clear business days in the case of all other
general meetings), setting out details of each proposing resolution, poll voting

procedures and other relevant information.

As a channel to further effective communication, the Group maintains a
website (http://www.energine.hk) at which the announcements, business
developments and operations, financial and corporate information of the
Group and some policies including the shareholders communications policy,
procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director,
whistleblowing policy and other information are posted under the section of

Investor Relations of the Company's website.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 72, shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition (“the Written Requisition”),
specifying the proposed resolution (“the Proposed Resolution”) accompanied
by a statement in respect of the matter referred to in the Proposed
Resolution, to the Company's secretary at its Head Office, to request the
Board to include the Proposed Resolution in the agenda for the annual general
meeting or to require an extraordinary general meeting to be convened by

the Board for transaction of any business specified in such Written Requisition.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing by post, by email or by fax through the Company Secretary
Department whose contact details are as follows:

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
Suite 4701, 47th Floor, Central Plaza

|8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Email: cs@energine.hk

Fax no. +852 2531 0088



BE HEREARE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

AR AHRE

FREFEHMEBN20I8F | A1 BE2018
FNRANRERRE HEEBRELR=TH
HEREERE BERBEIEBERAREE
38 RS E’J%ﬂ"& RBRETRBE B
ARGABRARES ETRRME27(RE
%i@&ﬁxéi&iia%WESG%a%\)#ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁi'
W E BT ESGHEIFE e [ TETRARRE ] 73

BERRER

BRAERCHARENERARRE  CHER
BAEBHKMEEBERNERR - WBEERER
B E & energine@energinehk sk F 2 2 & /&
BFBEE I8P IREGA7TB4701 = -

BB

REEARENREERRAD  ANREE
IR %i@&%?/ﬁ VEMERBRERE A&
BEAmE R AMET T EE MR o RPIPACESG
Ta%\%ﬁ)@fﬁﬂ’\]ﬂif‘ HEREAEERAEAL
BETEZHTENZEREE - BRE R
R219F I ARTHEREREEN#  B1IE
HEgEkEIRERAE  RMURNEER
NEHREERE - ‘i@&a/uﬁﬁfﬁ&$ﬁ&
FD EERBERNEBRTAFRERBRE
EREANRETINASHERMEHA ﬁ
|6 T8 & RE W 58l BB E B8 -

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report mainly sets out a summary of the strategies and the performance
of the Group for the period from | January 2018 to 31 December 2018 in
terms of environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) aspects. The report
principally covers the business of manufacturing and distribution of wind
turbines and wind farm operations. This report was prepared in accordance
with the ESG Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) as set out in Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing The Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, and it has complied with the “Comply or Explain”
provisions in the ESG Guide.

Comments and Feedback

We value your comments and feedback on this report, and your comments
will help us to improve the performance in the future. Do not hesitate to give
your comments, if any, by email (energine@energine.hk) or by post (Suite
4701, 47th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong).

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To determine key points and content of this report as well as review its own
ESG performance and strategies, the Group has conducted a materiality
assessment during the reporting period. Based on the ESG issues set out in
the ESG Guide, we have consolidated a list of issues for materiality assessment.
By conducting interviews with the most senior management in January 2019
via an independent consultant, as well as small group discussions among
employees and employee engagement surveys, we have successfully collected
the stakeholders’ issues of concemn and performance rating of the ESG work
of the Group. Material issues were identified and prioritised based on the
comments from the management and the results of the employee engagement

surveys, and |6 issues were identified as issues of concem.
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HEERKBREBEZHINWT (RELIK  The following table summarizes the material issues most relevant to us (in
F) ZEERHFPFE—EREZEWSAE  order of priority) and their respective key performance indicators. The top 5

BRBIHE issues in the table are classified as issues of major concern:
SEER
Priority
of the
Issues of importance Issues Material Issues Key Performance Indicators
EXBLHE | BTENREE SR RS (BHBY) RS - MRAIEIEE | B2
Issues of major concemn Employee training and support  Development and Training (aspect B3) general disclosure, KPI B3.1, B3.2
2 RERELZ2 EEze(EmB) —HRKE
Occupational health and safety Health and safety (aspect B2) general disclosure
3 B TREFHAH BB (BHBI) —MEE
Grievance mechanism for Employment (aspect BI) general disclosure
employees
4 YELE A ERER(BEAY) —REE  BREAMERALS
Use of matenials Use of resources (aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.5
5 BHRRER /B BERER (BEAY) —RRE - BREMERALl ALY BERX
RER(BEA3) —RRE  BREWERAS
Energy saving/low carbon Use of resources (aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.1, A2.3; the
environment and natural resources (aspect A3) general disclosure,
KPI A3

TEMABRER (£8) RO 2018 £
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HEER
HF
Priority
of the

Issues of importance Issues

BiIERE
Issues of concern

#E

Material Issues

BRENER

Key Performance Indicators

6 HE B EE A HERER (EmBS) —RKE  BREMIERB52
HEREXRA
Assessment on social Supply chain management (aspect B5) general disclosure, KPI B5.2
responsibility performance of
suppliers/contractors
7 BT HEBR AR REE R (BEBI)—HHRE  BRENESEL
Related statistics and policies ~ Employment (aspect BI) general disclosure, KPI BI.|
on staff
8 B2 g (BmAL) —RBE  BREMERAIZ Al4ALS
Waste treatment Emissions (aspect Al) general disclosure, KPI Al.3, Al.4, Al.6
9 EnRRBORFLESTE EREE(BEBS) —RRE  BREWIERB
Number of products and Product responsibility (aspect B6) general disclosure, KPI B6.2
service related complaints
received and how they are
dealt with
10 BRI g (BmAl) —RKE - BREMERAL A2 ALS RS
EARER(BEA3) —RKE
Exhaust control Emissions (aspect Al) general disclosure, KPI Al.I, Al.2, Al.5; the
environment and natural resources (aspect A3) general disclosure
I EmMRBHEERR EmEM(EmBS) —RRKE  BRENEZB62
Responsibility policy on product Project responsibility (aspect B6) general disclosure, KPI B6.2
and service
12 BITERRER SRR (BEBY) —RKE
Regulations and standards of ~ Labour standards (aspect B4) general disclosure
labour
13 KERER AERER(EmAY) —REE  BREVERALL A24- A3l
Management of water Use of resources (aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.2, A24, A3.
resources
14 BHESRMN k&5 (BEB7) —RRKE  BREWERFE/2
Prevention of corruptionand  Anti-corruption (aspect B7) general disclosure, KPI B7.2
bribery
15 EEEE Hin (BEAI) - BB (BEBI) - REEE2
(BEBY) - S T#A(EEB4)  EmAL
(EmB6)  RE5(BEB) —REE
Compliance with regulations  Emissions (aspect Al), Employment (aspect BI), Health and safety
(aspect B2), Labour standards (aspect B4), product responsibility (aspect
B6), Anti-corruption (aspect B7) general disclosure
16 b B ER RE A HERERE (BHBS) —RBE  BREWESRLSL

RERHR

Assessment on environmental
performance of suppliers/
contractors

Supply chain management (aspect B5) general disclosure, KPI B5.2
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MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group recognises a sound corporate governance framework as the
foundation for a smooth, highly efficient and highly transparent operation for
which it is essential for the steady development of the Group. As such, we
value “the proposition of employees’ talents to achieve win-win situation for
all” in the management approach of the Group and apply this to our day-to-
day operation with an aim to “pursue excellence and lead the development of
new energy'.

Management of sustainable development

The framework for management of sustainable development of the Group
covers three major areas, namely quality, environment and occupational health
and safety. The management systems for each of the above areas have been
established in accordance with international and national standards. Beijing
Energine Industry Co., Ltd. and Gansu Energine Wind Turbine Manufacture
Co. Ltd. and Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Wind Turbine Manufacture Co.
Ltd. have acquired 1SO9001:2015 (GB/T 19001-2016) quality management
system certificate and 1SO14001:2015 (GB/T24001-2016) environmental
management system certificate.

We uphold the management system’s principle of “planning-implementation-
checking-action” to formulate the approach for quality, environment and
occupational health and safety and set out mid-to-long term targets and
performance indices. We conduct internal inspection regularly with relevant
departments on quality, environment and occupational health and safety
pursuant to the management procedures, as well as assess the progress made
towards the targets. During the reporting period, the Group runs an internal
audit on Beijing Energine Industry Co,, Ltd., and Gansu CASC Energine Wind
Turbine Manufacture Co. Ltd.. To continuously optimize our management
systems, the audit looked at the resources allocation to each department,
responsibilities of each department and their operational difficulties, quality
control of products, identification of environmental factors and their source of
risks, as well as inspection and measurement of equipment management, to
ensure that the approach and targets are applicable for Group’s development
and affirm that the management systems are appropriate, sufficient and
effective. In the event of any non-compliance or potential substandard
items identified, measures for rectification, prevention or improvement
will be followed up at the management committee meeting, to determine
the responsible department and the period of time for rectification. As the
Group revised the system documents in 2017, (including one management
manual and 24 procedural documents for the headquarters of the Company;
manual and procedural document for Gansu CASC Energine Wind Turbine
Manufacture Co. Ltd.), we have assessed the system operation after the
revision, in order to ensure the feasibility of the management system
document as well as identify any defects for improvement and alteration.
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Stakeholder

The Board reviews the strategies and policies on ESG work at annual
management committee meeting, supervises the implementation and evaluates
the KPIs. In addition, the Board is responsible for preparing and publishing the
ESG report of the Group.

Stakeholders Engagement

The Group highly values the opinion from stakeholders, and therefore various
channels and methods tabulated below are available for effectively and
constantly communicating with stakeholders. By understanding and responding
to the opinion and requests from stakeholders in due course, the Group
strives to improve its operational performance and upholds its environmental
and social responsibilities:

BELRA

Woay of communication

REE/ Investor/Most senior BREAE General meeting
REeEEE management EHSRE - RE @ FW Regular report, announcement, circular, annual
report
HER Press release
NEEH Website of the Company
ERTESE Management committee meeting
BT Staff member BIREZARE Staff meeting
BT Staff training
BTEMER Employee performance assessment
M E TH Y Internal publication for staff
AERH Cooperative partner &2 &% Regular meeting
EXENE Contract and agreement
mEAE Quality analysis meeting
it R AT 4 /2 Supplier evaluation system
P Customer 7 m it Product supply
AR Contract and agreement
B PR Customer service
RAE Website of the Company
MmEERE Satisfaction survey
a2 Community NAIEH Website of the Company
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a high-end clean energy developer in China focusing on wind turbines
manufacturing, development of wind farm, distributed energy and PV-
wind hybrid power system, the Group bears the responsibility of creating a
green community while vigorously developing and promoting energy saving
and environmental protection. To realize our vision and commitment to
environmental protection, we strictly comply to the Environmental Protection
Law of the People's Republic of China, the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People's Republic of China, the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Solid
Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Law of the People's Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Pollution from Environmental Noise and the laws and regulations on
environmental protection applicable to the locations of our operation, to
ensure we fulfil compliance obligation in exhaust, greenhouse gas, waste water

emissions and to meet environmental standards at where we operate.

The impacts on the environment and natural resources are principally from
exhaust emissions, waste water, solid waste generated from our operation
activities as well as consumption of electricity, water and paper at our
premises. We have minimised the impacts on the environment and natural
resources by integrating environmental protection concepts into the Group’s
operation and management as well as strictly implementing control policies
and measures on water and energy saving and emission reduction. We
continue to monitor our operation model and adopt necessary measures to
scale down the impacts on the environment and nature resources. During the
reporting period, the Group was not aware of any material breach of laws and

regulations in environment and natural resources.
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Environmental Management

We distribute the management manual of quality/environment/occupational
health and safety, which was prepared in reference to the revised National
Environmental Management System Standards, to all departments and the
subsidiaries. The three key documents of the management system, namely
the "“Control Procedure for Environmental Emergency Preparedness and
Response”, the “Control Procedure for Performance Supervision and
Measurement of Environment, Occupational Health and Safety” and the
“Control Procedure for Document Management”, set out the details of our
solid waste management, emergency handling, supervision and measurement
of our performance in environment as well as our management in record

keeping.

In December 2018, we also implemented “the Control Procedure for
Environmental Management”, setting out the management responsibility and
procedure on procurement, sales activities, waste treatment, infrastructure
and work environment at headquarters office, wind farms and subsidiary
level. At the end of 2018, the Quality Technical Department of the Group
conducted an environmental impact assessment with relevant departments,
the non-conformities were corrected according to “the Control Procedure
for Management Improvement”, to ensure the fulfilment of the Company's
environmental approach and targets. The subsidiaries formulate environmental
targets based on their own operational conditions, and their production

process also need to strictly follow our procedures.

Emergency measures for environmental accidents

In case of any accident or emergency from activities, production, and service,
the Group would proceed with effective control and disposal, so as to lower
the degree of personal injury, financial loss, and environmental influence. We
organized proper training and drills in respect of possible accidents. In case of
any emergency, individual departments handled and immediately reported the
case to the leaders and department in charge as required, and then carried out
emergency rescue in a rapid, effective, orderly, and efficient manner based on

specific conditions.
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Environmental protection facilities

We place emphasis on the ecological environment in factories and their
surrounding area. There are green plants around our factory in Gansu for air
purification and sound absorption. The green area has covered 6,800 square
meters. In addition, integrated green planning has also been made for our
wind farm in Inner Mongolia where a flower bed of 500 square meters was
annually planted for the purpose of inclusion of ecological elements in the
wind farm area. Currently, the farm has a lawn area of more than 4,600 square
meters. We endeavour to create a comfortable work environment for our
staff by greening and beautifying the area, and meet the local government

requirements on ecological greening,

CONFORMING DISCHARGE

The Group was committed to reducing environmental pollution in the process
of discharge and implementing a series of targeted emission reduction projects
and programs. In consequence, the waste materials, exhaust gas, wastewater
and noise arising from production were controlled effectively. During the
reporting period, there was no event in breach of relevant laws and regulations
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,

and generation and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Exhaust gas emissions

The manufacturing of direct-driven wind turbine generators and wind energy
equipment of the Group has not emitted much exhaust gas. The exhaust gas
incurred during the course of business was principally from the vehicles for
transporting products and raw materials. The main pollutants include a small
amount of NO,, SO, and PM. We have complied with the relevant laws and
regulations, such as the national Measures on Supervision of Exhaust Pollution
from Automobiles and the local Measures on Prevention and Control of
the Exhaust Pollution of Motor Vehicles in Inner Mongolia. Every year, we
perform inspection on vehicles in accordance with our “vehicle management

mechanism” to ensure conforming discharge.
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Exhaust gas emissions (Continued)

During the reporting period, the emission of the Group's vehicle exhaust was

as follows:

e

Quantity

T Kilogram 09
Tr Kilogram 110.2
T Kilogram 92

Greenhouse gas emissions

The carbon footprint of the Group is principally the direct emission from
vehicles' engine and the indirect emission of electricity purchased. The gas
emissions in the process of electricity generation mainly include Sulphur
Dioxide and NO,. In 2018, the greenhouse gas emissions generated by the

Group amounted to 1,378 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCOse),

whereas the intensity was 0.02 (tCO,e/square metre of gross floor area).

BERBHER BEROR EHE
Greenhouse gas emissions Source of emissions Volume of emissions
BN (EE—) (tCOs) S e B SRR B R0 B B A M_SiREE 166
Eﬁﬁﬁﬂ% E’]/'L/Hﬂ& /Hﬂ
Direct carbon emissions (Scope ) Consumption of diesel and gas as wellas  tCOse
(tCOse) gasoline and diesel used for vehicles
& HE I (88 =) (tCOse) BENEND “RILIREE 1212
Indirect carbon emissions (Scope II)  Electricity purchased tCOze

(tCOqse)
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Waste management

To comply with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has
implemented the internal provisions of “Solid Waste Management Measures”
to manage and supervise the process of solid waste disposal. The solid waste
produced from the production and operation of the Group is divided into
recyclable and non-recyclable as well as hazardous and non-hazardous. The
Group recycles the non-hazardous waste, such as waste paper, waste metal,
waste glass, waste plastic, waste equipment and parts and components, and
individual departments move the recyclable wastes to a designated separate
collection station for combined disposal. For the non-recyclable non-hazardous
wastes, such as solid waste from cutting and trimming in the production
process of blade and household waste, are processed by certified waste

collection companies.

Our hazardous wastes are mainly ink cartridge, engine oil, dry cell battery,
storage battery, waste cloth (which contains engine oil, isoamyl acetate and
ink), waste mercury-containing lamps, waste chemical containers and laboratory
wastes (such as cloth, gloves and filtter materials). For disposal of hazardous
wastes, the production department places garbage bins at various designated
locations in plant or office or storage areas pursuant to the “Procedures for
Pollution Control of Hazardous Waste” to ensure the prevention of spread,
loss and leakage of hazards. A qualified company will be engaged for collective
disposal upon accumulation of certain amount of hazardous wastes. For
recyclable hazardous wastes, such as ink cartridge and lubricants, the Group
has formed an agreement with suppliers for recycling waste ink cartridge
and lubricants. To prevent, control, and dispose of hazardous chemicals, the
subsidiaries, according to specific conditions, formulated accident emergency
plans to guarantee well-preparedness. During the reporting period, the Group

expected a 100% of recycling rate of hazardous wastes.



RiR  HEREGHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERMER (2
0185 KEXIEBEENREFLMT

[E] 8 % ¥ 8

Solid waste category

BEEZEMEE Disposal of hazardous waste

BEREEYEE Disposal of non-hazardous waste
B|EREZEYE U Recycling of non-hazardous waste
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Woaste management (Continued)

In 2018, the Group’s disposal of principal wastes was as follows:

HE

Volume

s tonne 0.66
ir] tonne 80.70
e tonne 0.75

Woastewater Management

Our wastewater source is mainly sanitary sewage of our employees in
the factory area in Gansu. Therefore, we have, in accordance with the
requirements of report on environmental monitoring in Suzhou District,
treated sanitary sewage in the septic tank, and transferred them to an
integrated sewage treatment facility for, among others, bio-treatment,
hydrolysis, oxidation and filtering. As the effluent after treatment has been
gone through nitrogen removal, dephosphorization and organic matter
removal, it meets the requirements specified in the Integrated Wastewater
Discharge Standard and can be discharged to municipal sewage discharge

network.

Our factory endeavours to seek opportunity for recycling water resources. In
summer, household sewage after treatment in plant area flows into the clean

water reservoir inside factory for irrigation.
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ERAER Effective Use of Resources

EERBRENBREFIRMNEREBEIER  The resources consumed in the production of wind turbines and batteries
B KERREEMBNEREREME - BTRE  includes energy, water resource and raw and auxiliary materials. To reduce
HERANAR  RMASERYRERREN operational costs and to demonstrate our determination in environmental
R BNERETERERER - AEEFT  protection, we are committed to effectively use resources in our operation.
HFTHCRE BEEERZ2EREBRMAE  For effective utilization of resources, the Group has formulated the “Control
EHEF) P BREBARMNBARIGAE Procedures for Supervision on and Assessment of the Performance in the
ERE  AKRAREBER  BRERER - Environment and Occupational Health and Safety”, to request all departments
and subsidiaries to monitor the consumption of electricity, water and gas.

WASEMABRAD - ARIM20I8FEIR  For example, Inner Mongolia Energine New Energy Development Co. Ltd. has

BEBHRLTEARANK REKEREEIR  set a number of targets, in areas of water conservation, reduction of energy

HREEER consumption and reduction of resource consumption in its Environmental
Management Plan 2018:

EE M i
Indicator Corresponding Measures
R A K AN FKE T & 3% c BREFERKSNESEREELR FJLUFERKEE YIRZ
Water conservation Reduction of water BERH AGRKE
consumption per capita Calculating the annual volume of water consumption by referencing
by 3% annual water conservation indicator and production process, and

minimising water consumption per capita to the level of the annual
volume of water consumption

© HAZAREERESHORAKNER
Assigning a person in charge of monitoring the implementation of
water conservation

IR BE RO #E AIREE T 3% . HERBREAMIIBERRER - ABE®RE
Reduction of energy Reduction of electricity Tuming off all production equipment and tools when not in use
consumption consumption per capita *  TFHIREERAENRENLKA
by 3% Switching off equipment and tools at office before leaving
IR ERE#E AR E TR 5% . BEFEARGOER FIUFERAALE  WIRESAENE
Reduction of resource  Reduction of paper FEEIWAKE
consumption consumption per capita Calculating annual paper consumption by referencing annual paper
by 5% conservation indicator, and reasonably allocating paper consumption

quota to each employee
o EITHRRENRAREER  REETHORM

Affix “Paper Conservation” sticker on printers and photocopiers as

a reminder
. FEREMRMABANBEEMER  MATRAXBE—ETHM
HATED

Use both sides of A4 paper for non-confidential information, and
new A4 paper is only used for printing finalized draft of document

o EREESXMF
Recycling waste document

o BIEXHEMGIE - RS X FRE D &
Formulating a document circulation system for reducing the number
of photocopy of documents

+ REAMKEHEERHE)NT

Implementing the internal "“Vehicle Management System”

64 HEfAERERE (£8) SRAF 2018 £
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Energy consumption

& Electricity

YR Gasoline

%M Diesel

#5eRH# Total energy consumption

KEFHE

Water resource consumption

7k Water

Other measures for effective use of resources include promotion week for
energy conservation, low carbon day campaign, recycling grease can, affixing
“saving electricity and water” sticker at canteens, toilets and water rooms and

using treated effluent for irrigation.

In terms of energy consumption, the Group mainly consumes electric energy,
while fuel is mostly consumed by vehicles. In 2018, the Group consumed
electricity of 1,283,922 kilowatt-hours, gasoline of 53,957 liters and diesel
of 4,374 liters, contributing to the total energy consumption equivalent
to 1,342,253 kilowatt-hours. As for water use, the Group only utilizes tap
water. In 2018, the water consumption was 18,067 cubic meters. In terms
of total gross floor area, the intensity of total energy consumption and water
consumption were 22.13 (kilowatt-hours/square meter) and 0.3 (cubic meter/
square meter). In terms of production, the Group's products need only few
packaging materials such as wooden case, plastic film, rain cover, and packing

strap, to protect the products from damage in transit.

HE

Volume

IS kilowatt-hours 1283922
DF Liters 53,957
N Liters 4374
E kilowatt-hours 1,342,253

HE

Volume

IHR Cubic meters 18,067

TEBEMBER HE
Consumption of principal packaging materials Volume
/R#8 Wooden case L] Tonne 0.67
446 Paper case 18 Tonne 0.20
B RHR Plastic film L] Tonne 0.03
FiRSE Rain cover A Tonne 479
T8 Packing strap i3 Tonne 053
## BE R E #E Total consumption of materials W Tonne 6.22
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Case - Promotion Week for Energy Conservation and Low
Carbon Day Campaign in 2018

To more effectively manage and use energy, the Group adjusted its target
management scheme for resources consumption in 2018, and implemented
the calculation formula of (percentage of resources consumption to revenue
for this year)/(percentage of resources consumption to revenue for the
previous year) <I, thus enhancing the efficiency of resources use of the
Company. During the year, we organised a promotion week for energy
conservation and a low carbon day campaign with a theme of “Energy
Conservation and Reduction of Consumption for Protecting Blue Sky", so
as to increase employees’ awareness of climate change and strengthen low-
carbon operation. There were three focus areas of the promotion week for
energy conservation and low carbon day campaign:

Putting more efforts on promoting energy conservation: The aim
of the promotion week for energy conservation is to enhance the awareness
of energy conservation among employees. As such, the importance of energy
conservation was promoted through rolling advertisement billboards and
promotional stickers. Members of various departments of the Group, such as
integrated management, operating investment, research and development as
well as quality technology, have organised and participated in the exhibitions.

BAHARE: BEERRAL  BOFHRHE
#ORFEAKE TILERBEABR -

BODEFER  BRERT  ABHEEET
—BE MR LARERERRARAE R
BolMERRAN BEETHE XE

BERBEERE - EEWMABREL - 1B
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Wise use of electricity: Turn off corridor lighting when not needed,
minimise standby power consumption of computers and make sure all
electrical appliances are switched off after work by assigning responsible
persons to conduct inspection.

Reducing the use of official vehicles and encouraging low-carbon
lifestyle: The official vehicles are collectively managed for effective use of the
transport capacity. Use of official vehicles by employees are strictly controlled
through an intelligent office software to implement energy conversation
measures on official vehicles. Vehicle inspection is carried out during routine
vehicle maintenance for minimising wear and tear by man-made causes.
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Use of raw materials

The raw materials required for our production mainly are energy, water
resources and packaging materials. To avoid excessive use of raw materials,
facilitate the formulation of procurement plan by the Group as well as the
cost control of products, we have implemented management measures on
procurement and use of raw materials at Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Composite Materials Co. Ltd.. Production teams are distributed a defined
amount of raw materials. In the event of insufficient raw materials for
production, head of technology department is required to fill in a form
stating the reasons for insufficiency and the additional amount required after
verification. For those cases of excessive use of raw materials caused by man-
made factors, the persons involved may receive punishment in the light of

actual conditions.

CLEAN ENERGY AND DEVELOPMENT OF
GREEN PRODUCTS

We are committed to promoting the application of clean energy. In 2018,
the wind farm located in Benxi, Liaoning together with the wind turbines
and the wind farms controlled or partially invested by the Group generated
electric energy of 2,480,000,000 kilowatt-hours, which meant that we saved
about 80 tonnes of coal and reduced 2.40 million tonnes and 9,000 tonnes of
carbon dioxides and nitrogen oxides respectively. At present, the Group has
been eagerly expanding its geographic markets for promoting wind turbine
products, such as the Philippines, Colombia, Belarus and Africa. New, low-
consumption and pollution-free materials are the Group'’s top priority for
procurement. In the process of product design, the Group always keep in
mind to reduce environmental pollution, and enhance resource and energy
efficiency. At the stage of internal review of design, the internal document of
“Operation and Control Procedures for Managing Environment” stipulates that
assessment of environmental impacts should be conducted for materials use
or production process, and priority shall be given to harmless materials and
advanced green technologies. During the reporting period, the Group's R&D
department completed a cost analysis and improvement work on our existing
2MW permanent magnetic generator by optimising wheel hub, resulting in
a reduction of production cost and an increase in electric energy generation.
In addition, the existing 3MW permanent magnetic generator has also been
improved by densifying generator bay and wheel hub, completing the relevant

design of technical solution.
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As considerably supported by the government policies, we have also invested
in the development of rooftop solar photovoltaic projects. Currently, progress
of the rooftop solar photovoltaic projects has been made after the completion
of analysis and appraisal.

TAKING SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group conducts business in a manner of “engaging in new energy
cause, contributing to the society, and benefiting the mankind”, building up
a good social corporate image over the past years. Our “people-oriented”
management together with the following measures have enhanced the
integrated strength of the Group while bringing satisfaction and nurturing sense
of belonging within our employees.

Employment and labour standards

The Group continuously attracts, searches, and nurtures talents in addition to
optimisation of its management system of human resources, so as to create a
harmonious, diversified and friendly work environment for our people.

Our employee breakdown in 2018 is as follows:

BETAR
Number of employee

BAOBER
Ehl miZEE REER H At

Wind energy
and wind  Energy storage
By category Description farm operation and others
145l Gender F 1 Male 292 35
M Female 109 21
B EER Form of employment 2 Full-time 401 56
Bt Part-time 0 0
Fik Age 355 KA T 35 or below 240 36
365 E455% 36 to 45 69 15
46 ESSHRPA T 46 to 55 8] 4
5675% & A £ 56 or above I |
Hi[E@ Region &% Hong Kong 15 3
# B At Mainland China 386 53

FEMABRER (£E) FRAF 2018 F8§

WMET AH - 457

Total number of employee: 457
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The Group has strictly regulated the recruitment process and adopted a fair
and transparent recruitment policy to ensure fair treatment and respect to all
employees. During the reporting period, there was no litigations in relation
to discrimination in employment. In 2018, the “Detailed Rules for Senior
Management” was issued to explicitly guarantee meritocracy in recruitment. In
the same year, the issuance of “Detailed Rules for Management of Personnel
for Reemployment” has secured the legal benefits of those employees who
have not been offered any positions or has not agreed with any re-designation
arrangement due to restructuring, adjustment and elimination of certain types
of positions. The Group strictly complied with relevant requirements of the
Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Labor Contract Law of the PRC
and other laws and regulations relating to work environment, forced and
child labour. We provide our employees with various labour protection, safe
and hygienic workplace and reasonable remuneration and benefits, including
employees' insurance and annual health check. In 2018, as requested by our
staff, we update the health check scheme by providing more service providers

for them to choose.

The Group places high emphasis on staff opinion and establish a scheme
“Precious Ideas” to draw opinions from staff. All staff members from the
Group (including its all subsidiaries) may offer their advices and suggestions
to us in relation to and management process, duty and responsibility of
departments, duty of positions, quality, development, marketing, technological
research and development, operation and management, logistics support,
resources allocation and work efficiency. During the year, we received 136
precious ideas in total, 40 of which have been awarded prizes upon review,
by our special team. The award-winning ideas have been delivered to the
responsible departments for consideration, 4 out of those ideas have been

accepted and implemented by our departments.

Health and safety

The Group endeavours to provide its staff members a safe working
environment. We strictly follow the “Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and the Chinese occupational health and safety standards
of GB/T 28001-2011, and implement the “Administrative Regulations on the
Work Safety”. The Group was granted and renewed the Certification for
Safety Production Standardisation by Beijing Municipal Government in 2015
and 2018 respectively.
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Our Safety Management Committee regularly holds a cross-departmental
meeting on a bi-annual basis to review work performance and formulate
annual activities on safety. For the suppliers working at our wind farms, they
must receive safety training. No on-duty accidents of death or serious injury
was recorded this year, and all the occupation health safety management

targets have been met.

The Group organised a campaign named “Safety in Production” in June 2018
with a slogan of “Safety First so You Last” and launched video clips on safety.
The campaign lasted for the entire June, covering the aspects of fire accident,
electric shock, use of machines, operation of wind turbine and transportation.
In addition, the campaign included implementation of works for raising safety
concern, fostering safety cutture and increasing in safety level at the level of the
Group. We have established a special team for coordinating and monitoring,
for example, providing training on high angle rescue, safety inspection use of
tools and machines reviewing the use of personal protective equipment with
an aim to ensure the compliance of the safety rules and procedures by all
employees. In the event of any non-compliances, the special team will ask for a

rectification to prevent accidents in workplace.

In addition, the Group cares about the physical and mental health of its
staff members and encourages them to achieve a better work-life balance.
The Group provides its staff members with health check and mental
health assessment, and organises various activities to raise concerns about
stress management. In 2018, we issued the "Measures for Administration
of Recreational Therapy for Staff Member of the Company in China”, to
encourage work-life balance, and encourage staff to participate in recreational
therapy in spare time. Through these acts, we hope to secure physical and
mental health of its staff and effectively reduce sickness and absence rate of
the Group.
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Development and training

The Group endeavours to provide a career development platform to its staff
members, regularly organizing interal trainings on different topics, including
safety, departmental and standard system, expertise and skills enhancement.
We also provide external trainings to our staff for personal development.
During the year, our training reached 383 staff members in total with 23,420
training hours.

BNET
F 1952 2 B B

Average number

RilEEES L

Percentage of

staff members of training hour

Description trained per staff member

%51 Gender S M Male 86% 50.24
M Female 79% 53.78

{8 & Staff member =4 EEE Senior management 100% 46.80
&3 A 8 Management 84% 4031

B2 A B Technology personnel 100% 4495

% aE A B Skillful personnel 64% 72.86
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Seminars on Technology

Our Technology R&D Centre continued to organise weekly seminars on
technology, inviting industry experts or in-house senior and other technicians
to exchange experience and to share technical skills. The seminars have
facilitated the technological development of our technician team as well as
enhanced its technological level. The seminars allow our staff members to
understand job duties of other colleagues which to conductive in creating
better synergy in the future, and thus increasing performance efficiency of the
Group.
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Young Leadership Training Camp

For talents development, we have designated four young leaders to sign up
for a training course on corporate strategic management organised by external
academic institution, allowing them to participate into a training course on
three subjects, namely, enterprise resource planning (ERP) simulation training,
financial management and customer management. The courses gave them
chances to experience corporate business environment, process and operation
direction. In addition to widening their management perspective, they have
acquired the capability for control and decision making on business operation,
significantly enhancing their integrated management capability and creativity.

To grow and develop with our people, the Group has implemented the
“Measures on Performance Assessment and Management for Employees”. In
order to motivate our people to increasingly improve their performance by a
reasonable reward and punishment system, and strengthen our management
to enhance their performance and work quality, the Group has also organised
various recreational activities, such as badminton game, to build team spirit and
a sense of belonging in the Group.
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Supply chain management

Throughout the entire production process from design, R&D, production
and processing, installation and commissioning to maintenance and repair, we
require a number of materials, equipment and devices as well as parts and
components. For our procurement policy, the “Measures for the Management
of the Purchase of Supplies” are strictly implemented to reduce purchase cost
and carried out the standardisation of the purchase model. For the parts and
components required for the mass production of wind turbines, we issue
invitations to tender once a year. For those special parts and components
which cannot be procured through tender invitation, we will procure them
through price negotiation. We have followed the principles of “transparent, fair
and impartial” and “collective procurement, making comparison for the best”
throughout the procurement process. Our supplier selection criteria include
qualifications, price level, quality, delivery performance and after-sales services.
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The Group has implemented a comprehensive “Measures for the Management
of Suppliers Development” to include the requirements for environmental
protection, occupational safety and social responsibilities in selecting suppliers.
The suppliers involving key issues of environment or occupational safety will be
given a written notice in accordance with the "Operation Control Procedures
for Environmental Management” and the “Operation Control Procedures
for Occupational Health and Safety”. Any failures to improve its behaviour
on environment or reduce environmental risks, the Group will require
the supplier(s) to rectify or cease cooperation with them. In assessing our
suppliers, our team will conduct a detailed on-site inspection on production,
equipment and facilities and production sites and issue an assessment report
on suppliers within one week after the completion of the assessment. We
recommend to use new suppliers in order to effectively reduce purchase costs

and avoid the risks arising from using exclusive supplier.

The Group has established a guide on supplier rating and classification, and
the “Annual Appraisal Method of Suppliers” sets out the detailed guidelines
of appraisal, with the appraisal indicators on possession of certifications
on environmental systems, pricing and quality. The suppliers who pass the
appraisal will be put on our "list of qualified suppliers”. The annual appraisal of
suppliers is the important reference for annual procurement practice, in order
to effectively control supply chain, identify deficiency along the supply chain
and explore new suppliers for optimising the Group's supply chain. At present,
there are 80 qualified suppliers on parts and components |12 qualified suppliers

of prototype on our “list of qualified suppliers”.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

We always focus on our customers and adjust our key areas of R&D with
the shift of target markets. We are committed to launch new model of
wind turbines with market competitiveness, enhanced product adaptability
and reliability. To satisfy higher demand from our customers for product
customisation and to offer better user experience to the uses of our products.
Our capability of offering high quality and highly efficient wind turbines is
based on strict compliance with the laws and regulations on product quality,
legal utilisation of corporate trademark and proprietary technology, refusal of
intellectual property infringement and protection of trade secrets. We have
established a comprehensive system for quality assurance which is able to
ensure a compliance management of the entire production process covering
receipt of raw materials, production, product quality check and approval,

marketing and aftersales service.
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In compliance with the quality management system standards and the
requirements of system implementation, we have ensured our products
reaching 100% passing rate on the assurance test on departing plant for
delivery. For wind turbines in wind farms, an average utilization rate of 97%
was reached, i.e. high standard requirements for the product's quality. In
parallel, the Group strictly controlled the product quality of its suppliers in
stringently executing the supplier evaluation and control program. In addition,
we have also complied with the environmental management system standards
and the occupational health safety management system, and the design of our
products is up to the national standards in terms of environmental protection,
noise pollution and safety. Through the grid compatibility test and the power
quality test required by the State and based on the characteristics of domestic
grids, the Group has improved its products to enable them to possess the
low-voltage ride-through function in assuring the power generation efficiency
and operational reliability of the products.

Quality risks are mainly arising from the production process of parts and
components sourced externally, and such risks should be principally managed
and controlled by the suppliers themselves. The above risks are managed
by the measures of the quality assurance system on one hand, and through
supplier certification and assessment, quality assurance terms under purchase
contracts, dispatch of quality engineers to intervene the manufacturing process
of critical components, and establishment of insurance mechanism.

A professional service team is formed to provide service and technical support
(i.e. technical training, installation, operation, maintenance, recall and repair).
We have set limits on response time in ensuring that customers’ issues and
requirements are addressed promptly. In addition, we conducted a customer
satisfaction survey in accordance with the “Procedures for Monitoring
Customer Satisfaction” during the reporting period, over 90% of customer
satisfaction achieved from seven participants, such as China Huadian, Datang
Power and Wuwei New Energy, exceeding our 85% target of corporate
customer satisfaction. During the reporting period, we did not receive any
formal complaints about our products and services.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We have zero tolerance on bribery and corruption and place high emphasis
on ethical conduct. We endeavour to build a corruption-free working
environment by strictly following the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong
Kong, the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China. Each employee is required
to uphold his/her own responsibility and act in an honest and pragmatic
manner, and is prohibited to get involved into any criminal activities, such as
bribery and corruption, blackmail, fraud and money laundering.
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The Group launched regular self-inspections on anti-corruption. In particular,
we inspected office space, official vehicles, business reception, funds
management, employee selection and appointment, allowances and subsidies,
etc. and no corruption, bribe-taking, and other acts in breach of the rules and

laws were identified.

In the event of any bribery, corruption, blackmail and money laundering
detected, we will take necessary legal actions to protect the interest of
the Group. Meanwhile, the Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to
which employees can report, in confidence, any suspected misconduct in the
Company to the Audit Committee. The committee will then establish a case
for intemal inspection and seeking legal advice. In 2018, no corruption lawsuit
occurred in the Company.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

We have actively participated into community service activities for developing
a harmonious society. A youth volunteer team formed by some of our
outstanding employees had been designated to Jiujia Primary School in Xiahe
County, Gansu for teaching support. In 2018, we continued the “Big Hands
Pull Small Hands" one-to-one aid campaign, and organised a walkathon named
“Unleash the Power of Youth” for our people on 4 May 2018 at Nanhaizi
Park in Beijing to celebrate the National Youth Day. During the walkathon, we
played four additional games, namely rope skipping, relay race, and other mass

games, to strengthen our team spirit and communication.
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Emissions
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Information on:

@ BR: &

b) BFHETABEATENRBLIERRONER -

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

HmER MRBE AR -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BEREBENE M E) R (NER) ZE (WASEESN - BEREHH) - P6l
Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

FELAERERYAE AME) R (ER) BE (MABEEEN  BERETE) - P.63
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

ELBERENEE UBAE) K (WER) B8 (WASESEM - BEREHE) P.63
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

P58-63

P.60-61

AR EHE R ERE R ABAR - P67
Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.
HWIREAERBERZNNTE REELENRBIAEHR - P.62

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction initiatives
and results achieved.

TEMABRER (£8) RO 2018 £



EHEA2
Aspect A2

—RIE

General Disclosure

Bs AR IR AL
KPI A2.1

FSAE IR AL2
KPI A2.2

R B MIEIRALS
KPIA2.3

FSt A IR AL4
KPI A2.4

FS A IEIRALS
KPI A2.5

EmA3
Aspect A3

—REE
General Disclosure

FRE IR AL
KPI A3.1

Rk - HERERWS

B /A
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

—REBERBEAUER
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55
Description

BERER

Use of Resources

BMERER(BEER  KREMERME) WBE -

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.
BREAEDWEER/REEER(WE  Jg0h) R UTETRESE) RBEE (1
WEEBED - SRRIEHE) -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh
in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BREKENZE (WWABEEEN BERESHE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
TR RE AR AT B LABRR -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

SR EVE R KR ERI AR RE - A RBEABKB G 8 RATEKR -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

SmReREMHNAE AN E) R (NER) BEEENEE -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

BRERAARER

The Environment and Natural Resources
BEBRTAHRERRARAEREREAT ENHR -

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural
resources.

WX BEHHRENARERNEATERCRREEFRFENTY -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources
and the actions taken to manage them.
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RIE HERERRE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B &
Social
EEBI
Aspect Bl
— MR

General Disclosure

FRE AR IRBII
KPIBI.I

[EE B2
Aspect B2

—RIKE

General Disclosure

- REBERBEAUNER

General Disclosures and KPls

B8
Description

B

Employment

BREGHLEE BERET  TERZ BRY FERE Zi REBULEME  P68-69
BRABMA :

Information on:

(@) BH: R

(b) BTHETABEATENRBERIRPIOEH -

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest

periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

RIS BEEL  Fi ARNRREDNESER - P.68
Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

RERZZ

Health and Safety

FARHZ2TERERRERERLBELEBEN P.69-71

Information on:

(a) B &

(b) BTHETABEAZENRBERIRPIOER -

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

TEMABRER (£8) RO 2018 £
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—REBERBREMER
General Disclosures and KPIs

55

Description
EmB3 EEYEE]
Aspect B3 Development and Training
—RIE BRI EEETIEBREOMELREEMECR - MlEINES - P71-73
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.

Description of training activities.
FARGERIEIRB3 BURIREEBERESNZIEEE DL - P71
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.
FREMIEREB32  RUFREBERNE D  BREETKZINTHIEE - P71
KPIB3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.
B B4 ZIER
Aspect B4 Labour Standards
—RIRE BB EET a6 T : P.68-69
General Disclosure Information on:

@ BE: Rk

(b) BTFHETABEATENRBERIADINEF -

() the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.
EEB5 REEER
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management
— MR ERHEENRE I REBER - P.72-73
General Disclosure  Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
RIRERUEIEBSY HOABMERHREANED AERTEBREMNOHERRE UREBEIORNTR P73
KPI B5.2 ERAE-

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
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EEB6
Aspect B6é

—RIKE

General Disclosure

S AE R HE1R B6.2
KPI B6.2

EmB7
Aspect B7

—REE

General Disclosure

BS A IE1R B2
KPIB7.2

[EEBS
Aspect B8

—REE

General Disclosure

- REBERBEAUNER

General Disclosures and KPIs
5
Description
EmEE
Product Responsibility
ARAREERMBEORERELZE  BE BEMBIEURBRITEN P.73-74
Information on:
(@) BH: R
(b) BTHETABEATENRBERIROIOER -
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
BRARERMRBORFEE AREE T - P.74
Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt with.
R&ES
Anti-corruption
AR AR - $R - BRFROARER P.74-75

Information on:

(@) Eﬁl% N

(b) BTHETABEAZENRBMERIRPOER -

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

R EEE R RRIET  URBERITREER A - P.75
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

Community Investment

AR E2ERBEREEMELRFTENEREXK IS ZBLENRENECR - P75
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the
issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities' interests.

TEMABRER (£8) RO 2018 £
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

‘I—

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
FEMXERER (KB ERAT
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Energine
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 88 to 236,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3|
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fuffilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were

of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the

current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of

the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Impairment assessment on intangible assets of technology know-how

We identified impairment
assessment on intangible assets of
technology know-how as a key audit
matter due to significant judgements
and assumptions involved in the
impairment assessment.

Impairment of technology know-
how is assessed by comparing
the recoverable amounts and
carrying amounts of the relevant
cash generated units at the end
of the reporting period. Significant
judgements and assumptions are
required by the management in
assessing the recoverable amounts
of the relevant generating units
to which technology know-how,
has been allocated, which are
determined with reference to the
future cash flows expected to arise
from the relevant cash generating
units, discount rate and growth rate
in order to derive the net present
value of the recoverable amounts.

As disclosed in notes 4 and 20 to
the consolidated financial statements,
the carrying amount of technology
know-how is HK$48,370,000, net of
impairment loss of HK$106,298,000
recognised at 31 December 2018.

Our procedures in relation to
impairment assessment on intangible
assets included:

+ Obtaining an understanding on the
Group’s impairment assessment of
intangible assets;

+  Obtaining the discounted cash flow
forecast prepared by management
and checking its mathematical
accuracy,

+ Evaluating the reasonableness of
the key assumptions adopted by
management, including future cash
flows expected to arise from the
relevant cash generating units,
discount rate and growth rate;

* Evaluating the key inputs adopted
in the discounted cash flow forecast
against historical performance of
the Group, management's strategic
plans and expectations for the
market development in respect of
the relevant cash generating unit;
and

* Reviewing the sensitivity analysis
performed by management on
discount rate and growth rate
to evaluate the potential impact
on the recoverable amount and
impairment.



B RS =
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

. AANET Y How our audit addressed
HRETEE HRETSHETERE Key audit matter the key audit matter
ESEN  aEERBENATAESLE  Impairment assessment of trade receivables, contract assets and balances with
R R E RIS associates In trade nature
BMEEZRE - RPAEEEZEERK We identified impairment Our procedures in relation to
BRNEENBELN QRNBERBEAREA  assessment of trade receivables, impairment assessment of trade
AAESEESR EHHEEREOMEN  contract assets and balances with receivables, contract assets and
MREFEEES ENEFERE: associates in trade nature as a key balances with associates in trade nature
TEERFE D audit matter due to the significance  included:
HNE BN - e of trade receivables, contract assets . ,
ANBERBLSN © [BERE ﬁjﬁj fh and balances with associates in trade *  Obtaining an understanding of how
EAE SN E & SEPRUE -5 nature to the Group's consolidated the management estimates the
H BEEENGE NEERBE RS financial position and the involvement allowance for credit loss for trade
HRR M= EE BB PIE KGN of management judgement and receivables, contract assets and
A Eim BE EEEEAE estimates in evaluating the expected balances with associates in trade
E(‘ﬂ%%ji\ﬂ RE 5 credit losses (“ECL") of the Group's nature;
BELSTEE L pmmpngy  Dpee il e e esobions o
GEEERYEEE BEBAEBNIRE hature at the end of the reporting internal credit ratings of individual
EFE(REES SEfmeRE - period debtors applied by management
EEESREE HEARERMERNE ' by considering recent trade
B R . SEHANTHE relationships, financial background
. Z2HRE MBES and creditability of individual
B AR & B R BFEER BELAN  Asdiscosed in notes 4 and 40 to trade debtor, historical settlement
& M54 40 TR Lok (I HE R4 the consolidated financial statements, records such as default or delay
% ESEER T FIEMHK - EH  the Group assessed the lifetime ECL in payments, ageing analysis of
REHERWS & U - SHEE  of trade receivable, contract assets trade ‘receivables, contract assets
HMEERBESNR LB ENRIAE 5 and balances with associates in trade and balances with associates in
A EEERD HEEBMWKRE D  nature individually by estimation trade nature, general economic
FEPRBEER - EBALEH  with the internal credit rating conditions of industry in which the
B -HERLERE BITXRNEREE  applied to each debtor (based on debtors operate;
AREEKANR M) recent trade relationships, financial
BEETR (ERA ot e 1 e e e background and creditability of , , ,
BREZEBAN ° HEEEEEI8 individual trade debtors, historical * Challenging management’s basis
MBS % B FI2A3IATAE  settlement records such as default and judgement in determining
BEsKER B WA SHEER  or delay in payments, ageing analysis credit loss allowance on trade
MR (R BERR AP of such balances, general economic receivables, contract assets and
MBS BEBEERBER  onditions of industry in which balances with associates in trade
GEHERNERE D BEOERLFEE  the debtors operate), subsequent nature as at 3| December 2018,
mBBHALSR TER BEHEHE  settlement (for credit-impaired including their identification of
B 1T S ) R S 4 Bl B 1= SR (E B & balances) and adjusted for the credit impaired trade receivables,
ARA))  Higs s ZEBH - SHE  forward-looking information. The contract assets and balances with
SRELE RN ERBE A AL estimated loss rate applied is based associates in trade nature and the
LA B gt i BE 1 & K 5 1B &5 DA R on the internal credit rating assessed basis of estimated loss rates applied
TERE - BRERAE B3 & 5 EH AR individually taking into consideration in individual trade debtor;
BEEE X (E5 AR B BEEL forvvard]ooking information that
AR E TR &H is reasonable, supportable, and
AER . WEREH available to the directors of the
BREERAL T Company without undue costs or
)Rl B 15 ) & 32 A effort.
SERIREIEER -
P B AR A B 7 As disclosed in notes 25, 26
KM M5 26K and 27 to the consolidated
27%E - M2018F financial statements, the carrying
RA3IBEZER amount of trade receivables,
KA SHNEE contract assets and balances with
K2 NRIAE S associates in trade nature are
E R R BRI HK$1,495,086,000, HK$304,759,000
1B41,495,086,0007% and HK$127,619,000 net of
7T > 304,759,000 7% allowance for credit losses of
7T & 127,619,00078 HK$632,447,000, HK$98,590,000
T HMBREEER and HK$138,382,000 as at 31
B 18 632,447,000 7% December 2018 respectively.
7T * 98,590,000% 7T
N 138,382,000 7T °
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of trade receivables, contract assets and balances with

associates in trade nature (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

Testing the ageing analysis of trade
receivables and balances with
associates in trade nature as at
31 December 2018, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items
in the analysis with the relevant
sales agreements, sales invoices and
other supporting documents;

Challenging the management's
impairment assessment on specific
balances which were significantly
past due but not credit impaired;

Testing subsequent settlements
of credit-impaired balances, on
a sample basis, by inspecting
supporting documents in relation
to cash receipt from the related
balances subsequent to the end of
the current reporting period; and

Evaluating the disclosures
requirement regarding the
impairment assessment of trade
receivables, contract assets
and balances with associates in
trade nature in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be matenially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or have no realistic atternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s

financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concem basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Au Mei Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 March 2019
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FeEmREMEERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EZ20/184% 1243 BiFF/E

For the year ended 3| December 2018

Bt & 2018 2017
NOTES FE FET
HK$’000 HK$000
(&)
(Restated)
BEREEY Continuing operations
BER Tumover 5 75,759 263414
HE KA Cost of sales (67,434) (228,844)
EH Gross profit 8,325 34,570
H AU A Other income 24,283 16,07
Hip ez K e Other gains and losses (247,532) (15,737)
EREBERANEERE Impairment losses, net of reversal,

B8 (kR m) on financial assets and contract assets 9 (727,193) (128,660)
HE R KA Selling and distribution expenses (73,007) (40,746)
THER Administrative expenses (165,525) (157,534)
AR Finance costs 10 (82,546) (74/489)
L UNCIE 3 Share of results of associates (129,834) (27,854)
RBlEEEREER Share of results of joint ventures 76,177 166,127
PRTLATE 1R Loss before taxation 12 (1,316,852) (228252)
BE Taxation 14 (580) (5,165)
SEREEBRFEER Loss for the year from continuing operations (1,317,432) (233,417)
ERIEREXRY Discontinued operations
REERIEKEEK Loss for the year from discontinued

AEEBHE operations I (12,714) (14531)
rEEER Loss for the year (1,330,146) (247,948)
Hit 2 () WA : Other comprehensive (expense)

income:
TEEHMHEEEEIEE  Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
—-NHE2INEBEEL — exchange differences arising on
b 5 = #8 translation to presentation currency (66,293) 151,807
FRNEEAXRHE Total comprehensive expense for the year (1,396,439) (96,141)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

B ek 2018 2017
NOTE FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
(&)
(Restated)
ARAIERANBERFE Loss for the year attributable to owners
BB of the Company
-~ REREREER — from continuing operations (1,307,811) (225451)
—REBRELEED — from discontinued operations (12,714) (11,647)
(1,320,525) (237,098)
B REREEREE Loss for the year attributable to
BB non-controlling interests
- REFBELEE — from continuing operations (9,621) (7,966)
—“REBRIELEED — from discontinued operations - (2,884)
(9,621) (10850)
AEEBR Loss for the year (1,330,146) (247,948)
IATATEIEEEMAEZ B : Total comprehensive expense attributable to:
AREEBA Owners of the Company (1,384,076) (90,776)
IR Non-controlling interests (12,363) (5,365)
(1,396,439) (96,141)
BRER-ER Loss per share — Basic 16
REBELLERBRIE From continuing and discontinued HK cents HK cents
REET operations (30.22) 4l (5.43) AL
HK cents HK cents
REFECLEER From continuing operations (29.93) Al (5.16) 4l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R20/8F 12431 H
At 31 December 2018
i 2018 2017
NOTES FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
ERBEE Non-current assets
REME Investment properties 17 133,531 149,538
ER Property, plant and equipment 18 238,574 303926
[ Goodwill 19 2,004 2,004
BVEAE Intangible assets 20 63,165 212,654
EERIREE Deferred tax assets 35 1,643 | 784
REEE R B2 s Interests in associates 21 206,108 348,268
REETE I ER Interests in joint ventures 22 1,015,299 1,192,284
Bl —HaerER Amount due from a joint venture 28 104,165 106,468
BATESARMER Financial assets at fair value through other
REZ e MEE comprehensive income 23 4,908 -
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 23 - 5,144
1,769,397 2,322,070
RBEE Current assets
UE3 Inventories 24 78,291 163,526
2 5 Rk A UK Trade and other receivables 25 1,760,599 2923476
BHEE Contract assets 26 304,759 =
NG Amounts due from associates 27 252,457 303,467
Bl —fa 8 tERK Amount due from a joint venture 28 20,089 25,196
BHEMRITER Pledged bank deposits, bank balances
RITEBR RIS and cash 29 88,838 107,934
2,505,033 3,523,599
REBEE Current liabilities
2 5 RAMBERNT Trade and other payables 30 1,467,241 1,734,332
N A=WNCIE Amounts due to associates 27 25,876 60939
JEfT & &R EK Amounts due to joint ventures 28 2,459 4030
R 4 B Govemment grants 31 711 775
RIEB B Warranty provision 32 259,918 139,091
FER i Taxation payable 1,888 3,256
P Borrowings 33 125,542 1,261,793
AR EAE Obligation under a finance lease 34 - 22
1,883,635 3,204,238
REEEFHE Net current assets 621,398 319,361
EEAERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 2,390,795 2,641,431
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R20184F 12431 A
At 31 December 2018
i 2018 2017
NOTES FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
*RBEE Non-current liabilities
TR 7 B Govemment grants 31 28,123 30,225
BE Borrowings 33 1,641,178 488,091
REHEEE Deferred tax liabilities 35 18,337 22,237
1,687,638 540,553
703,157 2,100,878
BARREE Capital and reserves
AR Share capital 36 436,900 436,900
] Reserves 213,153 1,597,229
RARIER AEIEER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 650,053 2,034,129
FEE MR RS Non-controlling interests 53,104 66,749
R Total equity 703,157 2,100,878

TIREBE A2 ABEIRE - HEEE  The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 236 were approved
SR2019F3 A28 ERKRETIZ T Hh and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2019 and are

NTEEREREE signed on its behalf by:
%k $ig
LI GUANG XU JUN
HITEF HITEE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EZ20/184% 1243 BiFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

ARAREAER
Attributable to owners of the Company
NXERRE FEHNRR
B BHGEE RHEE  Property EGGE Rtbfite 2itHE Non-
Share Special Share revaluation  Exchange Other Accumulated Nt controlling ]
capital reserve  premium reserve reserve reserves losses  Sub-total interests Total
77 FiEr FiET A7 77 FiEr 77 A7 77 FiEx
HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
(Witl) (i)
(Note /) (Note )
ROITEIAIR At | January 2017 436900 86971 2732397 1399 46028 102,887 (1281,677) 2124905 85258 2210163
RERER Loss orthe year - - - - - Sy oI (08) Q4%
MESTIERELE.  Exchange diferences arising on
EXzE trandlation to presentation curency - - - - 146322 - - 146322 5485 151,807
REFRERA Total comprehensive income (expense)
(Fx)ez for the year - - - - 14632 - (237,09) (90776) (5365) (96.141)
A—BHBAREAR  Diidend paid to non-controling
BREARS interest of a subsiciary - - - - - - - - (1191) (1191
RiEHE-FRHEAR  Deemed dsposal of a subsidiary - - - - (8%2) (I75) 1027 = (11953) (11953)
&% Tranfer - - - - - 4388 (4388) - - -
ROI7E 128318 At3] December 2017 436900 86971 2732397 1399 191498 107,100 (1522,13¢) 2034129 66,749 2100878
RERER Loss for e ear - - - - - - (I3052)  (13052)  (O6)  (1,330,146)
BESFIERELY  Bxchange dfferences arsing on
EiZR translation to presentation currency - - - - (63,551) - - (63,551) (2,742 (66,293)
AEE2AMREE  Total comprehensive expense
forthe e - - - - B < (I308)  (1364076)  (12363) (1,396,439
1o~ M B2 71235 Dividend paid to non-controling
i3 SFUPALEN interest of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - (1,282 (1,282)
HE-MWERAA  Disposal of asubsidiary - - - - 18819 - (18819) - - -
88 Tranr - - - - - Y (%) - - -
R0I8%F 128318 At3I December 2018 436,900 86,971 2,132,397 1,399 146,766 107,424 (2,861,804) 650,053 53,104 103,157

Wiz AEBZERNRERARREE#TRAT
BEEARAMBAMNBARZHITRA
AEZEZBRBEAEERI1997F8A
IRETEAMBECREEERZAR
116,025,000 T hEHRRENWEE
201512 A3 BIEFERE °

Hiz2 - KthEEE

RUEZ2EERE JER
ETRRNBEES -

HEMXERAR (W) HRAT 2018 £8

ERPEARENE (THE])
H—HERBARERRE()RRETFER
K(NBEREEEBNEEESARAER
AR

Note I: The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the

Note 2:

nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal

amount of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company

and the aggregate amount of HK$ 116,025,000 transferred from other reserves

pursuant to the Group's reorganisation on || August 1997 and the amount of

dividend recognised and paid for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Included in other reserves are reserve fund of a subsidiary in the People's

Republic of China (the "PRC") which can be used only to (i) make up prior

years' losses or (i) expand production operations and reserve fund for future

enhancement of safety production environment and improvement of facilities

and is not available for distribution to shareholders.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
(& =75)
(Restated)
REED Operating activities
BR 5t A B 18 Loss before taxation
- REHBELEED — from continuing operations (1,316,852) (228,252)
—REERIEREED — from discontinued operations (12,714) (14,526)
(1,329,566) (242,778)
AT SIREL A Adjustments for:
FEWA Interest income (5,211) (4,364)
ANSNER3 Interest expenses 82,546 74,489
i /N Share of results of associates 129,834 27,854
BEAEELERE Share of results of joint ventures (76,177) (166,127)
A E Amortisation of intangible assets 33,474 23,623
ME - BELRRBINE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 31,166 28918
& — I B A B ia Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (17,417) -
EHERZ B Government grants recognised (766) (834)
REVMEZ N FER Loss (gain) from changes in fair value of
ER () investment properties 9,452 (2,075)
HE/MEME  BE R Loss (gain) on disposal/write-off of
w2 EE (W) property, plant and equipment 5,949 (78)
REFEERRZAMERBE  Impairment losses recognised in respect of
intangible assets 163,606 17,399
WIE - HE LR Impairment losses recognised in respect of
R RIEEE property, plant and equipment 23,501 -
REPREERRE L Impairment losses recognised in respect of
EXBHREMRER L trade balances arising from contracts with
EEE customers and associates 727,193 128,660
WoRiFE Write-down of inventories 62,212 =
LEECEHALEEY Operating cash flows before movements
Beng in working capital (160,204) (115,313)
FERD Decrease in inventories 13,916 51,288
B 5 R E MR Decrease in trade and other receivables 143,406 225,737
BHEERD Decrease in contract assets 6,634 =
FE B & 1 R RO A Decrease in amounts due from associates - 17,077
& EREFRD Decrease in amounts due from joint ventures - 3,343
B 5 R HE MR RO Decrease in trade and other payables (145,525) (368/477)
afaERd Decrease in contract liabilities (13,765) -
FE B & D R FUR A Decrease in amounts due to associates (33,396) (57,553)
EAAELCERCRD)EM  (Decrease) increase in amounts due to
joint ventures (1,434) 3592
RIEBHEE M ORD) Increase (decrease) in warranty provision 29,062 (7,.225)
AR ”Zfﬁi Cash used in operations (161,306) (247531)
EENNFIEES Income taxes paid (4,713) (9,745)
REEHMAREFR Net cash used in operating activities (166,019) (257,276)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EZ20/184% 1243 BiFF/E

For the year ended 3| December 2018

B &E 2018 2017
NOTE FE FET
HK$’000 HK$000
(=7)
(Restated)
REED Investing activities
BECENB KRS Dividend received from joint ventures 195,747 157,559
HE-—RMNEARR 2R Net cash inflow (outflow) from disposal
(i) B8 of a subsidiary e 18,619 (3534)
B & Qe R B Dividend received from associates 5,989 6,733
—HEBREER Repayment from a joint venture 4,283 -
HEME - BB KRR Proceeds from disposal of property,
P15 plant and equipment 2,807 265
e R EIER Repayment from associates 1,181 -
REVE RS Interest received 968 1,555
R E HIMRITIER Release of pledged bank deposits 54 2,170
BEEVEE Payment for intangible assets (51,460) (14,351)
RTHERRZBER Advance to associates (21,774) -
BEVE WEIRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (12,101) (18,598)
KEEDELE RS F5 Net cash from investing activities 144,313 131,799
REES Financing activities
MEABE New borrowings raised 1,341,018 826,644
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (1,251,075) (776921)
[RERRIE) Interest paid (82,546) (74,489)
m—MNBARIEEHE  Dividend paid to non-controlling
BaEXMZRE interest of a subsidiary (1,282) (1,191
EERMEHERE Repayment of obligation under
a finance lease (22) (130)
REEEME (A8 Net cash from (used in) financing activities
5458 6,093 (26,087)
RekREEEMR L FE  Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (15,613) (151,564)
FUzHReRBEEEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 107,871 241,667
INEEERZE T E Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (3,429) 17,768
FReBERREZEEY - Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
PASRTT R 8RR & 51 representing bank balances and cash 88,829 107,871
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—REH

FEMAERER (RE) ARAT
(TAR7]) ARHREEEEMRILZ
BRAF BRONRBEBBERZIMA
BRAR([BRM]) EMm-ARRZE
% 12 1% A 7] & Astrotech Group Limited
(I Astrotech ]) » Astrotech &7 5K &8 4
BRESHMKLZAR  FEARR
60.64% 2 #E 25 © Astrotech |1 B B (b
BE S NS B Rbr ([ X&) 28
BA -PEMAEHREEAR (ML)
BREBRERANESRKARDRZRE
PERAR] AR R K ST BIRK L o

ARBEMPEERIEU R T BERME
RENFRZAREN -

ARARZNEEBBARE - Z*/a\ﬁﬁ
BHERUNETZI - ESRA/ALR

RARAF BORBERAT LT 7(*5
ATREERENEE AMAETRAEN
2 -

ARBZEBEBRAREER TEM
BRA BEARRAELECIIEX
BERHI 44 -

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

GENERAL

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Astrotech Group Limited
(“Astrotech™), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which
holds 60.64% interest in the Company. Astrotech is wholly-owned
by China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT"), a state-
owned enterprise. China Aerospace Science & Technology Corporation
("CASC") is the ultimate holding company of the Company via the
immediate shareholding of CALT. Both CASC and CALT are companies
established in the PRC.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information to the annual

report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB") while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"). The directors consider that HK$ is the appropriate
presentation currency since the Company is a public company with the
shares listed on the Stock Exchange where most of its investors are
located.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in note 44.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EZ20/184% 1243 BiFF/E

For the year ended 3| December 2018

ERMIIRESITEERE
ilijé;ﬁﬂ'l([éi&ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ
]

REFEEHNENNHITREETESR
MBHREER

ARBREMBLR (RHEIAEE])R

AFEEERERAATEGHAMASRM

ZATH T RGBT BRI REER

eI

BEMBREEDN SRMIA

FI5%

BAMBREEDN RAFPAHZLE

F15% RAERAER]

B (BRMBRSE MRHRBAKE

2BLEE)-

2BEN%

BAMBREED BOXAFARSZ

F2W(BRIR) DEKEHE

BAMBREED EEEMBRSE

EELACHEN) F4RRBEH]
—HERBE BN
EERIF I
[¢RTA]

BAGER ERBBUBRE

F85(BETA)  RU-F-MFEZE
-z /\iﬂﬁﬂ
FREYEZ

BAGER EEREN%

F40%: (BT K)

BRI XA E S - A R B3
AIREERI BB RS LA RREY
AEEXAFERBAFELHBREAR
RRR/ RZSERE R ERERAET 2
REYESEATE -

TEMABRER (£8) RAF 2018 £

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
and an interpretation issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
with HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the above new and
amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial performance and
position for the current and prior years and/or the disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.
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EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

2./ HKFRS |5 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”’

The Group has applied HKFRS |5 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS ||
“Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS |5 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard recognised
at the date of initial application, | January 2018. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised in the opening
accumulated losses and comparative information has not
been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed
at | January 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 8 “Revenue” and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources

which arise from contracts with customers:
. Sales of wind energy related products

. Sales of electricity from operation of wind power field

. Sales of energy storage and related products

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and the
accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are

disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.
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EZ20/184% 1243 BiFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

2. ERRETIREBENTEEME 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

REEA((FEMEREE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

All) ) STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

REFERANERHHIRBETER New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

MBRELER (&) effective for the current year (Continued)

2] BFEHMBBEZERNEISHIEE 2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
EFEHZKR](E) (Continued)
I EF BB BHEERE 15 Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15
RELZ FZEE M
EEBGERE IBRMEL & The application of HKFRS 15 has had no material impact on the
RBEBHBREERSE ISR L timing and amounts of revenue recognised when compared to
RRHNERARCRBETEERT that under HKAS 18. Therefore, there is no adjustment on the
2Rt TEEREFR20I8 Group's accumulated losses as at | January 2018.
FIAIBEAEREEMAE -
K218 | A BEEA M BRR The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised
FPRANSHEEAELATHNRE - in the consolidated statement of financial position as at | January
AXEPHENABNESR - 2018, Line items that were not affected by the changes have not

been included.

R20185
RAR2017TE | B BEBHE
12A31RER BEEUEISH
i3 WREE BN E THEEE
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported as at HKFRS 15
31 December asat | January
Notes 2017  Reclassifications 2018
TET TET TET
HK$000 HK$000 HKS000
RBEE Current assets
25 REMEYRR Trade and other receivables a 2923476 (413267) 2510209
ahEE Contract assets a - 42279 42279
L E NG Amounts due from associates a 303467 (9523) 293944
RBEE Current liabilities
EHREMENR Trade and other payables b 1734332 (13,938) (720,394
AHEE Contract liabilties b - 13938 13938
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EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (““HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

MBEEERN(F) effective for the current year (Continued)
2] BFEHMBBEZERNEISHIEE 2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
EFaHZKk#R](E) (Continued)

BT BB REERE 15

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

REEZ ZEGM () (Continued)
Wit - Notes:

(@ RYBERBBHEREER
EI5%ER - ZHIJqu/\“é’%E
WS R K B B A R SR 2 B

(@)  Atthe date of initial application of HKFRS 15, retention receivables
of HK$422,790,000 previously included in trade receivables and
amounts due from associates were reclassified to contract assets.

Eﬂ%%422790000%n€§%ﬁ
DERENEE -

(b) RURERBEBIBHREE (b) At the date of initial application of HKFRS 15, receipt in advance
BIZE IS5 E R LAzt AH from customers of HK$13,938,000 in respect of sales contracts
MENKNEHEREFESE signed with customers previously included in other payables were
MIEEER2AKRE R HE reclassified to contract liabilities.
|3938000 BTEENHIEA
aMEaRE-

TRERERES M KRS LR
FISHEAEER20I18F 12 A
3MEEAMBRARREGER
EMERPEXTEHANTE -
AXERYERAVEITR -

HESMBRRRELNTE

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying HKFRS 15
on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018 and its consolidated statement of cash
flow for each of the line items affected. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

Impacts on the consolidated statement of financial

position
REREHB
g2 Al
EE2K AR FISHECEE
Amounts
without
application of
As reported  Adjustments HKFRS 15
FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
REBEE Current assets
B 5 I H b e Wik Trade and other receivables 1,760,599 295,674 2,056,273
BREE Contract assets 304,759 (304,759) -
JRE Wi Bt 5 12 B 3R Amounts due from associates 252457 9,085 261,542
R2018F 12A31 B ' BWERSE As at 31 December 2018, retention receivables of
304,759,000 B T n B BEHNEE HK$304,759,000 was classified as contract assets, and the amount
EREERRAES ﬁﬂ“iﬁ%ﬁ—?‘l £ would have been included in trade and other receivables and
ISSREERT - B AEH amounts due from associates, without application of HKFRS 15.

R E AU LA&FEH& NS
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EZ20/184% 1243 BiFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

2. BRMITREEITEEME 2
BEEN(FEMBHEE

EIJJ) { ‘:/‘

REFEEHNENNHITREETESR

MEBEEER (E)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

2] BFERHBHEESERNFISHIFXE

EFREHZKR](E)
BT BN B HEERE 15
HELZZEBA (F)

H20I8FI12A3I BAEHRER
BERNTE

2.1 HKFRS |15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows as
at 31 December 2018

KERER
B 5 2 Al
BRER AR FBISKZEE
Amounts
without
application of
As reported  Adjustments HKFRS 15
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EHREMBYFURS  Decrease in trade and other
receivables 143,406 6,634 150,040
BHEERD Decrease in contract assets 6,634 (6,634) -
E5REMBMNFURS  Decrease in trade and other
payables (175,800) (13,765) (189,565)
BEBERD Decrease in contract liabilities (13,765) 13,765 -
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EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1)
the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, (2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets

and (3) general hedge accounting,

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in HKFRS 9. i.e. applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including impairment) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at | January
2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised
as at | January 2018. Any difference between carrying amounts as
at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at | January
2018 are recognised in the opening accumulated losses and other
components of equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

Below illustrates the classification and measurement (including
impairment) of financial assets and financial liabilities and other
items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of
initial application, | January 2018.

Reclassification from available-for-sale (“AFS”) equity
investments to financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)

The Group elected to present in the other comprehensive
income (“OCI") the fair value changes of its equity investments
previously classified as AFS, which is related to unquoted equity
investments previously measured at cost less impairment under
HKAS 39. These investments are not held for trading and not
expected to be sold in the foreseeable future. At the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9, HK$5,144,000 were reclassified
from AFS investments to financial assets at FVTOCI, which is
related to unquoted equity investments previously measured at
cost less impairment under HKAS 39. No fair value adjustment
relating to these unquoted equity investments previously carried
at cost less impairment was adjusted to financial assets at FVTOCI
and investment revaluation reserve as at | January 2018 because
carrying value under HKAS 39 was not materially different from
the fair value as at | January 2018.
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Bl |) &) STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

REFEEHNENNHITREETER
MEBEEER (E)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

22 BFREHBHSERNFIHIEHBT 2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

RJ(%E)

I BT BB 2 B R 9 5E
ELZZER (B)

RHERERRRTZHEE

NeMEEZREMNS  HEB
BHENFEVRBETNREELR
EEBEAFERR BEUB
WMEENEIRRTREREES
BEAFE BHEEBEER
HEERNSREBBMBEESE
EEBRZSHESEERECE
PAR URBEERKRA MR
BRANRZEE -2 EF
BHRELECESHEIEREE
18 .

REAHE AKEEERETR
B RELERNEIR 2 BLTE
REFEKS AHNEEREE
ARIABHUHEHRERTES
BHEEBRAERNESEBE -

BREERAGECEMEREE
(EZRIEE MR EK - U
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TR RBITER) < BIRERE 2
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Summary of effects anising from initial application of HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Impairment under ECL model

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred
credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss
model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have

occurred before credit losses are recognised.

In the current period, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL using lifetime ECL for trade receivables,
contract assets and those balances with associates which are

trade in nature.

Loss allowance for other financial assets at amortised cost mainly
comprise of other receivables, amounts due from associates and
joint ventures, pledged bank deposits and bank balances, and are
measured on 12-month (“12m") ECL basis and there had been

no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at | January 2018, no additional credit loss allowance has been
recognised against accumulated losses as the estimated allowance

under the ECL model was not significantly different to that under

HEREREGEANFEIORE HKAS 39.
BEAZR -
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ERBEE Non-current assets
AHHERE AFS investments
WAFEFAEM  Financial assets at FVTOCI
2EBAZ
REEE Current assets
Z5REMERT  Trade and other receivables
BHEE Contract assets
e HNTIE Amounts due from associates
mEEE Current liabilities
ESREMEMT  Trade and other payables
BHEE Contract liabilities

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application of all new
standards

As a result of the changes in the entity’s accounting policies
above, the opening consolidated statement of financial position
had to be restated. The following table show the adjustments
recognised for each individual line item.

RN RN
R20175 HEE HEREA R20185
12A318 FI155 £95% IAIR
31 December | January
2017 HKFRS 15 wHKFRS 9 2018
7 A7 FAT 7
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
5144 = (5,144 =
- - 5,144 5,144
2923476 (413,267) - 2,510,209
= 422,790 = 422,790
303,467 (9.523) - 293944
734,332 (13938) - 1,720,394
= 13938 = 13938

104 HEAXEREE (£8) 5EAF 2018 F£§



e IR AR M o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERFMITRIEEITEEME
BREER((FEMERSE
Bl )

ASEYERAEAATERMBERK
EREHE] RGBT BB BREER -

ERMBREEAE 6% HE'
EAMBASEUEITR RRad’
BE(ARMBASRE FEREEZ
Z88)-REELH P!
BEMBRERER(BAR) FRUBASER
WISEEWNITE

BHFRYE'
EAMBAEENEIR —EERBLESR
CHES
BRVBHEEEIR ABABEN
CHES ERER I
EAMBAEEAEI0% REZEABENT
REBGEAEWE  HA/ELEZEM
CHES BEHLELIA
EREHERZINR  MHZER
ERGEAZSH
CHEY
BRI ENZ 9% HE R
CHES AfE'
FRGENZ 8% RESRAARAER
CHES R R

R219FI A I B URERBZFE
BRI A2 -

2 FHHTE B Hsk AR AR 2 FEHAR AR -

’ R2021F | A I B ARFRRZ F &
HIR AR o

! BB A A2020F I AIBR 2%
FisMEEFERRRRE AR’
MEBAFREERBENR

> 20206 | B I Bt AR R e 2 F &
HIR A o
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For the year ended 3| December 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments

to HKFRSs and an interpretation that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS [0

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS |

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Leases'
Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 -2017 Cycle!

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement'
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint

Ventures'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021.
¢ Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period

beginning on or after | January 2020.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related

interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition,
HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions to be determined
based on the requirement of HKFRS |5 as to whether the transfer of
the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes

requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for
lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by

lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for own
use and those classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application
of the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented
as financing cash flows by the Group, upfront prepaid lease payment will

continue to be presented as investing cash flows.
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For the year ended 3| December 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a
related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 6 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they were
owned.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16,

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$8,946,000 as disclosed in note 37. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of

all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
paid of HK$2,725,000 and refundable rental deposits received of
HK$1,515,000 as rights and obligations under leases to which HKAS |7
applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16,
such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be considered as additional lease payments and
included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered as advance

lease payments.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The
Group will elect the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease” and not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int
4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts are,
or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date of initial
application. Furthermore, the Group will elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application to opening accumulated losses

without restating comparative information.

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned above, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of the other new and
amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 3| December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Secunities on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing
Rules") and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the investment properties and financial
assets at FVTOCI which are measured at fair value, as explained in

accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

0 Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

J Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level I, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

J Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

J has power over the investee;

J is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

J has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if

this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's

accounting policies.

All'intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the

relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are derecognised.
A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All 'amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial

recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Annual Report 2018 e China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

111



112

n‘/-_l_\

BB ERR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EZ20/184% 1243 BiFF/E

For the year ended 3| December 2018

TERHBR

]

AERBREXS BEREREX® (R
EXEFHBE) BB ZKAR R
BEEE (WA)FIK -

WAEARTES  HEESRTALHE
BB A G2 HRAKERERNERS
B (FRLELEMAR) - B
PHEIE A T S R A B R SIEE R
FAREEHH -

g

BEESEREZREGELEM (HHE
ELXEMARN) BFAREHRBATRE
{2 7] Bk B B0 EIREE TR E R -
RRBREREARERELZEEMS
BEESEREZREGELEM (HBE
ELBMAR) RZ®REHRAMETH
ERH - A BEOREEE Rl
ETREERIE  BRAREMEE
REE HRUAEBN (R EELEN
AR & BEZREEASEERLLIH
BEMEE ZIREE °

REERBARcELENR—AREE
ABNANEMRSELEMR B2
GBI AETHERSZEBA -
EARELERSELEN (F—AR
CEABNPHRSELEMN) ANE
B THERESRRMHERS (X
ReELEM) BMRERSEM (—
AREELEM) BOMELHEERE -

ARBEHEE-RBLERAAR—HaE
CREACHBZBRERN T

HEMEEREMN (£8) SRAT 2018 £ 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting

policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group's cash generating units (or groups of cash generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and not larger than an operating

segment.

A cash generating unit (or groups of cash generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash
generating unit (or groups of cash generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or groups of

cash generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash generating unit, or any of the cash-
generating unit within the group of cash-generating units, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a
group of cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation (or the
cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating

unit (or the group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate
and a joint venture is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Appropriate adjustments have
been made to conform the associate’s and the joint venture's
accounting policies to those of the Group. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint

venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

+  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

0 the Group'’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. The Group’s contract assets
represent retention receivables for which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional at the end of the warranty period. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group'’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to | January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the

Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered

and titles have passed.

Revenue from sales of electricity are recognised when electricity has

been delivered.
Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts though the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment have been established.



e IR AR M o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TERHRE

gy

V¥ BER®E

NE BERXFBREEELE (D8
RBEME)  BRABRERRIFTE
REFREEE (10E) RiEa M EHhR
E YN

TEDEBRYE BELRRE (ER
TREIN 2B TERFHRRER
EMHR B AR ERREERER -
fhEt A E RS  RBREERFTEN A
REFEHRER Gt 2EMe
ERBEHAEAK -

fEEE HESTHAEZERTIRER
I B TR P IR AR AR A (AR B R RORUE
BRIG -KABREXEAL BLA
EREEMR) REAKBEEFBRE
AEZEERAK - ERE TRV M AE
REMEBOBEVE BERREZ
BERG -ZFEELHERNBEAR
ARERERRRZEEA MY EEEMR
Rz EEHE

RERBHERANEERRE AT
HAREAREEMRMNERRE - R
[RRCEN- =R i e Y
BAERE WEENEHREREREH
mEZREHRENE -

WE - BELRRBEENHERLES
SEEAZEER TG EERKZEN
mERERE X BERREERR
HEREREELZBERHEMSER
FREERHECERERE  YNEBR
IR

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the

effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there
is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end
of the lease terms, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease

terms and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to eamn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment

property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for

on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and

development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is

recognised if, and only if; all of the following have been demonstrated:

0 the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

J how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

0 the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible

asset; and

0 the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the

intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is

incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are

acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other

than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation

basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduce
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss than would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss

is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “loss before taxation” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

peniod.

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from

the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates and
joint ventures except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 3| December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather than

through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets

and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

Al other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial

position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the

accounting policy above).

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattemn in which economic benefits

from the leased asset are consumed.
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For the year ended 3| December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property is accounted as an
operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold

interests in the land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold

land is under finance lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to

them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives

of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the government-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the service. All short-term employee benefits are recognised
as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion

of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any

amount already paid.
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For the year ended 3| December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since |
January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial

liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon

application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

0 the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to collect contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

0 the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling;

and

0 the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Al other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through
profit/loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial application/
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
OClI if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to

which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

0 it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

0 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an

accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in OCl and accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other
receivables, contract assets, amounts due from associates and joint
ventures, pledged bank deposits and bank balances). The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
[2m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are made based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables,
contract assets and balances with associates in trade nature. The ECL

on these assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to I2m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when

assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

0 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument's external (if available) or intemal credit

rating;

0 significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the

credit default swap prices for the debtor;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt

obligations;

0 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's

ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk

before the amount becomes past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)
(ii) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without

taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about

the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficutty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficutty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent

recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the

weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted

at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost

of the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables, contract assets and
balances with associates in trade nature where the corresponding

adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on [ January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables and AFS financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. Al
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due from
associates, amounts due from joint ventures, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of

interest would be immaterial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on | January 2018) (Continued)

(ii) AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets
at FVTPL.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss of financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on [
January 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the

estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:
J significant financial difficutty of the issuer or counterparty; or
J breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

J it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on |
January 2018) (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade receivables are
considered uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the

consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI
upon application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to

profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due
to associates, amounts due to joint ventures and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.



e IR AR M o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEEMHE

pur

&MTIR(E)
2HRABRKR ()
EHE A AR RER

AEEENAKE B EERFR  BUH
HERE TR ERERAE - R
RZEMABZRABERED N REMK
Bz EBNBETHER -

]

WAEERFGRBESHAR OER
WE)ER BAKRERARABER
BMES . BRI  RIAR
H-HARBEBZERBREH
AEERBEBMFRELRERER
AZEBZ AR I EERERMEL ©
WEGREERAEK AR ERE
HEC-ERAEARERERECHE
(HFEKEEEYEBEXN) -

5]

RIERBEEMHEELENHATE - SHRE
EBRNBA KA EENBERHESS
BEARBEHMFTORELRER
FHANARERHE B R -

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as
a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash

flows (where the effect of the time value of the money is matenial).

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under the
relevant sale of goods legislation are recognised at the date of sale of
the relevant products, at the directors' best estimate of the expenditure

required to settle the Group’s obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve

(attributed to non-controlling interest as appropriate).

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For
all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint
arrangements that do not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange

differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Additionally, on disposal of group entities which has the same functional
currency as the Company, the exchange differences arising on translation

to presentation currency are transferred directly to accumulated losses.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

(a) Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the management has reviewed the Group's investment
properties portfolios. For the Group’s investment property
located in Shenzhen of the PRC, the management concluded
that it is depreciable, but not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time. Therefore,
in determining the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
property, the management determined that the presumption that
this investment property measured using the fair value model is

recovered through sale is not rebutted.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

@

()

Deferred taxation on investment properties (Continued)

For the Group's investment property located in Tieling of the
PRC, the management concluded that it is depreciable and
is being held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred taxation on
investment property, the management determined that the
presumption that this investment property measured using the

fair value model is recovered through sale is rebutted.

The potential deferred tax impact to the Group at the end of the

reporting period is shown in note 35.

Significant influence over Jilin Longyuan Wind Power
Co., Ltd.

Note 44 describes that Jilin Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“]ilin
Longyuan”) is an associate of the Group although the Group
only owns 15.35% ownership interest in Jilin Longyuan. The
Group has significant influence over Jilin Longyuan by virtue of the
contractual right to appoint two out of the nine directors to the
board of directors of that entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty and judgment at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period,
are discussed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of intangible assets of
technology know-how

Determining whether intangible assets of technology know-how
are impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the relevant cash generating unit to which technology know-
how have been allocated. The recoverable amount is determined
with reference to the future cash flows expected to arise from
the relevant cash generating unit, discount rate and growth rate
in order to derive the net present value of the recoverable
amount and management’s judgement. Where the expected
future cash flows are less than expected, or changes occur in
facts and circumstances which results in downward revision
of future cash, further impairment loss may arise. As at 3|
December 2018, the carrying amount of technology know-how
is HK$48,370,000 (2017: HK$163,519,000), net of impairment
loss of HK$106,298,000 (2017: HK$17,399,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation is disclosed in note 20.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Impairment assessments of trade receivables, contract
assets and balances with associates in trade nature

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
lifetime ECL of trade receivables, contract assets and balances
with associates in trade nature based on individual assessment,
after considering internal credit ratings based on recent trade
relationships, financial background and creditability of individual
trade debtor, historical settlement records such as default or
delay in payments, ageing analysis of such balances and general
economic conditions of industry in which the debtors operate,
subsequent settlement (for credit-impaired balances) and
adjusted for the forward-looking information. The estimated
loss rate applied is based on the internal credit rating assessed
individually taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable, supportable, and available to the directors of
the Company without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the estimated loss rates are reassessed and changes in the

forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the Group's trade receivables, contract assets
and balances with associates in trade nature and the impairment
assessment of such balances are disclosed in note 40.

As at 3| December 2018, the carrying amount of trade
receivables, contract assets and balances with associates
in trade nature is HK$1,495,086,000, HK$304,759,000
and HK$127,619,000 net of allowance for credit losses of
HK$632,447,000, HK$98,590,000 and HK$ 138,382,000,

respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continved)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(@

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have used a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates of market conditions
and assumptions made on the investment properties, including
comparable market rents and transactions with adjustments to
reflect different locations or conditions.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
assumptions used in the valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions and current development of the investment
properties. Changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair values of the Group's investment properties and
the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 3|
December 2018, the carrying amount of investment properties is
HK$133,531,000 (2017: HK$149,538,000).
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AEERAFERARFBELLERHE
EBEAWMWT

TURNOVER

An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year from continuing

operations is as follows:

2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
(&51)
(Restated)
BEREEK Continuing operations

HER N EEREER Sales of wind energy related products 33,678 234,028
HEMEMEBER Sales of energy storage and related products 16,643 3,677

HERBRSEEZEN Sales of electricity from operation of
wind power field 25,438 25,709
75,759 263414

AEERBIREFZHELERTR
s — B B R o

HHERNZERBERMS - HﬁZﬁT&b‘A
EPRGAGHEMNEHZEEERT
BHOBRGZEMTARR BERNS
REFPETEHMMBES MELEME
TNEmWAEY AREEMBAIHH
RIS ZEMAREHEDERS -

ol

HEEREMERERMS - WaERNE
FREE#EmBERTHE Z’J%?‘Z
BE T AER - EF T@Fuu*
FeemErnEm Rzl ARG Z@
AR D HOBR T8 5% - ﬁtﬁfﬁr@ﬁﬁ?ﬂﬂlﬁ—ﬁ :
—REEHARMEFIOX -

TEMABRER (£8) RAF 2018 £

The Group's revenue from continuing operations from external

customers are recognised at a point in time.

For sales of wind energy related products, revenue is recognised at
a point in time which the customer obtains control of a promised
good and the entity satisfies a performance obligation. The control
is transferred when the products are accepted on site or locations
specified by customers which is the point of time the customers have
an ability to direct the use of the good and obtain substantially all of the

remaining benefits of the goods.

For sales of energy storage and related products, revenue is recognised
at a point in time which the customer obtains control of a promised
good and the entity satisfies a performance obligation. Revenue from
these revenue is recognised when customer acceptance has been
obtained, which is the point of time when the customer has the ability
to direct the use of these products and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefit of these products. The normal credit term is 90 days

upon delivery.
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TURNOVER (Continued)

For sales of electricity from operation of wind power field, revenue is
recognised over time when the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits of the Group's performance over time. The
amount recognised was based on the observable price of the goods in
the contracts since there is no significant financing component and there

is no variable consideration.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or less. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied

contracts is not disclosed.

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external
customers are detailed below:

2018 2017

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

=27)

(Restated)

H The PRC 71,356 259,765
B8 Hong Kong 133 34
HAth Others 4,270 3615
75,759 263414
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's Executive Directors, being the
chief operating decision maker (*CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods or services delivered or provided. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in

arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

In prior year, there were 4 reportable and operating segments
namely Wind Energy Related Products, Operation of Wind Farm,
Telecommunication Business and Energy Storage and Related Products.

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the CODM has reviewed
the Group's business operation and considered Telecommunication
Business segment was discontinued. Therefore, it is no longer a
reportable and operating segment of the Group. Details are described

innote | 1.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments for the year
under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are as follows:

Wind Energy Related - Manufacture and sales of wind
Products energy related products

Operation of Wind = Sales of electricity from operation
Farm of wind power field

Energy Storage and = Manufacture and sales of energy
Related Products renewal products by combining

wind energy, solar energy and

energy storage

Information regarding these segments is presented below.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and results from

continuing operations by operating and reportable segment.

BE20/18F 12531 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEHBE RER
HHER R5EE HHER )
Wind Energy
Energy  Operation Storage
Related of Wind and Related
Products Farm Products Consolidated
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
REREEK Continuing operations
BXE TURNOVER
HIMEE External sales 33,678 25,438 16,643 75,759
ES RESULT
DELE Segment result (1,099,698) (6331)  (83,388) (1,189,417)
AEHERAFER Unallocated corporate expenses (119,301)
REHFLE AU Unallocated other income 14,597
MR AR Finance costs (82,546)
[EIE—FRBEE ARI%E  Share of result of an associate
—AEDEHD — unallocated portion (5,925)
BE—EAELEESE  Share of result of ajoint venture
—AEDEHD — unallocated portion 75,192
REMEZ A TEE Loss from changes in fair value
B8 of investment properties (9,452)
BR 15 A B4R Loss before taxation (1,316,852)
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6.
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i

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

SHBERRER(Z) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
BE2017FI12F31 AILEE For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHEE G113
HEE®R R5E L HEER Ha
Wind Energy
Energy Operation Storage
Related of Wind  and Related
Products Farm Products  Consolidated
TET TET TET TET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&3)
(Restated)
REREEY Continuing operations
gL TURNOVER
HIMEE External sales 234,028 25,709 3677 263414
ES RESULT
DEZE Segment result (222,383) 10431 ©251) (21203
AEHRAFER Unallocated corporate expenses (111,227)
AEABREMA Unallocated other income 11,573
AR Finance costs (74,489)
ElE—EAEMEEE  Share of results of a joint venture
—REDEHD — unallocated portion 165,019
REMEZ A TEE Gain from changes in fair value
Y zs of investment properties 2,075
BR 75 A 5 1R Loss before taxation (228252)

DERBRESDBEL /RIRARBA
BE TERMBERA REVMEZR
FEEDHWEEE RESEZEN
—HBERARAERRESR  URK
RORAMBARRFER MEBHT
BRAREEHE - BIEMERREE
123,909,0007% 7T (20174 : 27,854,000
L) RIEIE—R A& % 0% m 985,000
AT (20174 : 1,108,000 7T) £ B &
BEDB - WIRERDE R D BEK
AHEM S  AARERITER2HNE -

HEMXERAR (W) HRAT 2018 £8

Segment results represent the loss before taxation incurred/earned by
each segment, excluding finance costs, gain/loss from changes in fair
value of investment properties, share of result of an associate and a
joint venture which cannot be allocated, unallocated other income and
corporate expenses such as central administration costs and directors’
salaries. Share of losses of associates of HK$123,909,000 (2017:
HK$27,854,000) and share of profit of a joint venture of HK$985,000
(2017: HK$1,108,000) are allocated to reportable segments. This is the
measure reported to the Group’s Executive Directors for the purpose

of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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S¥EEHE =) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SHAAERAR Segment assets and liabilities
rEERBEDREAS CEEREBED The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
T o reportable segment.
H2018F12531 R At 3] December 2018
BAOBE RER
HRER REEE HEER e
Wind Energy
Energy  Operation Storage
Related of Wind and Related
Products Farm Products Consolidated
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE ASSETS
NEEE Segment assets 2,464,137 362,848 51,915 2,878,900
N ANE o Interests in associates 4,171
—AEDEHH — unallocated portion
R—HEAELEZ#ER  Interest in a joint venture 976,664
—AEDEHH — unallocated portion
AEDBERARIEE Unallocated corporate assets 414,695
HEBEEAE Consolidated total assets 4,274,430
=X LIABILITIES
HEEE Segment liabilities 1,749,949 2,494 347 1,752,790
AEDEMARIERE Unallocated corporate liabilities 1,818,483
GEAREE Consolidated total liabilities 3,571,273
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6. SHRH )

i

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

SHBERAR(E) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
R2017#12531 8 At 31 December 2017
BHEE EE
HHER R5ES HBER e
Wind Energy
Energy Operation Storage
Related of Wind  and Related
Products Farm Products  Consolidated
TET TET FHET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
(&3)
(Restated)
EE ASSETS
DEEE Segment assets 3,639,256 434671 165,594 4239521
HERIFCEEISAR  Assets relating to discontinued
ZEE operation 31,103
R—HBE AR 2 Ex Interest in an associate 5,835
—REHEBH ~ unallocated portion
R—BEERE 2R Interestin a joint venture 152,651
—REHEBH ~ unallocated portion
AEABEAREE Unallocated corporate assets 416,559
RAEERE Consolidated total assets 5,845,669
=R LIABILITIES
NHEEE Segment liabilities 1910968 12,724 13521 1937213
HE R FEEEBAR  Labilties relating to discontinued
ZBafE operation 22,501
AESRARIEE Unallocated corporate liabilities 785,077
RAafERE Consolidated total liabilities 3744791

REENBRBEROERIEER :

ETHENT 2%

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

o RIASEMR-BAaLLE/ y

REWRE -

BAFEAFAEMEZENSE 2 E
BEE AHEERBEREMS
MEE (FERERTEBKLESR)
N FBEEANKRERENE -
BERME IOz A ADRE

Ren®: Rk

BRAR DB & TRMNKR - &
EREEHBEREIN HERE

SRELEHE -

HEMXERAR (W) HRAT 2018 £8

all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
interests in a joint venture/certain associates which cannot be
allocated, investment properties, financial assets at FVTOCI, AFS
investments and other financial assets that comprise of mainly
bank balances and cash. Goodwill is allocated to operating
segments as described in note |9; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than certain
payables, borrowings and deferred tax liabilities which cannot be
allocated.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

At 3] December 2018
EHRE RER
HEER R%EE REER REAE &8
Wind Energy

Energy  Operation Storage

Related of Wind and Related
Products Farm Products Unallocated Consolidated
TEn TET AT TEr TEn
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Continuing operations

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment
assets:

Additions of property, plant and

equipment 10,880 216 469 68 11,633
Amortisation of intangible assets 30,410 - - - 30,410
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 15,576 12,482 2,338 357 30,753
Loss on disposaliwrite-off of property,

plant and equipment 5,949 - - - 5,949
Interests in associates - 201,937 - 4,171 206,108
Interests in joint ventures - 38,635 - 976,664 1,015,299
Share of results of associates (113,782) (10,127) - (5,925)  (129,834)
Share of results of joint ventures - 985 - 75,192 16,177
Impaiment losses, net of reversal, on

financial assets and contract assets 698,933 - 28,260 - 127,193
Impairment losses recognised in

respect of intanglble assets 89,912 - 57,494 - 147,406
Impairment losses recognised in respect

of property, plant and equipment 23,501 - - - 23,501
White-down of inventories 62,212 - - - 62,212
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6. ﬁ%ﬁﬁ *il. (%) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Rt HEH () Other segment information (Continued)
201712831 A At 3] December 2017
BA%E fae
HEER B5EE BEER FEAE e
Wind Energy
Energy Operation Storage
Related of Wind  and Related
Products Farm Products  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
FET FET FEr FEr TET

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

(E51)
(Restated)
BEGEEY Continuing operations
AENEBERAEEE  Amounts incuded in the measure of
Rt AZ 2% - segment profit or loss or segment
assets:
RENE  BERXE Addttions of property, plant and
equipment 15243 492 376 1,365 17476
B EERE Amortisation of intangible assets 21,387 = = = 21387
% BERRBHE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 13315 12,147 2515 380 28,357
LENE  BERE Gain on disposal of property,
/6 plant and equipment 80 - - - 80
REE AR 7 R Interests in associates 41673 300,760 - 5835 348268
REBhEER Interests in joint ventures - 39,633 = 1,152,651 (192,284
EEBENRARE Share of results of associates (32077) 423 - - (27.854)
ElhA2tE%E Share of results of joint ventures - [ 108 = 165019 166,127
THEERANEERE  Imparment losses, net of reversal,
BENBRER) on financial assets and contract assets 118,306 = 10354 = 128,660
SEVEERZZABEBE  Impament losses recognised in respect
of intangible assets 173%9 = = = 173%9
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and other regions of
the PRC.

Information about the Group’s non-current assets by geographical

location of the assets from continuing operations are detailed below:

FRBEEREE
Carrying amount

of non-current assets

2018 2017

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

(2%1)

(Restated)

PR E MR Other regions of the PRC 1,657,583 2,190,900
BB Hong Kong 1,098 1,676
1,658,681 2,192,576

ERBEETEOEZFHERIELLE
% BIR—ME & R E IR M0
BEATEAAZHRENEREE 7]
HEEREREEHAEEGHE -

Non-current assets exclude those relating to discontinued operation,
non-current portion of amount due from a joint venture, financial assets
at fair value through comprehensive income, AFS investments and
deferred tax assets.
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6. DEHEHE » 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
TREZEFRAH Information about major customers
REERFEERMBENECEAHEER Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over
|0%H & P e T 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

2018 2017
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
BRPA! Customer Al 25,438 NE B N/AY
EFB Customer B? 16,318 191,307
ZEC Customer C? 15,498 36,052
®EFPD? Customer D3 9,442 g N/AY
[R5 B W ' Revenue from Operation of Wind Farm
2 BN EEREERNRE 2 Revenue from Wind Energy Related Products
2 A8 R AR R E I E Revenue from Energy Storage and Related Products
! HEREE RSB R EE RN fl 3 ¢ The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
mHEA 10% revenue of the Group
7. Hflk A 7. OTHER INCOME
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
(E51)
(Restated)
FEEEEHR Continuing operations
HitWAF 28 : Other income mainly comprises:
B # 8 (ffat) Government grants (note) 2,609 2,791
REMEERES KA Rental income from investment properties,
(BB NER ) net of negligible outgoings 6,698 6461
FEHA Interest income
—RITHER — bank balances 963 1,505
BT -HAEELEZHEHK - advance to ajoint venture 2,878 2,809
— T —EHE QAR 2#K - advance to an associate 1,365 =
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Htlg A =) 7.

Htet - £ 87660007 7T (20174 - 834,000
B RTERA #ERECEE
NE BEERREBEZFEAMETAE
Bz w8 (BEE31) - 8758 1,84300078
7t (20174 : 1,957,000 % 7T ) 18 * Bl R
15,/ Rt 5 48 I L At B B 3
RYAGKEEEREY  RERES
B BHE AR EN (EEKD)

OTHER INCOME (Continued)

Note: An amount of HK$766,000 (2017: HK$834,000) represents subsidies
granted to the Group by the PRC government/authorities for the purpose
of financing the acquisition of property, plant and equipment (note 31).
The remaining amount of HK$ 1,843,000 (2017: HK$1,957,000) represents
operating subsidies granted to the Group by the PRC government/
authorities for operation of windfarm and other technology development,
and subsidies received from the PRC tax authorities on Value Added Tax
("VAT") refund.

BH 2 -
HMkaREiE 8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
(E7)
(Restated)
BEREEY Continuing operations
REFEERRAZBERBE  Imparment losses recognised in respect of
intangible assets (147,406) (17,399)
7 &R Whrite-down of inventories (62,212) -
HUE - BB RREER Impairment losses recognised in respect of
ZREERE property, plant and equipment (23,501) -
REMELNTEEHN (Loss) gain from changes in fair value of
(B#8) Ws investment properties (9,452) 2,075
HE MEDE  BEK (Loss) gain on disposal/write-off of property,
Rz (BR) Rz plant and equipment (5,949) 80
BRERIE Kz (B18)F8E  Net exchange gain (loss) recognised 988 (493)
(247,532) (15737)
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9. EMIERSHIEREE 9 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL,

18 (k&% m) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND CONTRACT
ASSETS
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
(E51)
(Restated)
REREEY Continuing operations
RREEP RS RAN Impairment losses recognised in respect of
BRHZE SRR trade balances arising from contracts with
R RMERR customers and associates (7217,193) (128,660)
10. AR E 10. FINANCE COSTS
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
(E51)
(Restated)
REREXK Continuing operations
NN Interest on:
—RITREMBER — bank and other loans 82,546 74,489
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1. BRIEESEE I11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(@ BZEWISFIA3IBILLFE: (2)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, a subsidiary of the

ARA—RNMBRARR 2B
F-NRHEMRRMEMARET
fedir CRIND AR 2 (DRIH K
BIE1)51% s AT S % (KR
43(a) FTIKEE)

KECRIERENERARFEE
WE/ FRNBRNT -HEEAR
FEMEZARERAEEIILR
BB NEMZ2IEAXHZE

Company entered into an agreement with an independent
third party in respect of the disposal of 51% interests of fii X
BRI @BEEF R M ORI AR 2 A (“Shenzhen Aerospace
Telecommunications™) as disclosed in note 43(a).

The loss for the period/year from the discontinued
Telecommunication Business operation is set out below. The
comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income have been restated to re-

REBRIEEERT - present Telecommunication Business operation as a discontinued
operation.
BZE20184F BHZE0I74F
12A29H 12A31H
i) IFE
Period ended Year ended
29.12.2018 31.12.2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B/ ERNREBRIE Loss for the period/year from
ReXBHEE discontinued operation (30,131) (9.943)
B & — B A FRE Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
(H#43(2) (note 43(a)) 17,417 -
(12,714) (9943)
EAEBKEARE —REER The revenue from Telecommunication Business operation represents
MEMEMRHER - the sales of telecommunication products which is recognised at a point
in time.
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EZ20/184% 1243 BiFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

| ERIEEEER

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

@ &) @) (Continued)
PEHAGEERREMEEKE The results of Telecommunication Business operation for the
FONEAMEBKEER20I8F | A period from | January 2018 to 29 December 2018, the date of
IHZE20I18F12A29B8 HE A H disposal, which have been included in the consolidated statement
HmmEEMT of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, were as
follows:

BZ20184F BHEI7%F

12A29H 12A31H

i) IEFE

Period ended Year ended

29.12.2018 31.12.2017

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

EER Turnover 12,065 19,960

WERA Cost of sales (14,966) (17,691)

EHB)M Gross (loss) profit (2,901) 2,269

HA e A Other income 615 429

Hito st o B 1R Other gains and losses (16,518) (98)

HERDERA Selling and distribution expenses (542) (1,742)

TRER Administrative expenses (10,785) (10,773)

BRTL AT B 1R Loss before taxation (30,131) (9915)

IR Taxation - (28)

#/ FRER Loss for the period/year (30,131) (9.943)
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CRILEESEE 2 Il. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)
(&) (@) (Continued)
BZE20184F EZEI7%F
12A29H 12A31H
i) EFE
Period ended Year ended
29.12.2018 31.12.2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
B/ FNATEFEMEE :  Loss for the period/year attributable to:
ARAHEEA Owners of the Company (30,131) (9.943)
B/ EFRNREELIEEE Loss for the period/year from discontinued
EBHEBELR operation has been arrived at after
charging:
Hi 8 THRA Other staff costs 4,172 4600
BB TIRKRHMFTEIHEFR Other staffs retirement benefits scheme
contributions 362 401
4,534 5,001
BV EEHH Amortisation of intangible assets 3,064 2,236
RRFAX 2 FERAR Cost of inventories recognised as an
expense 14,966 17,691
Mm% BERREIFE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 413 259
REFEERRZBERBE  Imparment losses recognised in respect of
intangible assets 16,200 -
HEMSE  BEREZEER  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment - 2
RIMEEFREHE Minimum lease payments under operating
Xz &EEE leases in respect of land and buildings 478 544
HEF% Research and development expenses 3,362 3,372
&S PN and after crediting
MEBWA Interest income 5 10

Annual Report 2018 e China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

161



162

n‘/-_l_\

BB ERR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| December 2018

. BRIEBERY »

C)

H )

(&)

BE0I18F12A29B LM &
AXBRAAEEERFLERS
MA22820008 7T RFERER
& i 17,029,000 7T

REZ2017F 12831 BIEEE -
AEER—HHBRRIEHMX
ERRBRARAR(IHER] -
REREBMG L KEERSE)
MIEZERRRAZEELIHS R
EZeMESH - AKEAZ
FHNESABERANESTSNK
ERM=fIBEMNA - B20174F
NRANERBRER - AKEER
AREEET—REENET
BETIHSEROEMBR 5
017F 12BN BRER -

RETHEROEETEAMER
ARMLERYE (AIHER
HMRRERH) BRTEHAZ HE (B
=R)BB-Alt ARAEER
R AREERERETIHER
HMBEXBNES REELET
HERMSIHERARIAAR
EEN-HABELAER AEHE
BESBILHREIRN 371 4% I HE -

TEMABRER (£8) RAF 2018 £

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(@

(Continued)

During the period ended 29 December 2018, Telecommunication
Business contributed to the Group’s net operating cash inflow of
HK$2,282,000 and net investing cash outflow of HK$17,029,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group and the
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary, ;T &M A& REHE A
A &) (“Jiangsu Energine”), which carried out the Group’s Rare-
Earth Permanent Motor (“REPM™) Products operation, agreed to
change the proportion of directors in the board of directors of
Jiangsu Energine. The number of directors that can be appointed
by the Group has decreased from three to two out of five board
members with effect from 22 December 2017. The Group has
transferred the right to appoint a director irrevocably to other
shareholders of Jiangsu Energine, with effect from 22 December
2017.

According to the revised Articles of Association of Jiangsu
Energine, all decisions about operating and financial (which are
relevant activities of Jiangsu Energine) require majority votes (i.e.
three votes). As a result, the directors of the Company have
concluded that Group has lost its ability to direct the relevant
activities of Jiangsu Energine. The Group continues to hold 37.14%
equity interest of Jiangsu Energine after the deemed disposal and

accounted for it as an associate of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

The loss for the period from the discontinued REPM Products

operation is set out below.

HEI7F
12322 H [-HAfH
Period ended
22.12.2017
FET

HK$000

Loss for the period from discontinued operation (4,588)

WmIokHEREEBI7FIA
|H#ZE2017F 128228 [LHM

The results of REPM Products operation for the period from |
January 2017 to 22 December 2017, which have been included

WEE (Bt AR BEERAME in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
ERER) AT comprehensive income, were as follows:

BEI7F
125228 53
Period ended
22.12.2017
TET
HK$000
E | Turnover 16,296
SHERA Cost of sales (14,381)
EH Gross profit 1915
HA A Other income 46
B e R EE Other gains and losses 13
HE R KA Selling and distribution expenses (683)
THER Administrative expenses (5902)
FRLAIE 1R Loss before taxation (4611
HIRE % Tax credit 23
HAER Loss for the period (4,588)
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ERLEERE @

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

b) (&) () (Continued)
2017
FET
HK$000
HARA TR IR REEEE - Loss for the period attributable to:
ARAEEA Owners of the Company (1,704)
IRl Non-controlling interests (2,884)
(4,588)
HIAK B B & IEREEBH Loss for the period from discontinued operation has been
BRELME : arrived at after charging:
Hith & TRA Other staff costs 2,230
B 8 TRIKEHFBIHE Other staffs retirement benefits scheme contributions 607
2,837
RARBFMIZFERA Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 14,238
nE BERREBZFE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 302
mi kT2 LEeREN Minimum lease payments under operating lease in respect
ZRERE of land and buildings 394
FF 85 5 Research and development expenses 669
e EPNE and after crediting:
FEHA Interest income 40

BE017F 1228 18R - &

TXHMERAASBERRFEE
i/}\uuuj25680001’§713 R F

ﬁﬁ@/ﬂuﬂf%é,ooo/%ﬂ: °

ITHERARIELEBRHANE
ERBENREAERENMHZ
43(b) °

HEMEEREMN (£8) SRAT 2018 £ 5

During the period ended 22 December 2017, REPM products
contributed to the Group's net operating cash outflow of
HK$2,568,000 and net investing cash outflow of HK$566,000.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Jiangsu

Energine at the date of deemed disposal are disclosed in note

£3(b).
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12. FRIRAIEIR

12. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E

For the year ended 3| December 2018

2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
(E51)
(Restated)
BEREER Continuing operations
REBECEEBZRTAT  Loss before taxation from continuing operations
EREHR ISR has been arrived at after charging:
EE5Me Directors' emoluments 5,415 5,646
HMETRA Other staff costs 68,093 69,177
Hih 8 TIRINEBHAFTEIEF  Other staffs retirement benefits scheme
contributions 11,286 [1,670
84,794 86,493
ZE AT & Auditor's remuneration 3,200 3,050
B EESH Amortisation of intangible assets 30,410 21,387
BRBRLZFEKRAR Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 40,099 206,084
ME - BERRBITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 30,753 28,357
FTMREFRLEHE Minimum lease payments under operating leases
Xz &ERE in respect of land and buildings 10,005 10,558
e Research and development expenses 9,990 8,654
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13. BE -BEREEMS 13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

AEREERBRFHREER LHH Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
AREBRBMGOIRENT pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follow:

() EERARK (a) Directors and chief executive

ARE IER £ & BEE* 2018545
Liu Wang Li Xu Han Total
Xiaowei* Xiaodong ~ Guang Jun  Shuwang 2018
fEér  FExr  TEx  TEx  TEr  FEx
HK$000  HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HITES Executive directors
ik Fees - - - - - -
Efhe - Other emoluments;
¥4 2BRAMEF  Salaries allowances and other
benefits 1,206 1,445 1,204 963 - 4818
BINET Retirement benefits 18 18 18 18 - 7
/Mgt Sub-total 1,224 1,463 1,222 981 - 4,890
ERRTEEHEETERRARS The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
RARTARAEEER EHMIZ for their services in connection with the management of the
a0 AR 7 o affairs of the Company and the Group.
g1eE" EREY 2018 F 45t
Liu Han Total
Xiaowei * Shuwang* 2018
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EHTES Non-executive directors
e Fees - - -
Hib 2 Other emoluments:
e M REMEF  Salaries, allowances and other
benefits - - -
R F Retirement benefits - - -
Nt Sub-total - - -
FiEHTEEM S TEABR The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
EEARDNTRRNEEE EFIE mainly for their services as directors of the Company and the
e R % - Group.
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13. BE -BEREEMS o 13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

() EER#EZ) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)
EYN - BB RER  2018F&
Kan
Li Lai Kuen, Ng Total
Dapeng Alice Gordon 2018
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BYFYTES Independent non-executive
directors
e Fees 175 175 175 525
Nt Sub-total 175 175 175 525
LBV HERATESHEETESR The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown
BRSERARBESIRAN above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
R o
2018 F# 5t
Total
2018
FET
HK$’000
ok Total 5,415
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13. BE -BEREEMS o 13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

() EBER#EHZ) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)
P2 faf AT # FER T FFUE 2017 F 485
Han Wang Li Xu Total
Shuwang”  Xiaodong Guang Jun 2017

TET FET TRET TRET TET
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

BITES Executive directors
we Fees = = = = -
Hup< : Other emoluments:
e BHER Salaries, allowances and
H i F other benefits [,156 [,540 [,307 [,074 5077
RIKEF Retirement benefits 8 18 12 12 50
INEF Sub-total [,164 [,558 [,319 [,086 5127
T TEEMETEABRS The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
BARNFEANEEEEERFTIR for their services in connection with the management of the
A PRTE o affairs of the Company and the Group.
e FtEH 2017 F &5
Liu Fan Total
Xiaowei" Shili® 2017
FET FEr FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
EHTEE Non-executive directors
we Fees = = =
Hpi< : Other emoluments:
Yo REERHMER  Salaries, allowances and other
benefits = = =
T Sub-total - - -
LR TEEMETEEBR The non-executive director’s emoluments shown above were
EERRRAIRAEEEEMIE mainly for his services as director of the Company and the Group.
A RS ©
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13. BE -BEREEMS o 13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

() EER#EZ) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)
YN ERBE RER  017F#:
Kan
Li Lai Kuen, Ng Total
Dapeng Alice Gordon 2017
FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BYFHTES Independent non-executive
directors
e Fees 173 173 173 519
Mgt Sub-total 173 173 173 519
TRBYRNTEENEEER The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown
BEEERRRRIESARRHEN above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
AR °
2017 F a5t
Total
2017
FET
HK$000
5 Total 5,646
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13. EX - HERERME 2

(a) EER#EEZ)

MELRREMNEETNEZE20I8
FI2A3IBR2017€12A31R
FFEEREEAME -

FARARAZESRABE L
XFRERzHMEBRRIERE
HATRURS 2 W -

Hit

& AMEBMNOI7FIA0REER
ERFHNTESE  YN20I8F
SAYBRERNTESE -

# BEER2018F2A 14HHH
TEERERFATES W
R2018F3 A29 BHES:

8 HHENEBER2017F6A2
RAEM -

(b) ERBEFHMAL

IfNsREHEMALERNUES
(20174 - Mfz) - M EFEH -
FRBBE - R — &= M

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

()

(b)

Directors and chief executive (Continued)

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments in the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017.

Li Guang is both director and chief executive officer of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for

services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.
Notes:

s Liu Xiaowei was appointed as non-executive director on 30 March
2017, and re-designated as executive director on 29 March 2018.

# Han Shuwang was re-designated from executive director to non-
executive director on 14 February 2018, and resigned with effect
from 29 March 2018.

~ Fan Shili resigned with effective from 2 June 2017.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included four (2017: four)
directors. Amongst the four directors, Li Guang is the chief

executive officer. The emoluments of the remaining one highest

ALzE#emT : paid individual were as follows:
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
HehEMmEF Salaries and other benefits 981 1,086

—ZREEMFMHMEEN T
e |,OO0,000/%7I: (2017 % -
1,000,001 %7t = 1,500,000 7T) °
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The emoluments of the above employee were within the band of
nil to HK$ 1,000,000 (2017: HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000).
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14. TAXATION
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
(551)
(Restated)
BEREER Continuing operations
AEEREXHBLRE Tax charge for the year comprises:
B EET PRC Enterprise Income Tax
rEE Current year 3,193 3743
BEFEHEBEIR Underprovision in prior years 309 879
3,502 4,622
ERERIA (H %) Deferred tax (credit) charge (2,922) 543
580 5165

REE A S BB A AT RS 1R 2 S AR

The reconciliation of tax charge for the year to the loss before taxation

K is as follows:
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
27)
(Restated)

BREiATE R Loss before taxation

(REFBREER) (from continuing operations) (1,316,852) (228,252)
BRBMEMRSHBE2%  Tax credit at PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate

HAZBEES of 25% (329,213) (57,063)
BB E DT RE “ﬁ%%iﬁ Share of results of associates and joint ventures 13,414 (34,568)

A F%RMU\ZMW ST & Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (5,414) (134)
PAMBR 2 HBTE Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax

purpose 974 444

R HER AT RGN 28 Tax effect of deductible temporary differences

B E not recognised 212,293 36,588
ABERBRZ BB E Tax effect of losses not recognised 108,312 58,308
LA AR 2 BIEEE  Utilisation of tax losses previously

not recognised (214) )

REFEMBRRAREDE Tax effect of temporary differences attributable

i M) B HT%%’EZM%%Z to undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries 19 716
BEFEEETR Underprovision in prior years 309 879
AFEERIESL W Tax charge for the year 580 5,165
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14.

1

e A A B A 4R O R SR
B2 MBBRF - MR REBF
65 -

R4 (R B0 TG BUE) (T 2 FT 185
D) R EFEBUEE AR - o EH
BATNHERZ BHEHBL% -

DR

EIEBIR 2 F BB DR HIRESS

. Hg l%\

ARAEEFHERKBEE218F R
2017F 12A31 B IEFERARBIKS -

. BRGIR-EF

AABHEAREEREAERERT
BB -

REBECEER

14.

15.

16.

TAXATION (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made as the Group has no

assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 35.

DIVIDENDS

No final dividend in respect of year ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 has been proposed by the directors of the Company.

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to owners of the

Company is based on the following data.

2018 2017
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(E31))

(Restated)

ARRIFEAARERFERER

From continuing operations

Loss for the year attributable to owners

of the Company (1,320,525) (237,098)
M:REBREELEK 2 Add: loss for the year from discontinued
AEEER operations 12,714 I1,647
FREHBELEER 2SR Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share
BEABENS 2BE from continuing operations (1,307,811) (225/451)
RDEE
Number of shares
2018 2017
HRERERBENS Number of shares for the purpose of
Z BB basic loss per share 4,368,995,668 4368,995,668

HEMXERAR (W) HRAT 2018 £8
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BREE-EX 2 16. LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC (Continued)
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
(E51)
(Restated)
REFERCKRLLEEE  From continuing and discontinued
operations
FHEREAERME ZARA  Loss for the year attributable to owners
BEANREAFEBE of the Company for the purpose of
basic loss per share (1,320,525) (237,098)
BREAERMRA . BE R The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for basic
EMER e loss per share.
REEKRILEEEXRE From discontinued operations
PERIEEEEBR 2 BREABREER Basic loss per share for the discontinued operations is HK$0.29 cents
02971l (2017 F (L E3) : 0278 per share (2017 (restated): HK$0.27 cents), based on the loss for
1) DREEKRIEREEBZENE the year from the discontinued operation of HK$12,714,000 (2017
127140007 7T (20174 (K E7)) : (restated): HK$11,647,000) and the denominators detailed above for
11,647,000 ) Kk Filtst E B RERE basic loss per share.
BIFRAZHEHE -
HRMEADBREBITEELBRK - No diluted loss per share has been presented as there were no
B E 25 G REEESE - potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years.
BEME 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
NFE FAIR VALUE
REA) At beginning of the year 149,538 137,730
R TEEE:S Exchange realignment (6,555) 9,733
ERBRBERZATE (Decrease) increase in fair value recognised
ORiA) & fn in profit or loss (9,452) 2,075
R At end of the year 133,531 149,538
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17.

For the year ended 3| December 2018

BRME

AREREEEHEREUEREE K
REEXRRERNZMENRERDE
AVEREAGE  DBER/REMELIA
REMENR - REMEMLNFE -

AEER2018FR20I7F12A31BZ
REMERFEENEBRAEEY BEE

ZBIA A BRF R G ER R BIE AT

BRARNEMERETEEMS -

REMFEZHEDR2EMSIAAR
FER) RENE 2 EERAB AR
HEEF °

RETHEOERORTER - RQRH
BRERETESEETAVENERE
Lz BB fe i A B -

AEEREBIAERERGEMET
hE MHERERBEYAEREXRME

BE )& 1 - 2@ AR AR EA G
ERREARE B BEEESYFR
ARREZEREHBER  HEZS
MEAFERBDNREA -

REFDEZDVER  BENEZR
SERERENAENAE -

TR ERNAETXEREDED
FECCERAERZEERTEREA
) RRAFEAEMBRAFESR(E
—EF=H) RELTEFERHAZE
ZABREENE) 2EM -

HEMEEREMN (£8) SRAT 2018 £ 5

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

All of the Group'’s property interests held under operating leases to
eamn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties. The investment properties are located in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 3| December
2018 and 2017 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on the respective dates by Knight Frank Petty Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group. The
valuation of the investment properties was arrived by reference to
monthly rent as available in the market, and where appropriate, on the

basis of capitalisation of the income potential of similar properties.

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the financial
controller and certain directors of the Company determine the

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

The Group engages independent qualified professional valuers to
perform the valuation. The financial controller works closely with the
independent qualified professional valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The financial controller
reports the findings to the board of directors of the Company semi-
annually to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels | to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.
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For the year ended 3| December 2018

(I Capitalisation rate;
(1) Monthly rent.

the property, prevailings market
condttion, of 4% (2017: 4%)

Monthly rent, based on net
floor area, using direct market
comparables and taking into
account age, location and individual
factors such as size of property of
RMB%8/sqm. (2017: RMB97/sqm.)

17. BEYE 2 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
R2018% RI7E
HRRREALEE 128318 12A318 RERHR GEEEEDN ¢
fik e REN% Z0VE ZOYFE  DVESER IEEAYE EE TURRRANE ROVEZBR
Investment properties Fair value Fair value
held by the Group asat asat Relationship of
in the statement of 31 December 3| December ~ Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable inputs
financial position 2018 2017 hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable input(s) to the fair value
FEr TEL
HK$'000 HK$000
e ERRE R 49,303 5083 E=K EREME AR EG0T7F: 4%) 8BRS
A ES LEE A Ef&i%@@&/\ﬁzﬁft W% ATEEE-
() BAlLE: HERBRTR
Q A#- REBTHAARERL (2017 ARES ATEHR
FEVHAARRIIT)  ER
BEOARERERTSLENA
Uit RigE - fENRDFRE
SERRZ
Commercial property in 49,303 50843 Level3 Direct Capitalisation Capitalisation rate, taking into  The higher the capitalisation
Shenzhen, Guangdong Approach account the capitalisation of rate, the lower the fair value.
Province, PRC T b rental income potential, nature of

The higher the monthly rent,
the higher the fair value.
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17. BEME =) 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Py

R20185 R0I7F

HERRRAZEE 128318 12A318 HERAR FIRRRAHE
sz RENE Z0VE JAVE  DVEER ERARE ER ATERRANE RAVEZBR
Investment properties Fair value Fair value
held by the Group asat asat Relationship of
in the statement of 31 December 3| December  Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable inputs
financial position 2018 2017 hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable input(s) to the fair value
FEr AT

HK$'000 HK$000

ERPEREEEET 2T 84,228 98695  F=H ERBRLA AR ES-55% (20174 BERHLEYR ATEY
ESTUN: LR ABEA: }%%%@H&%Eﬁ%&kz £
O Brgs: A BREERRGDE

Q) AR RASTHAARE (017 ARES ATAES-
£ BEFRARE 27) - ER
FEAERERERTALENE

VG Rigk  ENRNENE

REBSENRZ
Industrial complex in 84,228 98695  Level3 Direct Capitalisation Capitalisation rate, taking into  The higher the capitalisation
Tieling, Liaoning Approach account the capitalisation of = rate, the lower the fair value,
Province, PRC ‘ rental income potential, nature of

The key inputs are;
the property, prevailing market

condition, of 5 - 5.5% (2017: 5 -
55%)

() Capitalisation rate;
(2) Monthly rent.

Monthly rent, based on net  The higher the monthly rent,
floor area, using direct market  the higher the fair value.
comparables and taking into

account age, location and individual

factors such as location and size of

property of RMBI I/sq.m. (2017:

RMBI2Isqm.)

MERNGEBEASELE=R - There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both years.

HEMXERAR (W) HRAT 2018 £8
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18. M BERSEEG 18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BEth  HE RR BH%E AR
RgF REE  HERRE BERIE  HOERE - ERIR 4%
Plant, Wind
Leasehold  equipment energy Furniture
land and and  plantand Moulds  and office Motor  Construction
buildings ~ machinery  equipment  andtools  equipment vehicles in progress Total

TET T TET T TAT TET T TET
HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000

A COST
ROI7%E AR At | January 2017 15339 16619 391714 36649 0627 216%9 6373 501,020
B A% Bxchange realignment 1262 1,243 B39 3002 959 1,099 447 4143
#E Addtions - 509 143 12949 1053 2073 91 18598
b Disposds . . Q) - (540) 1) - ®))
BRI EHB AT Derecognised on deemed disposal
(H3t43) of a subsidiary (rote 43) = (12305) = (1297) (830) (986) - (15424)
R0I7% 128318 At 31 December 2017 16,601 6,066 426,507 51323 3243 13,975 121 554,926
e Echange redgnent (81) 0B e ) () (#81) M) 600
HE Addtions - - 3,181 1,130 1,049 1,264 5411 12,101
b/ Disposikhvrie of - S s () (o) GRS @B (11786
BRI ENBAR(Hi243)  Derecognised on disposal
e ) - () - ®) @) (0 )
R0I8F 128318 At 31 December 2018 15,780 5319 403,698 41,631 20,531 19,726 5,819 518,565
FERAE DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
RNI7EIAIR At I January 2017 5808 13920 135601 27412 18,505 15141 - 216,387
ERAE Exchange realignment 533 1058 12759 2537 1503 1,184 - 19574
RERf Provided for the year 97 35 0075 3486 738 1347 - 28918
R Eiminated on disposas - - - - (400) (104) - (504)
RiEHE-MHBARERS  Eiminated on deemed disposa
) ofasbiday o 47 ) - () ) (9%) N )
R0I7%128318 At 3! December 2017 7,268 4265 170,435 32,741 19,668 16,623 - 251,000
E38 Exchang redigment () o) (008 (16) #96) ) )
RERRE Provided for the year 855 133 21,479 5,431 1329 1,838 - 31,166
HE /s Eiminated on disposalshwrite-off - - (4,093) (1333) (928) (2,676) - (9,030)
HE-BHBAARRS Eiminated on disposal of  subsicary
Wis) (rote ) - a0) - @) ooy ) -
RERRAZHERR Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss - - 23,501 - - - - 23,501
R0I8FI12A318 At 3! December 2018 1,103 4,049 201,316 34576 17,872 14475 - 279,991
KEE CARRYING VALUES
R0I8%F 128318 At 31 December 2018 8,077 1,210 202,382 13,056 2,659 5,251 5,819 238,574
R0I7% 128318 At 31 December 2017 9333 1801 256072 18582 3575 1352 7211 303926
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18. ME BEREE o

g

Ltz BERRBEE NERER

MTERE

HELHRETF 3 - 5%k gk
o UBEEA
pi:

R SERE  9-15%

RANEERE 5-15%

B

EARTA 25%

RERMAEHRE 10-25%

at 18 —25%

20174 12 A 31 B BR E % 8 53,0008
TR BB EEE T ARAE (201845
&) -

RBENRANE RO BRERE LR
ENEEIRNBEREEM DB ZME
RIR & ELBM (MM 20MHE) -

BE2I8FI2AIBLEFEE B8t
RAOZERERRERANESR
23,501,00078 7T (20174 « £&) -

BZE2018F3A3IRIEFE  FE2RA
SER-EZHEER  CHAERIR
R EH 6,73400078 7T (2017 5 - £&) ©

178 HEAXEREE (£8) 5EAF 2018 F£§

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings 3 — 5% or over the unexpired
lease terms, whichever is
shorter

Plant, equipment and machinery 9—15%

Wind energy plant and equipment 5 — 15%

Moulds and tools 25%
Furniture and office equipment 10 —25%
Motor vehicles 18 —-25%

The net book value of a motor vehicle as at 31 December 2017 of
HK$53,000 was held under a finance lease (2018: nil).

For the purpose of impairment testing, wind energy plant and
equipment have been allocated to the individual cash generating unit of
the “Wind Energy Related Products” segment as disclosed in note 20.

During the vear ended 3| December 2018, impairment loss of
HK$23,501,000 (2017: nil) was recognised in respect of the wind energy

plant and equipment.

During the year ended 3| March 2018, a write off of HK$6,734,000
(2017: nil) was recognised in respect of construction in progress and
was mainly attributable to the termination of construction project by

the Group.
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19. 88 19. GOODWILL
FET
HK$000
A COST
R2017€ 1 A1 B 201756 12431 B At | January 2017, 31 December 2017 and
KR2018%F 12431 H 31 December 2018 15,397
e IMPAIRMENT
R2017€ 1 A1 B 20175 12A31 H At | January 2017, 31 December 2017 and
K2018F12A31 R 3| December 2018 13,393
fREE CARRYING VALUES
M2017F 12431 BX2018F 1231 B At 3] December 2017 and 3| December 2018 2,004

RBENENE  BECHIEZERSE
EDBZERNREELEM -

AKBERUAKIPUGEEERRAS
HNAFEHBRENSLH RS RERR
REE - FHER T EE200400078 T2
BE - M BEAMKERE R EHE 2 fh5t
RESELD R BBEI.6% (20174
9.1%)FE - NRREAM WS HERE
RERREELEMTTRR G-
ERERGEEMZEFRIACENSGER
REBKITeEREEAEBAN KE
BEH -

BZEIBFI2A3NIBILFE  A5HE
EEERTHECCHECHTELE
i B3R E

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to the individual cash generating unit of the Operation of Wind Farm

segment.

Management of the Group performed impairment review for the
remaining goodwill of HK$2,004,000 based on cash flow forecast
derived from the financial budget covering a period of 5 years, which
was prepared by using the most recent financial results with projections
approved by management at discount rate of 9.6% (2017: 9.1%) for
the Operation of Wind Farm segment, which reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
cash generating unit. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate

carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

During the year ended 3| December 2018, management of the Group
determines that there are no impairment of its cash generating unit

containing goodwill.
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20.

EBEEE 20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BB R A BiA®  RESFTR am
Development  Technology Licence
cost know-how right Total
FET FAT FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
(Hizta) (Hiztb) (Hiztc)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
%S COST
K217 1R 1B At | January 2017 32,685 216,726 13256 262,667
B 1 B Exchange realignment 2,291 15,193 832 18316
= Additions 9,216 5135 - 14,351
R20174€ 12 A31 H At 3| December 2017 44,192 237,054 14,088 295334
2 Exchange realignment (2032) (10900) (582) (13514)
NE Additions 28,174 872l 14,565 51,460
RIERLE—A Derecognised on disposal
B AT of a subsidiary . . (26,630) (26630)
M2018F12A31 A At 31 December 2018 70334 234,875 1,441 306,650
BeEEE AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
R2I17F1 AR At | January 2017 - 35113 6,469 37,582
B 5 A% Exchange realignment - 3,636 440 4076
ERX Charge for the year - 21,387 2236 23,623
RIBEMERZAERE  Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss - 17,399 - 17,399
R2017%6 12A31 B At 3| December 2017 = 73535 9,145 82,680
2 Exchange realignment (1955) (7352) (338) (9,645)
FERX W Charge for the year - 30410 3,064 33474
RIBEERZAERBE  Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss 57494 89,912 16,200 163,606
HE—FMB AR  Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary - - (26,630) (26,630)
R20185 12 A31 H At 31 December 2018 55,539 186,505 [,441 243485
HREE CARRYING VALUES
R2018F12A31 A At 31 December 2018 14,795 48370 - 63,165
K207 12A31 B At 31 December 2017 44,192 163519 4943 212,654

HEMEEREMN (£8) SRAT 2018 £ 5
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(@ ZEBREIRERABERIDBEZE
RAEEGHNELREMHESREE
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(b) #ZEeBREANEEIRIZERBER]
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(0 ZEBIBHBZE18F128318
LHFEERIEELEMERI DB
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HREARTE  KUAHRESBEZER
NBEERHERI DB 2@ANREESE
B o

BE0I8F 12831 BLERE  HEE
EREMTENSENEENR RS
B 2BENR -

AEBEEERBEABIOFHBEER
ERREReRERU/ELE  MEE
REERBRMAZZRE - % IER
DHEERERIRNEEHEER] D
Btz OISR ERBA R X
19.2% (2017 5 : 209%) FT#R & - B3 A
A EERREE3% (20174  3%) (W
EHRBHEAMSNFHERER) R
THERENARBFSRE - EREER
BEEMTIERRE Tﬁﬁ.ﬁrﬁé’iﬁﬁ&
%*lJE@Iﬁuil/le/l)lb hErEHE - A
A DERRSELEMMNBERRIA
LEREHN TS ERNBE S NE
HmiES -

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continved)

The above intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over

the following period:

Development cost 5 years
Technology know-how 6 years — 8 years

Licence right 5 years

Notes:

(@  The amounts represent costs to develop graphene-based cathode
material for batteries and high capacity lithium batteries for the “Energy
Storage and Related Products” segment.

(b)  The amounts represent costs incurred for the technology know-how for
the manufacture of wind turbines for the “Wind Energy Related Products”
segment.

() The amounts mainly represent global positioning system terminal
development licence rights for the “Telecommunication Business”
segment, which was discontinued operation during the year ended 3|
December 2018.

For the purpose of impairment testing, technology know-how have
been allocated to the individual cash generating unit of the “Wind

Energy Related Products” segment.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, management of the Group
determines that there are impairment indicators in its cash generating

unit containing intangible assets.

Management of the Group performed impairment review for
technology know-how based on a value in use calculation. The
calculation used discounted cash flow forecast based on financial budget
covering a period of |0 years, which was prepared by using the most
recent financial results with projections approved by management at
pre-tax discount rate of 19.2% (2017: 20.9%) for the “Wind Energy
Related Products” segment. Cash flows beyond the ten-year period
have been extrapolated using an estimated constant growth rate of 3%
(2017: 3%) which does not exceed the average growth rate for the
relevant markets. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of future cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the cash
generating unit's historical performance, management’s strategic plans

and expectations for the market development.
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20.

21.

BEEE 2 20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
B BE2I8FI2ABILEFE - Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$89,912,000 (2017:
SR B B R E B 89,912, OOO HK$17,399,000) are recognised in respect of the technology know-how
BT (20174 < 17,399,0007% 7T) ° during the year ended 31 December 2018. As at 3| December 2018,
20185 12 A31 B - &l A& 2 589 M the accumulated impairment loss in respect of technology know-how is
BEEE 5 106298,000% T (20174 : HK$106,298,000 (2017: HK$17,399,000).
17,399,000/ L) °
TR phE—IETE B B R A5 B AN RE During the year, impairment losses of HK$57,494,000 (2017: nil) are
R A 518 57,494,000/ 7T (2017 4 - recognised in respect of development cost related to a project which
) BERmimEEE X EREEN in the opinion of directors, expected cash flows from these intangible
ﬁfﬂ% CHIEENEERE  WMES assets are insignificant given the intense market competition which
RE ZEEVEENRHRERET impact on the Group's strategy to slow down the related project
TEK o development.
FRN R EFNEREZARBRESIRE During the year, impairment losses of HK$16,200,000 (2017: nil) are
162000007 7T (20174 : &) - A AR recognised in respect of licence right as the directors of the Company
NEIZEEE AR MR E SR % would not expect any significant future cash flows from these intangible
EEPEEREATESREENESR assets because of technology obsolescence.
25
REBEABIZES 21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
REBRBERARZEREFBET Details of the Group's investments in associates are as follows:
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
FEEMRE 2K Cost of unlisted investments 426,598 422427
b 5, 3 B Exchange realignment 16,600 27,108
FEEEEEBEREMEE  Share of post-acquisition loss and other
R (MBEEUWER B R ARZH  comprehensive expense, net of dividend
) received and unrealised profit (237,090) (101,267)
206,108 348,268

R2018F 12831 B - EETHREK K
BREWRERERARESZEHE681,000
T (2017 4F < 681,000/ 7T) °

HEMXERAR (W) HRAT 2018 £8

Included in the cost of unlisted investments as at 31 December 2018 is
goodwill of HK$681,000 (2017: HK$681,000) arising on the acquisition

of associates.
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21. REEARZES @ 21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

EXBRELFCHMERHBE

Summarised financial information of material associates

BRAKBEREE N MBEMY
ZHEIMT - AT BE R R 255
EARMBHRR BREETBHBMEE
AIRE) IR E®E -

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material
associate is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

BERRARARDEINZTEANBR The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these
KA - consolidated financial statements.

AEEERDREGRL E ([IEFFER]) Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu

Longyuan”)

2018 2017

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

TEEE Current assets 564,280 904,602
FREBEE Non-current assets 671,222 783,891
Y Current liabiltes (49,731) (510288)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities (741,954) (717,781)
BZ2018%F HZE2017%F

12A31H 2A31H

tFE H5E

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

Wz Revenue 160,536 138262

FRRMNEEEK AR Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 18,550 14,993
FREWRHZRERE Dividends received from the associate

during the year 3,339 5171
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21. PBBABIZEE » 21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
EXBEORACHERHEE &) Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)
AHFEFRSBEFRLE ([LEEER]) Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
(%) Longyuan”) (Continued)
P BERMEERRNGE M EERRT Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
MR RIS R AR REELE carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
THERCEEFHE Net assets of Jiangsu Longyuan 443,817 460,424
AEERNIEERATA # Proportion of the Group's ownership
Bazant interest in Jiangsu Longyuan 25% 25%
AEERI&HERER Carrying amount of the Group's interest
ZREE in Jiangsu Longyuan 110,954 115,106
FEHEAZHELEEEH Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
AEESEFABE The Group's share of loss for the year (134,471) (31,602)
REERZEHE QA Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
B BETHE interests in these associates 95,154 233,162
MR20I8F K2017F 12831 B K"EH Details of the principal associates of the Group at 3| December 2018
TEBME AR ZHBHIINH 44 and 2017 are set out in note 44.

184 HEAXEREE (£8) 5EAF 2018 F£§
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22. REBQLEZRE 22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
AEERGELECREFROT Details of the Group’s investments in joint ventures are as follows:
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000

RECEZELTRE Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures,

BXAR - B KRB AT AR S net of pre-acquisition dividend 1,624,311 162431 |
BE 5 B Exchange realignment 111,699 169,114
FE1E BB 1R (B51R) | A Share of post-acquisition (loss) profits,

HER B B net of dividend (67,811) 51,759

1,668,199 1,845,184
B R ORERR Less: Impairment loss recognised (652,900) (652,900)
1,015,299 1,192,284
FLETREREBE007FEKRES Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill of
&b 3 E & 2 752 703,308,000 % 7T HK$703,308,000 (2017: HK$703,308,000) arising on the acquisition of
(20174 : 703,308,000/& L) ° joint ventures arose in 2007.
EXCELRCHMERHEE Summarised financial information of material joint venture
BERREEERGELECHBERE Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material joint
EHIWT - L THBERBEEZRSE venture, is set out below. The summarised financial information below
BEEMBHRR REFEMBRSE represents amounts shown in the joint venture's financial statements
AR IR ©F - prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
ERECERAERERZEREMBR The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these
KA - consolidated financial statements.
IR EAmREEROBEEFHETRL Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,
5 EEE) Ltd. (“Delphi”)
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
TEEE Current assets 765,050 |,554,007
ERBEE Non-current assets 382,406 401,331
nBEaE Current liabilities (639,094) (1,196,402)
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22. REELECZHEE
EXSE

AtREERRFROREZEZRER L

A(EEEl) (E)

NEBERRBEERATER:

ERZMBAHBR ()

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(Continued)

Ltd. (“Delphi”’) (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint venture

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the followings:

2018 2017
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
RekBReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 61,862 132,262
MBLRAGE(TEREES Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and
R ELAth FE 50 K e ) other payables and provisions) - 202,175
BZE20185F EHZE217F
12A31H 12A31H
LEE LEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$000
Wz Revenue 2,341,247 2924615
FRmNREEREGER Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 190,008 372,451
FAEKEARRE Dividends received from Delphi during the year 195,747 157,559
P FEREFBEATEIE The above profit for the year include the following:
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
& M Depreciation and amortisation 25,292 35,627
FEHA Interest income 1,176 193
FMERAX Interest expense 1,926 4682
S BR X Income tax expenses 32,661 64,328

HEMEEREMN (£8) SRAT 2018 £ 5
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint venture
(Continued)

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,
Ltd. (“Delphi”’) (Continued)

LB E R E RN A M & Recondiliation of the above summarised financial information to the
RN EREER  RAEYHE: carrying amount of the interest in Delphi recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
ERELEEZR Net assets of Delphi 508,362 758936
AEEREEEMA®EEZ  Proportion of the Group's ownership
ZAR interest in Delphi 49% 49%
EES Goodwill 575,448 603,184
RUER 1T R FEAE Effect of fair value adjustment
pa-Z at acquisition 152,119 177,588
AEERNEREER Carrying amount of the Group's interest
ZEREE in Delphi 976,664 [,152,651
FEHNEXCEELRKERTH Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not
individually material
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
AEEDEFRRR The Group's share of profit for the year 985 ,108

R20185 R2017 12831 A& H
RELRZHBHIINKIEE4 -

Details of the principal joint ventures of the Group at 3| December
2018 and 2017 are set out in note 44.
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23.

24.

BELOTFERIAR M2 ET R

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI/

ZEMEE "HHERS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
2018
FET
HK$’000
BRAVEFAARMEERESMEE :  Finandal assets at FVTOCL:
I Lty (Mita) Unlisted shares (note a) 4,908
2017
TET
HK$000
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments:
I LAY - R ARG (FaEb) Unlisted shares, at cost (note b) 5,144

Wit

@ FLTEROAAKESARTELYL
MAERBOKE BRATEHBRS
RAFIRZ%Z AREEEH20I8
FIAIBEERBRASERERTEARR
NHEFARMEERENRETA -

Notes:

(@)  The unlisted shares represent the Group's equity interest in a private
entity established in the PRC. The directors of the Company have elected
to designate these investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI upon

application of HKFRS 9 since | January 2018.

(b) RIEHR - Z IR E AR AR R E AT (b)  The investment is measured at cost less impairment at the end of the
B EARAEERRDFETRER reporting period as the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
Ea the fair value cannot be measured reliably.
5E 24. INVENTORIES
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
R R Raw materials 14,462 34,13
& m Work-in-progress 20,871 41,041
2R Finished goods 42,958 88,354
78,291 163,526

TEMABRER (£8) RAF 2018 £
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25. EHREMBIFR

R2018FI12A3IH - AEEEHRH
mERFEREREE S ERF it
FE R 17 & A i 8 Yok &i&i‘jﬁﬁ
o 285K 1,495086,000% 7T
184,739,000/ 7t % 80,774,000/ 7T

K217 128318 A&EEHR
HEtEKRAEEBEE 5 EKRK
hEKERLAEMERR BE A
% &85 A %2690233,000% T
71,180,000 7T &2 162,063,000/ 7T °

R2018F12A31 B - AKEEHEK
REHEREE B AR 63244700058 7T
(20174 - 149,141,000 7T) °

AEEREEENE TEP TBEAR
BANEEH RATEEHBEAFH
ZEIERFREEHRR-—FREE -
AABRSRURNBLEE KRR
i) 4 £8 943,820,000 7T (2017 4 -
16127270008 7T) - REREBE R
FEHEARREENEZELT - NRE
MARBEZAH (B WarEREH
BE) I TLBEUREZE 5 EUKR
(fR ) <R DT T

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 3| December 2018, the Group's total trade and other
receivables comprised of trade receivables, other bills receivables and
other receivables, deposits and prepayments of HK$1,495,086,000,
HK$ 184,739,000 and HK$80,774,000, respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total trade and other
receivables comprised of trade receivables, other bills receivables and
other receivables, deposits and prepayments of HK$2,690,233,000,
HK$71,180,000 and HK$ 162,063,000, respectively.

The Group's trade receivables as at 31 December 2018 are net of
allowance for credit losses of HK$632,447,000 (2017: HK$149,141,000).

The Group allows credit periods for not more than six months to
its customers for sales of goods. At the discretion of the executive
director, several major customers were allowed to settle their balances
beyond the credit terms up to one year. Included in trade receivables
are balances of HK$943,820,000 (2017: HK$1,612,727,000) without
bills received while the remaining balances are trade receivables with
bills received for future settlements. The following is an aging analysis
of trade receivables without bills received, net of allowances, presented
based on the invoices dates at the end of the reporting period, which
approximately the respective revenue recognition dates:

2018 2017

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

30BR Within 30 days 11,023 149,43
31290H Between 31 — 90 days 3,702 7,804
912 180H Between 91 — 180 days 28,829 2917
181 £2365H Between 181 — 365 days 6,467 712
HiE—F Over | year 893,799 1,451,863
943,820 1,612,727

K218 12A31 B A&BREAR
WERENE S RUGHK < RikiBE—F (1
REHROBERAHG) - R20175 12
A3 B A&EE A KRE 63,404,000
BTNESRUT KRR R —FAR -
BEABE—F (HREARNERA
H&t) o

All the Group's trade receivables with bills received as at 31 December
2018 are aged over one year, based on invoice dates at the end of
the reporting period. The Group's trade receivables with bills received
of HK$63,404,000 as at 31 December 2017 are aged within one year
while the remaining balances are aged over one year, based on invoice
dates at the end of the reporting period.
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25.

i

RAREMEBLER 2

R2018F 12A3IB - AEEEH
JE W 5% 50,021,000 % 7T (2017 & :
2242680008 ) Rk R —F AR
BENBRE—F (RARSHPRNERR
HiEt) - MEIS0 R A EMBREE - AR
RPERCHABASERERERE
Ko BUZRBEIREREN - BEK
IR AREYTERZFERF AL
A& o

R2018F12A318  AEEE 5 ENK
TAEHBEAREE |463,3440007& 7T
MEWERR NS EHEas - A
B B AR |,461,074,0007% 7T B2 8 4
RN L ERRPENTHARR
SERBEAEBER  BUZRBELR
BREN -BREUREIN ARETE
REEERT A TR -

R217F12A318 AEEE HENR
TAER B ERKREE 1,070,359,0007% 7T
MEWERR  NeSHREAaE  mA
SEYRRBREBRELEG EEE
EHNEHNCADRGS - RERERIN
AEEYARABFERSE EMERT -
e YR 2 I RR B HR B — 4 o

ERMERRME B 5 R Rk 0
T~

Dl

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group’s trade receivables of HK$50,02 1,000 (2017:
HK$224,268,000) as at 31 December 2018 are aged within one year
while the remaining balances are aged over one year, based on the
invoice dates at the end of reporting period. The balances that is
past due 90 days or more is not considered as in default based on
repayment records for those customers and continuous business with
the Group. Other than bills received, the Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

As at 3| December 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$1,463,344,000 which are past due as at the reporting date. Included
in the past due balances of HK$1,461,074,000 has been past due 90
days or more and is not considered as in default based on repayment
records for those customers and continuous business with the Group.
Other than bills received, the Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance were debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$1,070,359,000 which were past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group had not provided for impairment loss.
The overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management. Other
than bills received, the Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The average age of these receivables is over one year.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

2017
TET
HK$000

B Overdue by:
0&£90H Between 0 — 90 days 3420
91z 180H Between 91 — 180 days 209
i 180 H Over 180 days 1,066,730
aE Total 1,070,359

AKE-—RE/MABYI6SHHER
TEREEE RAZREEELR
78 8365 B A 8 WOR — AR A IKE - 1
HTEEHERTRREEHNZATE
EEPRI -

TEMABRER (£8) RAF 2018 £

The Group will normally recognise full allowance for all receivables
overdue 365 days because historical experiences is such that receivables
that are past due 365 days are generally not recoverable, except for
some major customers with longer credit terms at the discretion of the
executive directors.
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is the movement in the allowance for doubtful trade

debts account during the year ended 3| December 2017:

2017

FET

HK$000

FHkEeR Balance at beginning of the year 65,247
B 5, 3 B Exchange realignment 4473
BIELE—RHEARA Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (14,498)

B 5 YRR B R E R 1R Impairment losses recognised in respect of trade

receivables 93919

FRRAER Balance at end of the year 149,141

RIEBEEHREAHISAH, RRF
AEERNESERN & N of il DR L)
BHRUGR - REBW EBZ SRR
BERERR -

R217F12A3I B2 EZRE KB
HERK HERABERTE =1/
JEWE R & 413,267,000 TT o & BRI
| ESFERNERELE - BRAELH
BRELRE ISHE  BRERECE
HOBRANEE -

AEER2018F 12831 B2 EAh
RUFERRTERBFE RS
25,490,000 7t (20174 : 113,139,000
BTL) KA W BB 19,511,000 7T
(20174 = 9452,000/7T) °

EHBEWI8FENANALEFEES
B A P KB L AT A S R B 3
40

The balance of the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables which have been overdue 365 days or/
and have no material transactions with the Group during the year. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 3| December 2017, included in the trade receivables are
retention receivables for the sales of wind turbines and energy storage
and related products to third parties of HK$413,267,000. The balance
will be settled upon the completion of warranty period of | to 5
years. Upon application of HKFRS 15, the retention receivables were

reclassified to contract assets.

Included in the Group's other receivables at 31 December 2018 are
deposits for purchase of inventories in the PRC of HK$25,490,000
(2017: HK$113,139,000) and VAT recoverable of HK$19,511,000 (2017:
HK$9,452,000).

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the

year ended 3| December 2018 are set out in note 40.
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26. BNEE SEAR

. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT

LIABILITIES
AHEE Contract assets

R20184 20184
12A31H AR
31.12.2018 112018
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000

SHE MDA R R ABBBER  Sales of wind turbines and energy storage and
related products 403,349 422,790
B EEBRES Less: Allowance for credit losses (98,590) -
304,759 422,790

ZRERELEBESYBMEERNE
ISHEAR - NBETRAEMNA
SEE =7 S MK 8 KA
B am A YRR B Z A (1 AR PR A f
) - AKBERBRBERBIES
F EREIENTANEEZ%E
10% - NERBER  LEFAR
HERE

R2018 12A31 B A L& 848
REBENRRILANEENANEE
9,085,000 7T °

AEBERZZEANEEDERRE A
RASERHREFEERRBZEE
E iliﬁlo

HEMKEREN (£8) SR 2018 £ K

The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the application
of HKFRS 5. The contract assets primarily relate to the Group'’s right to
consideration for wind turbines and energy storage and related products
sold to third parties which has not yet become unconditional. The Group
agrees to a warranty period of | to 5 years for retention amounts mainly
ranging from 5% to 10% of the contract value. The amount is included in

contract assets until the completion of the warranty period.

Included in balances above are contract assets arising from contracts
with associates of HK$9,085,000 as at 31 December 2018.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current because the Group

expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle.
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SHBE SBEARB 26. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)
EHAR Contract liabilities
H20185F 20184
12A31R lAIE"
31.12.2018 [.12018"
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$000
HE M DA K B Sales of wind turbines and energy storage and
PERAE @ related products - 13938
* ZREERERBEEUBREENE e The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the application

ISFEAR -HAREETEPME
AEBRXNERA G RRERSE
MELANBEEEREHRANRBL
AREENZERAREARL -

20184 | A | B#Y 13,938,000 T H)
SREERABE208F12A31HIE
FEME

Bl EAREARR

MB1EE BB R E 138,382,000/ T
(20175 : 36,045,000 7% 7T) - & Y 5t
BRAREEE S EWKI27619,000
BT (2175 : BFREFREKRE
R %264968000&7T) - ZHIBRE
B 2ERAHEERR (EERAN
ZEMBER) AISOREEH &8
30,032,000 7t (2017 4 : 32,676,000 7%
T RET-HBERRNER  KE
FEFMZE435% (20174 : 435%) 51 8 °
ZHAREERNIRERER - FIsriE
£#294,806,0007% 7T (20174 : 5,823,000
BT REER  RERREREE -

ENBERAAREEEZENK
25,167,000 7T (2017 4F : 60,694,000%
U)o A REER - 2B RAE365H
= 58 - F 82 4 82709,00058 7T (2017
F:24500087T) REER  2ERE

of HKFRS 5. For certain of the Group's customers, the Group will
receive a deposit before delivery of products, giving rise to contract
liabilities until revenue is recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the

amount of the advance receipt.

The amount as at | January 2018 of HK$13,938,000 is recognised as

revenue during the year ended 31 December 2018.

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

Included in the amounts due from associates are trade receivables
of HK$127,619,000 (2017: trade and retention receivables of
HK$264,968,000) net of allowance for credit loss of HK$ 138,382,000
(2017: HK$36,045,000). The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing
and has credit period of 180 days for sales of goods mainly wind energy
related products. Balances of HK$30,032,000 (2017: HK$32,676,000)
are loans advanced to an associate that bear fixed interest and of 4.35%
(2017: 4.35%) per annum. The amount is unsecured and repayable
on demand. The remaining balances of HK$94,806,000 (2017:
HK$5,823,000) are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

Included in the amounts due to associates are trade payables of
HK$25,167,000 (2017: HK$60,694,000). The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and has credit period of 365 days. The remaining
balance of HK$709,000 (2017: HK$245,000) are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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28.

Bl EEELRR
FRDE
BEEBBERK-—HARCER

104,165,000/ 7T (20174 : 106,468,000
BL) EFBRERTEELE
63,912,000/ 7T (2017 % : 66,993,000
L) REIE F M E435% (20174
435%) st B - REBBENK &L
XERASEERL I RBT - R8E
40,253,0007& 7T (20174 - 39,475,000
T RRE -AELFEEAEE20I8
F12A31 B2z L EFK639120008 7T
(20174 - 66,993,00078 7T) & H th 4 £4
21,000,0007% 7t (2017 4 : 22,012,0007%
ORI H ZERBENERZE
ERREZIHRETRETHEMREEDN
FISFTIREE KARREEARERE
/E%TAﬂﬁT\@ﬁ’\\i&iﬁﬂﬂit‘l' 18 A
WEE  AUZFBEDBERRDEE -

BER—RAEERFAEER RER
RENREE -

ENAEREREREZ RN
2,218,000 7T (20174 : 3,602,000 %
U)o A REER - 2B KRA365H
58 - FI 8R4 88241,00058 7T (2017
F 4280008 7T) REER B RER

o
BREE -

HEMXERAR (W) HRAT 2018 £8

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT

VENTURES

Non-current balance

Included in the balances is an amount due from a joint venture of
HK$104,165,000 (2017: HK$106,468,000), of which loans advanced to
the joint venture amounted to HK$63,912,000 (2017: HK$66,993,000)
that bear fixed interest rate at 4.35% (2017: 4.35%) per annum. The
joint venture has pledged its land and buildings to the Group to
secure the loan. The remaining amount of HK$40,253,000 (2017:
HK$39,475,000) is non-interest bearing. The joint venture has entered
into arrangements with the Group in connection with the above
loans of HK$63,912,000 (2017: HK$66,993,000) and other balance of
HK$21,000,000 (2017: HK$22,012,000) as at 3| December 2018 that
these amounts shall be repaid from the proceeds upon the realisation of
the land and buildings and certain other assets of that joint venture. The
directors of the Company considered that the amount due from the
joint venture will not be settled within twelve months from the end of

the reporting period, therefore classified as non-current asset.

Current balance

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, non-interest bearing

and repayable on demand.

Included in the amounts due to joint ventures are trade payables of
HK$2,218,000 (2017: HK$3,602,000). The amount is unsecured, non-
interest bearing, trade nature and has credit period of 365 days. The
remaining balance of HK$241,000 (2017: HK$428,000) are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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BEHRTER  BITHES
BB &

AARERRTER RIOTEHRERS
8RB E M RITHE9,0007% 7T (2017
% 63000787) © & IFRIZE EF X
0.30% (20174 : 0.30%) & & °

RITEERIZ0.01% % 1.25% (2017 % -
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PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Included in the pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash are
pledged bank deposits of HK$9,000 (2017: HK$63,000) which carry
fixed interest rate of 0.30% (2017: 0.30%) per annum.

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range from

001%% 1.25%) 2 RATHIHEMEG L 0.01% to 1.25% (2017: 0.01% to 1.25%) per annum.
RITEBRBETINEBERIIEEY Included in bank balances are the following amounts denominated in
PASNEREEHE R TR © currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which they
are related.
2018 2017
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$000
BT HK$ 18,371 19,373
30 B REMESSER 30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BHREMENAREDEE S MM
M 944,674,000% T (20174 :
1,237,354,000% 76) « & % BB E
EERE0BE0BNEES - BHE
RRBE MR ERER B RE ST
mT :

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
HK$944,674,000 (2017: HK$1,237,354,000). The Group normally
receives credit period for 30 to 90 days from its suppliers. The following
is an aged analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at the end of

the reporting period:

2018 2017

FHET FHET

HK$’000 HK$000

30BR Within 30 days 19,010 218321
3IE£90H Between 31 — 90 days 8,697 15,368
91 180H Between 91 — 180 days 11,053 227,626
181 £365H Between 181 — 365 days 35,255 163222
HiR—F Over | year 870,659 612,817
944,674 1,237,354
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30. B REMBERZRE

R2018FI12A31 B AEE 2 HitfE
NHRERBEREFLHAZTT (2017F :
13938,000787T) * B R 426,974,000
AT (20174 - 355,771,000 7T) - K
B8 — I MY B8 1 B e A9 AR (B 12,422,00078
7t (20174 : 13,021,000/ 7T) °

31. BFF#iBh

M2018F 12831 H - BB
28,834,000 7T (2017 £ : 31,000,000 %
T RTEBRAEEABENE BE

REREESMR T 2B - LA
HREEBLHRET (BEEDE
BER&ER) 2AIERFRESFE
S0FM R -

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Included in the Group's other payable at 3|1 December 2018 are receipt
in advance from customers of nil (2017: HK$13,938,000), bills payable
of HK$426,974,000 (2017: HK$355,771,000) and consideration payable
for acquisition of a subsidiary of HK$12,422,000 (2017: HK$13,021,000).

31. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

At 31 December 2018, government grants of HK$28,834,000 (2017:
HK$31,000,000) represent subsidies granted by the PRC government
authorities for the purpose of financing the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment. The amount will be recognised in profit or loss
over 5 to 50 years according to the useful lives of the relevant land and
buildings (included in property, plant and equipment).

2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000

RERMANA : Analysed for reporting purpose as:
FRBER Non-current liabilities 28,123 30,225
ER=YET Current liabilities 711 775
28,834 31,000

HEMKEREN (£8) SR 2018 £ K
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32. WARRANTY PROVISION

Warranty provision represents the present value of the directors’
best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will be
required under the Group’s obligations for warranties of local sales of

wind turbines.

REREED Movement in the warranty provision:

2018 2017

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

FH) kR Balance at beginning of the year 139,091 136,731
B 5%, 38 2 Exchange realignment (6,397) 9,585
R ILBE (Hi2) Additional provision recognised (note) 158,752 17,023
BRRE Utilisation of provision (31,528) (24,248)
FIR 7 R Balance at end of the year 259,918 139,091

W FFAFRERRBIMRERBENR
EEAEtERRERENS ﬁ%
98,162,000 7T (20174 : &) o
It E & #2 98,162,000 T (20|7
FE)SEHEFARFREBIMRE
BERNEREANSE AL
%ﬁﬁﬁ98,|620005§ﬁ(20|7¢'ﬁ)
MR- HBERAHERENSH
67,887,0005 7T (20174 : &) - ifi #H
BHHESENFARNREBRERE

Yok & X B RA o

Note: Included in the additional warranty provision recognised during the
year are balances of HK$98,162,000 (2017: nil) which are agreed to be
reimbursed by the corresponding suppliers of wind turbines. Accordingly,
same amount of HK$98,162,000 (2017: nil) are offset with the amount
recognised in the profit and loss with respect to the additional warranty
provision made during the year. Included in the above balances of
HK$98,162,000 (2017: nil) is an amount of HK$67,887,000 (2017: nil)
relating to the supply of wind turbines by an associate and the related
reimbursement amount was included in the amounts due from associates

as at the end of the reporting period.
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33. £ 33. BORROWINGS
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
RERTENR (Hita) Short-term bank loans (note a) 125,542 315,519
Hi 2B E R (Hitb) Short-term other loans (note b) - 647,199
Bt RBE R (HiFb) Long-term other loans (note b) 899,338 9,570
BRRE TR (Hatc) Short-term portion of shareholder's loans
(note ¢) - 299,075
BRREFREHLD (Hitc) Long-term portion of shareholder's loans
(note ¢) 741,840 478,521
1,766,720 1,749,884
W B ARBAEMN—FA  Less: Amount due within one year under
582 308 current liabilities (125,542) (1261,793)
—F1E B 2 FUE Amount due after one year 1,641,178 48809
AEEEEZIHER The maturity of the Group's borrowings is as
T* follows*:
—FR Within one year 125,542 [,261,793
—FEMF Between one to two years 899,338 -
MEERF Between two to five years 741,840 488,091
1,766,720 1,749,884

*
Bt
@

RERBHEMHENABRRRALE -

R20I8F 12A3I BH & B A EEH
HRITE F 125,542,000 7T (2017 4F
315519,000%7T) °

R2018F 12831 HHER
125,542,0007% 7T 3 A KR # 110,000,000
TR B B & B I h10.04% (BN
FHMEATIB)FHE -

R2017F 12A31HEEXK
155,519,0003% 7T 3 A K # 130,000,000
TLREEFHE435%5 8

R20176 12A31 HHEX
160,000,00078 TR BB RITRERF S
1A% F BRI KEL B o

ZEERAN—FARERE (20165 :

—FR) BEDATEENEBLE
BNESE-

HEMXERAR (W) HRAT 2018 £8

*

Notes:

@

Based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

The amount as at 3| December 2018 represents unsecured bank loans of
HK$125,542,000 (2017: HK$315,519,000).

Loan of HK$125,542,000 or RMBI 10,000,000 as at 31 December 2018
bears floating-rate interest at PRC Loan Prime Rate plus 0.04% that is
4.79% per annum.

Loan of HK$155,519,000 or RMB130,000,000 as at 31 December 2017
bore fixed-rate interest at 4.35% per annum.

Loan of HK$160,000,000 as at 3| December 2017 bore floating-rate
interest ranging from Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus
| 4%.

The loans are repayable within one year (2016: within one year) and are
used to finance the operations of the Group.
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AEBW AR 2R RN E D AM
AR BEREERA ([HKH
B 5 1) B 15 5 3£890,208,00078 7T
3 A K # 780,000,000 7T (2017 F :
647,199,0007% 73 A R # 541,000,000
TU) % E IR A BB i K& b
R RETEFME413%(2017F
4.13%) TR

R2018F I12A31 B BEX
148,368,000 7T 3k A & # 130,000,000
7~ 44,282,0008 Tk A R
38,800,000 7% * 148,368,000 7T 3k A
R # 130,000,000 7T ~ 34,238,000 7T
sk A R # 30,000,000 7 ~ 251,085,000
ATk AR #220,000,0007T -
27,391,000 7T 3 A K # 24,000,000
g~ 213,422,000 Ttk AR
187,000,000 7T & 23,054,000 7T 3 A
R # 20,200,000 7T 3 5 72 14 2020 4 3
A ~2020%5A4 202056 A - 2020
F7R 2020698 20205 1047 -
2020 || A 20206 12 A1EE -

K201 7F 12A31H 8K
155,519,0007% 7T3k A & # 130,000,000
JT > 263,186,000 Tk A R ¥
220,000,000 7T ~ 28,711,000 7T 3k A
R #24,000,000 7T % 199,783,000 7T
sk A% 167,000,000 778 20184 3
A -201849R 20184 104 %2018
FIIABE - LRSBWER20I18FF
HIEE -

HAEGBEROERTBERE —
F'ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂ;ﬂlﬁxﬁﬁﬁﬁa’aﬁﬂ
9,130,000 7t 3k A K % 8,000,000 7&
(20174 9,570,000 7T 5k A R ¥
8,0000007C) - Z & B AEHRA &
HEARBITEERN RN (AF
F=428% - (20174 : 428%)) 8%
BF =S BR2020F 1| AEE -

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

33. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The Group obtained loans from Aerospace Science and Technology
Finance Co., Ltd. ("ASTF"), a fellow subsidiary of CALT, amounting
to HK$890,208,000 or RMB780,000,000 (2017: HK$647,199,000 or
RMB541,000,000). The amounts are unsecured and are guaranteed by
CALT, bearing fixed rate interest at 4.13% (2017: 4.13%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2018, loans of HK$ 148,368,000 or RMBI130,000,000,
HK$44,282,000 or RMB38,800,000, HK$ 148,368,000 or RMBI130,000,000,
HK$34,238,000 or RMB30,000,000, HK$25 1,085,000 or RMB220,000,000,
HK$27,391,000 or RMB24,000,000, HK$2 I 3,422,000 or RMB 87,000,000
and HK$23,054,000 or RMB20,200,000 which are repayable in March
2020, May 2020, June 2020, July 2020, September 2020, October 2020,
November 2020 and December 2020, respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, loans of HK$ 155,519,000 or RMB130,000,000,
HK$263,186,000 or RMB220,000,000, HK$28,71 1,000 or RMB24,000,000
and HK$199,783,000 or RMB167,000,000 are repayable in March 2018,
September 2018, October 2018 and November 2018, respectively. The

above amounts were fully repaid in 2018.

Included in the balances of other loans is also a loan of HK$9,130,000 or
RMB8,000,000 (2017: HK$9,570,000 or RMB8,000,000) advanced from
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The amount is unsecured,
bears floating-rate interest at 0.9 times of the People’s Bank of China
Benchmark interest rate that is 4.28% (2017: 4.28%) per annum and is
repayable in November 2020.
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33. &
Wi : ()
(0 SBAASEBBTIMEZHER

AMAMEIE (ERRFEA) B
Z B 741,840,000 Lk A B
650,000,0007T (2017 € : 777,596,000
BT A R #650,000,0007T) © 5% X
BERESR  REEFNEA88%E
5.00% (2017 € : 4.88% % 5.00%) 515

KR2018F 12A31H X
456,517,00078 7T 3 A & # 400,000,000
7T % 285,323,000 sk A R
250,000,0007T 73 BB 1K 2021 54 A &
2021 F 12 AER -

K201 7F12A31 B BEX
299,075,000 7% 7T 3k A K # 250,000,000
T K%478,521,0008 Tk AR
400,000,000 75 A1 AR 2018F3 A K
2021 4 B B8 - §350299,075,0887%
Tt 3 A K # 250,000,000 7T B 72018
FEBEE -

BZE2I8FI12A3IBIEFE -
AEEEENERENENT
244%%534% (20174 : 286% %
522%) -

HEMXERAR (W) HRAT 2018 £8

33. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

©

The amounts represents loans advanced from CALT through CASC's
subsidiary, ASTF as the trustee in aggregate amounting to HK$74 1,840,000
or RMB650,000,000 (2017: HK$777,596,000 or RMB650,000,000). The
amounts are unsecured, bear fixed-rate interest ranging from 4.88% to
5.00% (2017: 4.88% to 5.00%) per annum.

As at 3| December 2018, loans of HK$456,517,000 or RMB400,000,000
and HK$285,323,000 or RMB250,000,000 are repayable in April 2021
and December 202 respectively.

As at 3| December 2017, loans of HK$299,075,000 or RMB250,000,000
and HK$478,521,000 or RMB400,000,000 were repayable in March 2018
and April 2021. The loan of HK$299,075,088 or RMB250,000,000 were
fully repaid in 2018.

The effective interest rate of the Group’s borrowings were ranged from
2.44% to 5.34% per annum for the year ended 3| December 2018
(2017: 2.86% to 5.22% per annum).
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RS IE B &I 34. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE

R2017F12A31 8 REE R RER
EHEMERA-—WAE HER4IF -
BHEAERBIMEETRATF L%
HERTIREHEER -

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had one of its motor vehicles

held under finance lease. The lease terms was 4 years. Interest rate

underlying the obligation under a finance lease was fixed at 2.5% per

annum. The lease had purchase options upon the end of the lease term.

REREE

Minimum
lease payments
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000

BEMERMZKIE  Amounts payable under finance

BEHEESRE

Present value
of minimum

lease payments
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000

lease
—FR Within one year - 23 - 22
- 23 - 22
B ARRETSE A Less: Future finance charges - (h - N/A
MEAERE Present value of lease obligation - 22 - 22
B —FAEERZ  Less: Amount due for settlement
FIR (KRB within one year (shown
BETIR) under current liabilities) - 22)

—FEREENZRIE  Amount due for settlement after

one year

ARE REBREAEALRBEANEE
BERMERER -

lessor's charge over the leased asset.

The Group'’s obligation under the finance lease was secured by the
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35. {BERIE 35. DEFERRED TAXATION
MEIGEHBRAKRME - & TERLT For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
HEEERBBETHHE - UTRMBIE financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
BT R R R IETR A& SR D AT offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

2018 2017

FET TET

HK$’000 HK$000

EERIEE E Deferred tax assets 1,643 |,784
BEREREAR Deferred tax liabilities (18,337) (22,237)
(16,694) (20453)
REFERBEFECRAZENEL The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised

MEEEEE) MEEEHMT and movements thereon during the current and prior years:
Bff WEAR Hit
REME RO EF =2, @t
Revaluation Undistributed
of investment profits of Others

properties  subsidiaries (note) Total

FHET THET T FHET

HK$000 HK3000 HK3000 HK$000

R2017€ 1 A1 B At | January 2017 9289 11,023 (1,637) 18,675

5 AR Exchange realignment 668 774 (207) 1235

BR&xXH Charge to profit or loss 519 716 60 1,295
Btz R ERH PRC withholding tax paid - (752) - (752)

W2017€ 1231 A At 31 December 2017 10476 [1,761 (1,784) 20453
B R A Exchange realignment (4o1) (518) 82 (837)
Gt BREEXU (Credit) charge to profit or loss (2363) 19 59 (2,185)
EXHZhERNH PRC withholding tax paid - 737) - 737)

2018 12431 A At 31 December 2018 7712 10,625 (1,643) 16,694
Btit - i EE B ABTEBE S 225 o Note: The amount mainly represents temporary differences arising on

government grants.
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R20I8F 12A3I 8 KEEEHRE
FA 75 18 5 18 4 768,778,000% 7T (2017
£ 1 471,405,000/ 70) AT 8 1E H 85 R 2R
A o S T R BE il AR RO ) 2R
BHARKEBRERELERAE
7 - TIAE1E 31,033,000 7T (20174 :
188,189,000/ 7T) E X F A E 5 - RHE
RBIIEE 8 136,670,000 7T (2017 4 -
12394900078 7T) Al R 14 88 - H i
AERRIBE B B2019F £2023F
(20174 : B2018F £2022F) A5 W
B8 -

g

BRIz EEEMEHE - 520084 | A

| B 5 BB A 8] F i EUR F 5 R
KB B AR - AEEEHZE
o B Y B A B R 20 s I e s = RR AT R
EERT IR 10,625,000 7T (2017 4
11,761,000%7T) o 3 & 3t # B ff & A &
A9 I BR B 2= %8 214,000 7T (2017
£ : 47,036,000/ 7T) iR & B R EK
EHEE R IEREE  ThRAEE A Z
bR Z 2 BEIRRE  MBERZERT
RATRER A RARREE D -
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group has estimated unused tax losses of
approximately HK$768,778,000 (2017: HK$471,405,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses during the year due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. During the year, tax losses of HK$31,033,000
(2017: HK$188,189,000) were expired. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are losses of HK$ 136,670,000 (2017: HK$123,949,000) that may
be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax losses
will expire within five years from 2019 to 2023 (2017: from 2018 to
2022).

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from |
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation of HK$10,625,000 (2017:
HK$11,761,000) has been provided in respect of temporary differences
attributable to those undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$214,000
(2017: HK$47,036,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

BE 36. SHARE CAPITAL
R EE Ex-]
Number of
shares Amount
FET
HK$'000
FREGEOI0E T2 LB Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
JETE Authorised:
R2017F1A1H - At | January 2017, 31 December 2017 and
2017F 12831 B 3| December 2018
F2018F 12831 H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
BEETRERE Issued and fully paid:
R2I17F€1A1H - At | January 2017, 31 December 2017 and
2017F 128318 K 31 December 2018
2018F 12 B3I H 4,368,995,668 436,900
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37. EEHEXRIE 37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
FREFESZERBA The Group as lessee
RBEBRR  AEERETAHBELE At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future minimum
HEMEMNARL M EEFHERS W lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases in
K respect of land and buildings as set out below:
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
—FR Within one year 7,504 7,23
F_FEFAF (BEEEME) Inthe second to fifth year inclusive 1,442 1,940
8,946 9,171
BH—RBETFHRB—FE=F (2017 Leases are generally negotiated for an average term of one to three
F:—FE=F) mEASREHANTE - years (2017: one to three years) and rentals are fixed for the lease
period.
FEEESHBAA The Group as lessor
RB|EBRR  AEERBPITHHREK At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
REMSMT tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
—FR Within one year 6,969 7019
E_FEERF(BIEERME) Inthe second to fifth year inclusive 21,647 24,255
iy After five years 46,353 51919
74,969 83,193
FIRMEZRERBARRIZISE The properties held have committed tenants for the next one to fifteen
(017%F : 12 16%F) ° years (2017: one to sixteen years).
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ARBRBEMBRERERRERS
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EEAEBEEIRABREYUESA
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AEHNENZF B HRK -

BEAREE

AEEERERN URRAKSEARE
RENFELE RABTEBELER
Eﬁif”‘Z%x]ﬁ’ﬁi%Hx%%HXfﬁﬁiﬁf’

ARBZEARBERARE EFER
RMEBREZEERRMEMKE
ZREMEAE HRRELAEEE
MEARAHEAAEEED (BREE#

TBA - FREEREER))
ARBEEEEHRIEARE - EBH

EZREARAREEERERHEBI
ik HEHBRBREEANRE -

38.

39.

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs

to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required

contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$11,720,000 (2017:
HK$12,728,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by

the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 33 and obligation under a finance
lease disclosed in note 34, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and accumulated losses.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
The management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure.
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40. &MTH

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ERMI AR Categories of financial instruments
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
ERMEE Financial assets
EFRERFK (BERE K Loans and receivables (including cash and
ReEED) cash equivalents) RERA NIA 3,316,599
R AFTEZ @REE  Financial assets at amortised cost 2,032,763 TERA N/A
AfEERE Available-for-sale investments RERA NIA 5,144
BRAFEFAEMEERA  Finandal assets at FVTOCI
HEemEE 4,908 -
2,037,671 3,321,743
TREE Financial liabilities
R DN Amortised cost 3,192,344 3,440,174
eHEMEEEERIR Financial risk management objectives and policies

AREIESRMIABERATER
ARMEERANEREE BEHNE
fo AR - BRI D R R e
W/ ENAERER EEBRITES
RUTERIAS BHREMEMNRK
fEE - FAZSeRIAZHFBERS
MEARE FEZFERIAZAR
B EZERBRZ BURER T X -

SRIANAEE AREEEHES -
EREERREREARRE  AEREK
RAEREMBEERERE ~AEERMAXZ
FZERE mMHERRRREE SRR K
ERRFAERR 2 AL ELE -

HEMXERAR (W) HRAT 2018 £8

The Group's major financial instruments include financial assets at
FVTOC, trade and other receivables, amounts due from/to associates,
amounts due from/to joint ventures, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to

mitigate these risks are set out below.

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group’s daily
operations. The management manages and monitors the exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk.
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(20174 : 10fAER)  MABEMA
""""" BREHEFIE  WAKEZHRE
B LA/ TEL 101,000 7T (2017
FoR®ERSe LA TEI127000
BIL)

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances for 2018 and 2017 (note 29 for details) and
variable-rate bank borrowings for 2018 and 2017 (note 33 for details).
The management continuously monitors interest rate fluctuation and

will consider further hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits for 2018 and 2017 (note 29 for
details), fixed-rate borrowings for 2018 and 2017 (note 33 for detalils),
amount due from an associate that bears fixed interest rate for 2018
and 2017 (note 27 for details) and amount due from a joint venture
that bears fixed interest rate for 2018 and 2017 (note 28 for details).
The management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
repaying the fixed-rate bank borrowings when significant interest rate

exposure is anticipated.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of PRC Loan Prime Rate and HIBOR.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate borrowings at the end of the
reporting period and the stipulated changes taking place at the beginning
of the year and held constant throughout the year.

If the interest rates on variable-rate borrowings have been [0 basis
points (2017: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's post-tax loss would have increased/
decreased by approximately HK$101,000 (2017: post-tax loss would
have increased/decreased by HK$127,000).
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HEEE (5
HEER
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HAREEEBEMEAINIERR -

EREERREFE

R20185F R2017 12A31 B - BRER
FEAAHELEERANSREE (2017
FAHBERE) I RERFBRR
REVWMeREERAERRYTHE
FRTEIREARERENPHER
FRORREERR AKBEYERE
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HASHEERBNEER

AREEERR A£EEEECHK
EEETEELREREESEMNEN -
EEMFEPH  AEESTRELEE
FREEBEZ RTRFABEEIR
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Currency nisk

The Group has minimal currency exposures as the majority of
transactions and balances were denominated in respective functional
currencies of group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposures should the need arise.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 3| December 2018 and 2017, other than the financial assets at
FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale investments), the carrying amounts
of financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancement to cover its credit risks associated with its

financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits
and credit approvals. Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality, assign an internal
credit rating and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and credit
rating attributed to customers are reviewed on a periodic basis. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9
on trade balances based on individual assessment. Before application of
HKFRS 9, the Group performs impairment assessment under incurred
loss model on trade balances. In this regard, the directors of the

Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 24% (2017: 17%) and
76% (2017: 60%) of the total trade receivables due from the Group's
largest debtor and the five largest debtors respectively.



e IR AR M o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

s0. BRI A

ERRBEEARRBE (4
ERmERAEFG (E)

BEAN - T REUREE & DR R ER 2 T7%
(20174 - 72/:)3?55—%33@‘%%’&57 '
HASBEEERRED - ARERBY
BERA MG REERRBITZEX
HREZES R EREHEABAOR - AE
PR E R AR EERE o

RISEFIAIBRBBEYBREE
AIEIRE AEBEABLIERE
BB REENFIFRAENEREER
BRBHE fﬁﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁgﬁlﬁl*” CAKE
ERARENR AR UHE NG RIAT
,%E,HH?E,HJM*EJEETE%ME W RFFELATA
HTANNRBEABRREEEERE
BR3F B #1116 B SR A R 15 B B K08 £ 7t
ABRSN (EARERRFENRYEE
BROBRT) -

EEEEBFEEZELT  GNEBE
FEBENRAESHENERNER
BE TEAREERRREEHANA
BEEFR(ER/ENESEH AN
THEZRE WHEERRER B
RETRD R (e R N SR B 50 &%
—%%ﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁ%fﬁ?"ﬁ CEBALEMBRETT
FOEBBLEMRN))  HEREERE
RBHREN AR AR EE R EHE -

RN ERERR  BHIOKRII L
EHRWRLBEL  BERIDRE R
WE - AREZERPHEBHEBRR
B/ #Ege BERSBITEXR
WY EERRREEBERE -

R2018F 12A31 8 Wil ABEAKE
18 1,709,482,00078 1= R E M B A
AR ITRE -

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 77% (2017:
72%) of total amounts due from associates is due from one associate.
The Group monitors the exposure to credit in respect of the amounts
due from associates through exercising influence or joint control over
their financial and operating policy decisions and reviewing their financial
position on a regular basis.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9 on | January 2018, the Group applies the
simplified approach to provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for trade receivables, contract assets and balances with associates in
trade nature, and |2m ECL for all other instruments unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.

Management assessed the expected loss on trade receivables, contract
assets and balances with associates in trade nature individually by
estimation with the internal credit rating applied to each debtors (based
on recent trade relationships, financial background and creditability of
individual trade debtors, historical settlement records such as default or
delay in payments, ageing analysis of such balances, general economic
conditions of industry in which the debtors operate), subsequent
settlement (for credit-impaired balances) and adjusted for the forward-
looking information.

In addition, the management is of the opinion that there has no default
occurred for trade receivables past due 90 days or more and the
balances are still considered recoverable due to long term/on-going
relationship with these customers and no ECL allowance is recognised
due to insignificance.

Debtors that were assessed to be credit-impaired with gross carrying of
HK$1,709,482,000 as at 3| December 2018 were assessed individually.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies
internal credit rating for its customers. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk for trade balances arising
from contracts with customers which are individually assessed as at 31
December 2018 within lifetime ECL.

AREE Carrying amount

REE" EERE

Carrying Loss

amount’ allowance

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

WE 1,087,401 39473
3 BRESFERARTEANEE * Included trade receivables and contract assets from customers of

I 040 129,0007% 7T LA Jo & Y Bt & 2 7]
BESUENRBERRANEE
47,272,000 % 7T, ©

EENBEES:
RE] BFHARMNENRR -

R BRI AERNF RN EE
ARRER YA AXRRERHAE
BRAHTENARENEEA AT
HEM - FEEEREERZAELE
FHAFE R 3R B3R B AR A R FRORIR
FAR

HEMXERAR (W) HRAT 2018 £8

HK$1,040,129,000 and amounts due from associates in trade nature and
contract assets from associates of HK$47,272,000, respectively.

Quality classification definitions:
“Satisfactory”: The counterparty has moderate default risk.

The estimated loss rate applied is based on the internal credit
rating assessed individually taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable, supportable, and available to the directors
of the Company without undue costs or effort. Such forward-looking
information is used by the management of the Group to assess both the

current as well as the forecast of future conditions at the reporting date.



e BBk
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

4. €EMTHR » 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
CHRREEERRBE (£) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
EREERAEFG(E) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
TRUBEAZBIEREFPFELE S The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been
ERERANFENRBEEERENED recognised for trade balances arising with customers including trade
(BRESREY aNEEREES T receivables, contract assets and amounts due from associates in trade
EmEEE S RRK) - nature under the simplified approach.

FRMEY FEAEY
FEBE FEER

(XREERE) (EFERE) #act
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
FET FET THET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
R2017€12A31 R As at 31 December 2017 under
BIEEE G ER HKAS 39 & | January 2018
£ 395 &R 20184 under HKFRS 9
| B | BRRBEBHH
A5 98 - 185,186 185,186
RIAIBRERSR Change due to financial instruments
TAZEH: recognised as at | January:
EHRRREER Impairment losses recognised 40,862 686,331 727,193
[ 5 R Exchange realignment (1389) 41571) (42,960)
R2018%F 12431 A As at 31 December 2018 39473 829,946 869419
REREFPHEEHEHRNEREEER The ECL on newly originated trade balances arising with customer is
HBELTERK - considered insignificant.

Annual Report 2018 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited 211



212

e B Rk
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EZ20/184% 1243 BiFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

40. ﬁﬁ!la (%)

ERMEREEARRYE (£)
ERmERAEFE(E)

BN FARK R SRS B0 E
EABREXERBUE  BEHHERY
MeREREY  BUHSEEEANEE
BE-EEEEETERERBEC @R
EREFHOPBAN - Lt ATHR
BEMEH B E2I8FI12A3I BIESF
B EREEARRPANSREER
EEFEBNEDRR TERERA
SEEFRERARNEERE BR
BERAMEETIER Bl A B& R
#£567,531,00078 TL KR E & 5 - BL1E
BABHWE S ERAROBERE
40,862,000 TH A LB IEERE

HREWE SRR AR S E IR KA
ARAMNEE TRERGFEBERE
EFREAEBRRE - AKEZERF
BHZEHEEERAEERE -HE
018F12A3IHEFE  EEERR
fHERSIZEKEZEATAESLE
FEREFRENENRR ARZEE
BAETER 118,800,000 7 TT YR E B s

REEMERAREREEEEXTAE
EREARNEEERR AKEER
ECERATENEREATEEER (0
ER) MAKEEEREENTARN
BEERMEERNR  BEfEARERE
BEMERUANRERSECXFTNESR
FERBATER  YERTERZHK
M EHRRAEEFHREE -

HEMEEREMN (£8) SRAT 2018 £ 5

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As a result of the changing in policies and market environment during
the year, the result of the operation have not improved and the
collection of trade balances fall below expectation, a significant credit
loss was recorded. The management has considered the financial
position of the counterparty individually and taken into consideration
about the change of market environment to determine the impairment
the allowance. During the year ended 3| December 2018, the
management assessed the exposure at default for credit-impaired trade
balances arising from contracts with customers by considering the future
cash flows that the Group expects to recover, discounted at effective
interest rate and provided HK$567,531,000 impairment allowance on
such balances. Impairment allowance of HK$40,862,000 were made on
trade balances arising from contracts with debtors that are not credit

impaired.

For amounts due from associates in trade nature and contracts assets
from associates, the Group measured the loss allowance at life time
ECL. The Group determines the expected credit losses on these items
by individual assessment. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the management assessed the exposure at default for credit-impaired
amounts due from associates in trade nature based on the valuation
report and provided HK$ 118,800,000 impairment allowance on such
balances.

In determining the 12m ECL for other receivables and amounts
due from joint ventures, the management of the Group has taken
into account the historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate, for example, the Group has considered the
consistently low historical default rate in connection with payments, and
concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group's outstanding other
receivables and amounts due from joint ventures is insignificant and no

ECL allowance was recognised due to immateriality.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The management of the Group considers the pledged bank deposits
and bank balances that are deposited with the financial institutions with
high credit rating to be low credit risk financial assets. The management
of the Group considers the pledged bank deposits and bank balances
are short-term in nature and the probability of default is negligible on
the basis of high-credit-rating issuers, and accordingly, loss allowance

was considered as insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of

banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings from ASTF and CALT as a significant
source of liquidity. In the opinion of directors, adequate sources of
funding are available to enable the Group to meet in full its financial
obligations due for the foreseeable future and manage its liquidity

position.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is

derived from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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40. €M TR ») 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
CHRREEARREE (£) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
nBELER (E) Liquidity risk (Continued)

MEEERFEE Liquidity and interest risk tables
NEYH  REXE RER
LTS Mt HR-fR -2ZER ZERE-F  -EIf REREEE REE
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than I3 3 months to I-5 undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate  On demand | month months | year years  cash flows amount
AT AT & AT & AT &
% HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
2018% 2018
2HEE Financil labilties
BARAMEMN Trade and other payables - 942,609 11,358 45,164 398,159 - 1397290 1,397,289
fFE-%8 Borrowings —fixed rate 447 - - - - 1,789,174 1,789,174 1,632,048
fFE-%8 Borrowings - floating rate 475 - - - 130,966 9,886 140,852 134,672
EABERTIR Amounts due to associates - 25,876 - - - - 25876 25,876
EREERER Amounts due tojoint ventures - 2,459 - - - - 2459 2,459
970,944 11,358 45,164 529,125 1,799,060 3,355,651 3,192,344
0175 017
PHEE Financia labiltes
BARAMENF Trade and other payables - 103586 183,526 238337 167597 - 162532 6532
fFE-E8 Borrowings - fixed rate 454 - - 459,87 668820 559742 1687849 1580314
fFE-28 Borrowings — floating rate 257 = 160,096 = - 10,805 170901 169,570
EABEATR Amounts due to associates - 60939 - - - - 60939 60939
ERAELER Amounts due to joint ventures = 4030 = = - = 4030 4030
HAREAE Obligation under  finance lease 250 - I 12 - - pi) n

1100830 343633 697636 836417 570547 3549063 340,19

HEMEEREMN (£8) SRAT 2018 £ 5
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AVEHAENENRFESR(FE—2

=) KKFE -
SHEE RIZAIIBHATE
Fair value as at
Financial assets 31 December
2018 2017
&1 FET
HK$'000 HK$000
(v) ABAEATETA 4,908 TER
2 EWA 2B
TAMFELMRET
i
(v) Unlisted equity 4,908 N/A

instruments classified
as equity instruments
at FV10Cl

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured

at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the

end of each reporting period. The following table gives information

about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in

particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the level

of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are

categorised (Levels | to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to

the fair value measurements is observable.

Fair value

DYEER HENIRBRBARE
Valuation techniques
and key inputs

hierarchy

REERE-RETE B
EEY DGR
REUSHARMEEDR
KRERANRLE (A EH
BRAERAR) -

Dividend discount approach
~in this approach, the
discounted dividend method
was used to capture the
present value of the expected
future dividend income to be
derived from the ownership
of this investee, based on an

appropriate discount rate.

EXTTERRALE

Significant
unobservable inputs

BT HEEREREL
HEEHABREOERHR
HERAETRNTR:

Discount rate, revenue growth
rate and operating margn taking
into account management's
experience and knowledge of
market conditions of the specific

industries.

FIRRRAHE
RAVENEE
Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value

The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value The
higher the revenue growth
rate and operating margin,

the higher the fair value
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40.

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

There were no transfers between Level | and 3 during the years ended
31 December 2018.

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with general accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of these financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost approximate
their fair values.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES

Other than disclosed in respective notes to the financial statements,
the Group has the following significant transactions and balances with
related companies:

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities ultimately controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the PRC government (“‘government-
related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under CASC which is controlled by the PRC
government.
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PARTY TRANSACTIONS/

BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(a) Transactions with CASC Group

(1)

Included in borrowings as at 3| December 2018
were two (2017: two) loans advanced from CALT
through CASC'’s subsidiary, ASTF, as the trustee
totalling HK$741,840,000 or RMB650,000,000
(2017: HK$777,596,000 or RMB650,000,000) which
are unsecured and bear fixed-rate interest ranging
from 4.88% to 5.00% (2017: 4.88% to 5.00%)
per annum. Loans of nil (2017: HK$299,075,000
or RMB250,000,000), HK$456,517,000 or
RMB400,000,000 (2017: HK$478,521,000 or
RMB400,000,000) and HK$285,323,000 or
RMB250,000,000 (2017: nil) are repayable in March
2018, April 2021 and December 2021 respectively.
Loans of HK$299,075,000 or RMB250,000,000 as at
31 December 2017 were fully repaid in 2018.
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(a) Transactions with CASC Group (Continued)

0

The Group also obtained loans from ASTF, a fellow
subsidiary of CALT, amounting to HK$890,208,000
or RMB780,000,000 (2017: HK$647,199,000 or
RMB541,000,000). The amount are unsecured
and are guaranteed by CALT, bear fixed-rate
interest at 4.13% (2017: 4.13%) per annum and are
repayable in 2020 (2017: repayable in 2018). Loans
of HK$647,199,000 or RMB541,000,000 as at 3|
December 2017 were fully paid in 2018.
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41. RELATED
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PARTY TRANSACTIONS/

BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other government entities

(1

Included in borrowings as at 31 December 2018 was
a loan of HK$9,130,000 or RMB8,000,000 (2017:
HK$9,570,000 or RMB8,000,000) advanced from
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The
amount is unsecured, bears floating-rate interest at
4.28% (2017: 4.28%) per annum and is repayable in
full in November 2020.

The Group conducts business with other
government-related entities. The directors of the
Company consider those government-related entities
are independent third parties so far as the Group's
business with them are concerned. The Group
also has certain sales and purchases transactions
with certain customers and suppliers in which the
directors are of the opinion that it is impracticable
to ascertain the identity of the counterparties and
accordingly whether the transactions are with other

government-related entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
banks which are government-related entities. A
majority of its bank deposits and bank borrowings

are with government-related entities.
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41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/

BALANCES (Continued)

(ii) Transactions with other related parties

(@)  For amounts due from/to associates, please refer to note

27.

(b)  For amounts due from/to joint ventures, please refer to

note 28.

(c)  The Group has bills receivables as at 31 December 2018

of HK$184,739,000 (2017: HK$71,180,000) in relation to
the settlement of dividend receivable from a joint venture.

(d)  During the year, the Group had the following significant

transactions with related parties:

Sales of goods to a joint venture
Purchases of goods from

an associate
Interest expenses on loan

from a shareholder, CALT
Interest expenses on loan

from a fellow subsidiary, ASTF
Interest income from a joint

venture
Interest income from an associate
Maintenance service expense

paid to a joint venture

2018
FET

HK$’000

279

36,920

34,196

2,878
1,365

10,835

2017
TET
HK$000

2,619

4,662

40,668

19576

2,809

5281
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4. BREATZRS &g

(i) HEMMBEALZZS (D)

@)

R2018F 12A31 B » A&
2 R AR BB BRAD
Al &R 1,232,595,0008 7T
5 A & # 1,080,000,000 7
(20174 : 693,855,000 7T
5 A K #580,000,0007T) bA
EATEEERZEERE
B o

TREEABRZHM

TREBRABEREARA
HITESRXNTFREZH
b EINGEIRE

TEERABZH b H M
REERTEARRLTS
BEETE -

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(ii) Transactions with other related parties (Continued)

©

At 31 December 2018, CALT has given corporate
guarantees amounting to HK$1,232,595,000 or
RMB1,080,000,000 (2017: HK$693,855,000 or
RMB580,000,000) to ASTF to secure the credit facilities
granted to the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel includes solely the
executive directors of the Company and the compensation
paid to them is disclosed in note |3.

The remuneration of key management is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.
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42. BREDZARHE 42.

TERFNAEERE LY AREE
RAEBRREERIFREEH RELD
EXZARNEARSREIARRSE
MERAREGRERERERTHIER
REEDHSRECARE -

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from

financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities

arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or

future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement

of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

we ENFER
EAFE f&& BERE BRENE ag
Amounts
Obligation due to non-
Interest under a controlling
payable Borrowings finance lease interests Total
TET TET TET TET TET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
RWITEIAIR At | January 2017 - 1,601,885 152 - 1,602,037
B AR Exchange realignment - 98,276 - - 98,276
RERERE Financing cash flows (74486) 49,723 (133) (1,191) (26,087)
MEXH Interest expenses 74486 - 3 - 74489
EERRE Dividend declared - - - 191 191
R2017F 124318 At 31 December 2017 - 1,749,884 0 - 1,749,906
X AR Exchange realignment - (73,107) - - (73,107)
RERENE Financing cash flows (82,546) 89,943 (22) (1,282) 6,093
MEZH Interest expenses 82,546 - - - 82,546
EERRE Dividend declared - - - 1,282 1,282
20184124318 At3l December 2018 - 1,766,720 - - 1,766,720
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43. HE RIEHE—FHKE

NS

(@)

SUNHEE | @) FTRE - BZ2018
FI2A3BLEFEE  AEERH
EHHBARRIMRBESI%
PRAERF AR IE BT o

REEER  FIMABENE
EFREMT

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

43. DISPOSAL/DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A
SUBSIDIARY

(@) As disclosed in note |1(a), during the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group discontinued its Telecommunication Business
operation at the time of disposal of 51% equity interest in its

subsidiary, Shenzhen Aerospace Telecommunications.

The net assets of Shenzhen Aerospace Telecommunications as at

the date of disposal are as follows:

FET
HK$000
mE - BE k& Property, plant and equipment 1,029
78 Inventories 4323
g5 R E MR Trade and other receivables 4391
RITEBEBRE Bank balances and cash 3,140
EC S-S ANES Trade and other payables (4,370)
BHEEERE Net assets disposed of 8513
HEWRE Gain on disposal:
BUARE Consideration received 21,759
HERIMRBEEEFR Net assets disposed of Shenzhen Aerospace
Telecommunications (8513)
AEERARIMKEEREN Fair value of the equity interest in Shenzhen Aerospace
NHE(ERREE AR 2 ) Telecommunications held by the Group as interest
in an associate 4171
&R KBGO Gain on disposal of Shenzhen Aerospace
Telecommunications 17417
HEEFNRSMAHEE Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
BeRE Cash consideration 21,759
B HERTEBRRE S Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of (3,140)
18,619
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43. HE REHE—HME 43. DISPOSAL/DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A
NE &) SUBSIDIARY (Continued)
(b) MMM |(b) PRS- BE2017 (b)  Asdisclosed in note || (b), during the year ended 3| December

FA3IBLEFE  REBRE 2017, the Group discontinued its REPM Products operation at

1 & E KT B 2 )L &% B IR B &2
IEEB I KHEREE

the time of deemed disposal of its subsidiary, Jiangsu Energine.

REEHEER TIHERNE The net assets of Jiangsu Energine as at the date of deemed
EFREMT disposal were as follows:
FET
HK$000
L ER SR Property, plant and equipment 2,049
=& Inventories 14,684
B 5 R E MR Trade and other receivables 50,118
QR EE Taxation recoverable 142
RITEBER® Bank balances and cash 3534
H 5 R EMERK Trade and other payables (53,739)
BEHEEEFRE Net assets disposed of 17788
BELHESE: Loss on deemed disposal:
BHEBEFR Net assets disposed of (17,788)
FErE MR R Non-controlling interests 11953
AEBRAIHSRRENAF(E  Far value of the equity interest in Jiangsu
(FERREE R R 2 %) Energine held by the Group as interest in an associate 5,835
RIEHE IHSIRNER Loss on deemed disposal of Jiangsu Energine —
RIFLEEANREREFER - Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal:
HERITHEBRERE Bank balances and cash disposed of (3534)
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For the year ended 3| December 2018

44. TERBLAT BE2AFR  44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SELREH

F2018F R20175F 1231 RZ AR A
TEMBAR BMEARRAELESR
BT

BRATEEREKZ
HE/EhEx
Nominal value of
issued ordinary

NAER share capitall

Name of company registered capital

HELR

Subsidiaries

EEBAMATRAEE -

Incorporated and operating in Hong Kong:

PERANRAEERARA 100007

China Aerospace Telecommunications HK$10,000

Limited
HERXER(BE)BRAA VBT

China Energine (Hong Kong) Limited HK$2

NRERERAT |7
New Image Development Limited HKS |
NBERER AT | &7
Crownpluss Intemational Limited HKS !

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the

Company at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

RAER AN
b ONGiE< 2 TEEER
Percentage of equity
held by the attributable to the TEER
Company Group Principal activities
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
100 100 - - PHEREER
Distribution of broadband
business
100 100 - - PEARBER
Distribution of elevator
products
100 100 - - REER
Investment holding
100 100 - - RE#R
Investment holding
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4. TERBELT BELATR 44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
eEBETH 2 SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

BRTEERAZ
HE/2EREx REBRZEAL
Nominal value of KRARE AREES
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAER share capital/ held by the attributable to the IERH
Name of company registered capital Company Group Principal activities
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
WELAR(E)
Subsidiaries (Continveq)
FHEEMEAS
Incorporated and operating in PRC:

IRERIXARRA (Wit b)) ARE 1182511007 - = 100 100 RERRRSHES
Beijing Energine Industry Co, Ltd. RMBI 18,251,100 Investment holding and
(note (b)) distribution of wind

turbine generators

AR (RE) BNEEARLE ARH938000007T - - 55 5  RESEE

(Hi @) RMB93,800000 Operation of wind farm
Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi) Wind

Power Co, Ltd. (note (3))
RARERHER (R BRA 20,000,000 7 - = 100 100 HEWE

(Hi# ) (note (b)) HK$20,000000 Rental of properties
AEEMAB RN RREARAA AE800000007 - = 100 100 SERAHER

(W) RMBB0,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
Inner Mongolia Energine New Energy of wind turbine generators

Development Co. Ltd. (note (b))
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SELESEH

ARER

Name of company

WELAR(E)
Subsidiaries (Continveq)

ErERREEE : (B)
Incorporated and operating in PRC:
(Continved)

AREMABRRERGRERRLA
Wit@)*

Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Wind
Turbine Manufacture Co. Ltd. (note (a))

#

ARERAEREAHHARAA
Wi @)

Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Composite Materials Co. Ltd. (note (2))

AIRMKRE (W2 b))
Shenzhen Aerospace Telecommunications

(e (t)

ERTEERAZ
HE/EhEx
Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/

registered capital

AR #50,0000007
RMB50,000,000

AR%800000007
RMBB80,000,000

AR #560000007
RMB56,000,000

44.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

e BBk
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

RABEZEAL
ALNARE AREES
Percentage of equity
held by the attributable to the
Company Group
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
- - - 95
- = 56.41 5641
- = TER 100
N/A

IERE

Principal activities

HERDERE
Manufacture and distribution

of wind turbine generators

HERDERBER
Manufacture and distribution

of wind blades

YERAHEALS
Manufacture and distribution
of telecommunication

products
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4. TERBELT BELATR 44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
eEBETH 2 SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

BRTEERAZ
HE/EhEx RARE AL
Nominal value of ARARA AREES
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAER share capitall held by the attributable to the IEXK
Name of company registered capital Company Group Principal activities
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
WELAR(E)
Subsidiaries (Continveq)
FLEMRAS (&)
Incorporated and operating in PRC:
(Continved)
IRMASRH B RNRERAR ARE250000007 65 65 - - HHEEER
(Wit (a) (note (3)) RMB25,000000 Distribution of wind turbine
products
HRMAB RS RBRERRAA AR#800000007T - - 100 100 SERDHEE
(Wit b)) (rote (b)) RMBB0,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
of wind turbine generators
HERMRERMERASARAR AR 600000007 - - 100 100 HEMx
(B b)) (rote (b)) RMB£0,000,000 Rental of properties
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44. TEMELT - HEL
SELXREH»

ARER

Name of company

LA

Associates

FHEHMRAE
Registered and operating in the FRC

THERENESERAAWZ )
Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co, Ltd.
(rote (3)

EHERENEEARAT
(Wit (@)

Jiin Longyuan Wind Power Co, Ltd.
(note (3).(d)

RABS R RRERAERAR
(H13 8) (rote (5)

ESMABRAANERERAT
(i)

Wuxi CASC Energine Xindali Co, Ltd.
(rote (3)

Rk

ERTEERAZ
HE/EhEx
Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

AR#3333200007
RMB333,320,000

AR 4382000007
RMB438,200,000

AR 1500000007
RMB150,000,000

ARE 1200000007
RMB120,000,000

44.

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

RABEZEAL
ALNARE AREES
Percentage of equity
held by the attributable to the IEXK
Company Group Principal activities
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
- = 25 L EGEE
Operation of wind farm
- - 15.35 1535 E5EE
Operation of wind farm
- = 20 N EREE
Operation of wind fam
- - 41.67 4167 RERDHER

Manufacture and distribution

of wind turbine generators
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44. TEMELAT  BEAFR  44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

eEBETH 2 SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)
BRTEERAZ
HE/2EREx RARE AL
Nominal value of KRARE AREES
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAER share capitall held by the attributable to the IEXK
Name of company registered capital Company Group Principal activities
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
BerR &)
Associates (Continveq)
FLEMRAS (&)
Registered and operating in the FRC:
(Continved)
EMMAERENEEARAR AR 171,070,000 7T - - 48.78 4878 REREE
(W) RMBI71,070000 Operation of wind farm
Gaizhou Energine Wind Power Co, Ltd.
(ot (3))
TEMAERHXARAT AR 700000007 - = 31.14 Y4 BERHBABKER
(W) (0)(note (3) () RMB70,000000 Manufacture and distribution
of elevator products
AIMKRE (W2 b)) AR 560000007 - = 49 MR RERAHERER
Shenzhen Aerospace Telecommunications  RMB56,000,000 N/A~ Manufacture and distribution
(note (b)) of telecommunication
products
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4. TERBELT BELATR 44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
AEBPESZTH 2 SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

BERTEERAZ
HE/EREX RagmzaAt
Nominal value of RAARE AEBER
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAER share capitall held by the attributable to the TEXK
Name of company registered capital Company Group Principal activities
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
RELR
Joint ventures
EREMRAEE
Registered and operating in the PRC:
IREAREREDRERLAR 16,000,000% 7 - - 49 49 HEAEEPRERZR
BRAE (Wit () US$16,000,000 Rt
Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Manufacture of
Management Systems Co, Ltd. automotive engine
(note (a), (e) management systems
and components
REGAEERMERERAR ARE#926100007 - = 49 49 RE5EE
(Wit (@)  (€)) (note (), (€)) RMB92,610,000 Operation of wind farm
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44, TEMBLT BELAR
SECEFEH

BRIX R BIRAL 2 D RIS -
NI $ a e VS EA

RABEEMzhIELE -
R Bz 2 ERE -

MR2018F K2017F 12A31 B - A%
EAREVCZAZEREFENRE
EHP R R ARAEERR
AEBUHZERBEEAREN 8
ERARBAEEERI 4% R 2

H%%AT

R2018F R2017F 12A31 B A&
BERVEZAEREREEGNRE
EHRMEZ Al ARAEFRAR
AEBMUZERBBEEATEN #Z
ABARBAEEER 1535% 5.2

Hﬁ%llx\j °

HMRZEBRAER AR ERAS
EREMBREFHEHEED - A
NRESRABEHZES

Tl 4 -

%2 B 88720184 12 425 BEUAFAM °

B4

ZERMSI%IRESN20I18F 124
VAHE MZERBXA—HBELD
] (AP E43(a) FTH )

AKEREL
EFRAHITCE

B o

AR
BAR BEARARA

K&

BEEFRIIEN
HE

AEERE LRAEZADAIM
EhE NYE
BEELBECZIEQARRALE

CEERA
tHBLARRBERBZER B

LABARITE °

B=E

BEHK WEARMERTEM

ERES -

HEMXERAR (W) HRAT 2018 £8

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)  Sino-foreign joint entity enterprises registered in the PRC.

(b)  Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

() The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed two out of five
directors to the board of directors of this entity as at 3| December 2018
and 2017. Hence, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group has significant influence over the entity. Accordingly, the entity is
accounted for a 37.14% owned associate of the Group.

(d)  The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed two out of nine
directors to the board of directors of this entity as at 31 December 2018
and 2017. Hence, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group has significant influence over the entity. Accordingly, the company
is accounted for as a 15.35% owned associate of the Group.

(e)  Inthe opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group and the other

shareholders have joint control of the company because decisions on
the relevant activities of the entity cannot be made without both parties
agreeing.

The entity was deregisted on 25 December 2018

51% equity interest of the entity was disposed of on 29 December 2018

and the entity became an associate as disclosed in note 43 (a)

Except for the companies established in the PRC, the classes of shares

held by the Group in the above companies are ordinary shares issued

by those companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of

the Company which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,

principally affected the results or assets or form a substantial portion of

the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries and

associates would, in the opinion of the directors, resuft in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

reporting period.
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

44. TERBAT BELATR 14
SELEBE »

K217 12A31 8 ARAEERR
FEAMBARZFEF RS ERM
ETBEAN -

As at 3| December 2017, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the non-controlling interests of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries are all individually not material.

THRHEINAEER2018F 12H31 B#
BEAFERESHNIFEZEMNBARL

The table below shows details of the non-wholly-owned subsidiary of

the Group that has matenial non-controlling interests as at 31 December

B 2018:
2018F7E
BIREE KEE20185F EFERES 2018 F &5
WEAFER RExXBHY  FERERIH HER (B8 FERES
Place of Percentage Profit (loss)
establishment of equity allocated to Accumulated
and principal  attributable to  non-controlling  non-controlling
place of the Group interests interests
Name of subsidiary business 2018 2018 2018
TFET FET
% HK$000 HK$000
AR (AR ENEEFRRA ([ERRAEZ]) e 55 912 51,802
Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi) Wind Power
Co, Ltd. (“Longyuan Benxi") PRC
5 FEHE R M 2 1 {8 B S E A RO /B8 2 B (10533) 1,302
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests
(9.621) 53,104

TXHINAEEAEAFERERNE
REWHMBEER - TR % E #
AEERNRRIEMEN SR -

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's subsidiary
that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts before

intergroup eliminations.
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For the year ended 3| December 2018

44. TEMBLF  BHELFR

SELEFEH

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

REiEER Longyuan Benxi
2018
FET
HK$’000
MENVEE Current assets 30,847
FRBEE Non-current assets 96,468
mBEaRE Current liabilities (3,069)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities (9,130)
BEIRNEER ARG Equity attributable to owners of Longyuan Benxi 63,314
BRNEIFERER Non-controlling interests of Longyuan Benxi 51,802
BZE2018%F
12A31H
LFE
Year ended
31/12/2018
FET
HK$’000
Yizs Revenue 25,438
FE% A Profit for the year 2,028
BRNERER ARIGFERN R Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
L PN L attributable to owners of Longyuan Benxi 1,116
BEIR AR FF 12 A 18 5 P A 6 ) ) Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
REERARE attributable to non-controlling interests of Longyuan
Benxi 912
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest of Longyuan
B BERAR IR SRR Benxi 1,282
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45. ZRFMBRARCEH

EZ20/18% 1243 BIFF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2018

45. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
@ REBEHERRRAHBRRAERZ (@) Information about the statement of financial position of the
BEHEE: Company at the end of the reporting period includes:
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
ERBEE Non-current assets
ER S Property, plant and equipment 1,098 1,386
BEWNE AR Investments in subsidiaries 402,415 1,398,727
& W Bt B8 A B3R Amounts due from subsidiaries 158,502 158,502
562,015 1,558,615
RBEE Current assets
Hfth i 3k Other receivables 1,790 2,651
JEE W Fft B8 A B3R Amounts due from subsidiaries 36,109 471315
RITERRRE Bank balances and cash 4,861 28933
42,760 502,899
nEAE Current liabilities
25 REMERRK Trade and other payables 3,660 3,400
EP= Borrowings - 160,000
3,660 163,400
REEEFHE Net current assets 39,100 339,499
EERE Net assets 601,115 1,898,114
EXR#E Capital and reserves
7R Share capital 436,900 436,900
s Reserves 164,215 1,461,214
ERAR Total equity 601,115 1,898,114
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45. ZOAFIMERIEZEH 2 45. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

b) RBEEHRARRBAREEZIEHRS (b)  Information about the reserves of the Company at the end of the
i reporting period includes:
R4 EE KEIRE 2iEER A
Share Special Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
TET FET TET TET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
R20174 1A 18 At | January 2017 2,732,397 86,971 (1,355995) 1,463,373
AEFEBREHERMXZ Loss and total comprehensive
ok expense for the year - - (2,159) (2,159)
R2017F12A318 At 31 December 2017 2,732,397 86,971 (1,358,154) 1,461,214
AEEBBR2AEME  Loss and total comprehensive
e expense for the year - - (1,296999) (1,296,999)
R2018F12A318 At 31 December 2018 2,732,397 86,971 (2,655,153) 164,215
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BEI2A3IBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
FET FHET FET FHET TR
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(&&7)
(Restated)
(H1it) (#rat)
(Note) (Note)
BEKEEK Continuing operations
St Turnover 2,699,950 2,616,696 2415211 263414 75,759
B AR A (E51E) Profit (loss) before taxation 94,280 74,854 94 131 (228252) (1,316,852)
BE Taxation (1.296) @701) (12367 (5,165) (580)
HBECEEBELSR  Profit (loss) for the year from
REZRF (EE) continuing operations 92,984 72,153 81,764 (233417) (1,317,432)
BRIEREEBEER Loss for the year from
REEEE discontinued operation = = (2,440) (14531) (12,714)
AEREF (BE)  Profit (loss) for the year 92,984 72,153 79324 (247948) (1,330,146)

Wit - EREBBEAEE NIBFEHRARL
IEEE%ETE - 0I7TFHEBEEENRTI - &

20185 22577~

Included results of Telecommunication Business operation whereby its operation

was classified as discontinued operation in 2018. The results of 2017 has been

restated to conform to the presentation of 2018.

RI2A31H
At 31 December

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

THET FHET TET THET TERT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$’000
BEERER ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

BERE Total assets 5905,267 5,698,802 6,322,715 5845669 4,274,430

BERE Total liabilities (3,564,538)  (3/449874)  (4,112552)  (3,744,791) (3,571,273)
BESFH Net assets 2,340,729 2,248,928 2,210,163 2,100,878 703,157
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GLOSSARY

[—E-NFRRAFAE]
“2019 AGM"

[F 3R]
“Annual Report”

[E72]
“Articles”

[ Astrotech
“Astrotech”
[ ]
“Auditor”

E373°4-

“Audit Committee”

[E=g)
“Board”

Bl

“CALT"

[ A e )
“CASC”

NG

“Company”

HEMKEREN (£8) SR 2018 £ K

ARAN2019F5A3I B (EHR) BTNRRAFRE
the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 31 May
2019

ARAEE2I8F12A3 BILFENEFERSE
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 3| December 2018

ARRABER (BTEER)
the articles of association of the Company as amended from time to time

Astrotech Group Limited R EB AR R E S M MER A B & A
B 2 B & 1 B

Astrotech Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT

AABINEZHENEE « BERT SATT

the external auditor of the Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

EEeERELES
the Audit Committee of the Board

AREESFE
the board of director(s) of the Company

REEHASTRMATR  RPBEKINDF AARAREERBRS
BEfMAMREEARZ2ERA

H 038 A B BT AR 92 B (China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology), a
company established in the PRC which is wholly-owned by F EIfi K&l &
727 (China Aerospace Science and Technology Corporation), the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company

FEMAMREERR  RPBERLADBLRARAIREERBRR

F B i K BB & B A 8 (China Aerospace Science and Technology
Corporation), a company established in the PRC and the ultimate controlling
Shareholder of the Company

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited (FR BIfn A BIREIE (S E) B
RAAY)  NHASHSEMKINERAR  HEFRB M ER LM (R
fAR5% - 01185)

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the securities of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 01 185)



[RBEDE]

“Companies Law"

[¥ER<TA
“CG Code”

[HhE )

“China” or “PRC"

(%]
“Director(s)"

[ESG#H & |
“ESG Report”

[R&E]

“Group”, or “we" or “us”

&l
K

(&%)
“Hong Kong"

[ARER]

“IM Composite Material”

[ASHEER]

“IM New Energy”

Gl
GLOSSARY

HEREAREENE (CAA—FFEIREN K58 RE2) (BTEER] -
78 S AR Al 77 S\ R 2 Bh)
The Companies Law (Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands) as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time

EHRAIM R A E AR E R TR

Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix |4 of the Listing Rules

REARANE  ERAFEHNE - TREEL PEARAMBERFE
TRERAE

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this annual report
only, Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China and Taiwan

AREESF
director(s) of the Company

AATER  HEREARE

the environmental, social and governance report of the Company

AABREAHBRE

the Company and its subsidiaries

BREEERAET

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

REARAMBEEBRHTTHE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China

AEEMABRESMHERAR RPEARASHEMKIIAARRR
FH 5641 % EENMHE R A

NEHMAERESMEBR 2 (Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Composite Material Co. Ltd.), a subsidiary of the Company as to 56.41%

el

equity established in Ulangab City, Inner Mongolia, the PRC

AEEMABRIERFAEERAR ARARFEATRESHEMKL
HEENBAR

WS & MK E R e RF 3B R 27 (Inner Mongolia Energine New
Energy Development Co. Ltd.), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
established in Ulangab City, Inner Mongolia, the PRC
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F R
GLOSSARY

[EmRAl
“Listing Rules”

[1E25rH]
“Model Code”

[REZEE]

“Nomination Committee”

[FHEES]

“Remuneration Committee”

[ 4
“Reporting Period"”

[ARE]
“RMB" or “Renminbi”

[EH MBS ED
“SFO"

[ B0
“Share(s)"

AR ]
“Shareholder(s)"

[ B 22 P |
“Stock Exchange”

* ERRS

*  for identification purposes only

TEMABRER (£8) RAF 2018 £

BEMARSIMBERRRIES LHHA
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited

EHARRIM ST P8 L ETAEFETES X NRETR
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out
in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules

EXERAZES

the Nomination Committee of the Board

EXxgFMZEe

the Remuneration Committee of the Board

HE_Z-N\F+ZA=+—HLFE
the year ended 3| December 2018

FEZEER
the lawful currency of the PRC

BAEGIR ST EF 5 MR GRD (ETRER - WU AT ER)
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

ARABRAFEFREEO 0B TR
share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company

BOREA
the holder(s) of Shares

BEEMERZMARAT
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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From Engine to New Energy

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
FEMXBRER(ER)ERAA

Tel 5 : (852) 2586 1185
Fax & : (852) 2531 0088
Email E : energine@energine.hk

Website #3E : http://www.energine.hk

Suite 4701, 47th Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BBEFBEB18NTIRES4TIB4TONE
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